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AGENDA
1 Declarations of interest
2 Apologies
FOR APPROVAL
3 Draft Minutes of meeting of 29 September 2016

(Elements of this paper are withheld from publication on the Forth Valley College website under
Section 33 Commercial Interests and the Economy of the Freedom of Infor
2002.)

4 Matters Arising

a) B/16/011 Appointment of Board Member

b) B/16/014 Board Self Evaluation Activity and lu
5 Minutes of Committee Meetings
e  Falkirk Campus Project Board 10 November 2016
e HR (Inc. Nomination) Commi 22 November 2016
e Audit Committee 29 November 2016
[ ]
[ ]

Finance Committee 29 November 2016
Strategic Develop Com 1 December 2016
(Elements of these minutes withheld from publication on the Forth Valley College website under
n

Section 33 Commercial Intére conomy of the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act

cial Statements Alison Stewart

(Elements are withheld from publication on the Forth Valley College website under
Section 33 Commefcial Interests and the Economy of the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act
200

Repert to the Board of Management and the Auditor Henderson Loggie
General for Scotland

8 Code of Good Governance (August 2016) Hugh Hall
“Making Fundraising Work” - Fundraising Strategy Pauline Barnaby
(Elements of this paper are withheld from publication on the Forth Valley College website under

Section 33 Commercial Interests and the Economy of the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act
2002.)
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10 Falkirk Council - Representation within the Community Planning David Allison
Leadership Structure
11 Papers considered by Committees and recommended to Board of Management for
Approval:
a) Procurement Strategy Alison Stewa
FOR DISCUSSION
12 Student Association Activity September to December 2016 Alan
13 Principal’s Report Ken mson

alley College website under
rmation (Scotland) Act

(Elements of this paper are withheld from publication on the Fort
Section 33 Commercial Interests and the Economy of the Freedog
2002.)

14 Review of Risk

15 Any other competent business

FOR INFORMATION
Outcome Agreement Self Evaluation 20130
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COl Iege 8 December 2016
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Boardroom, Falkirk Campus (commencing at 4.30pm)

Present: Mr Hugh Hall (Chair)
Dr Ken Thomson (Principal)

Mr Colin Alexander

Mr Alan Buchan (Student Union President)

Mrs Fiona Campbell

Mrs Lorna Dougall O

Mrs Pamela Duncan (Staff Member)
Mr Scott Harrison (Staff Member)

Mrs Caryn Jack

Mr Liam McCabe

Mr Steven Tolson

Mrs Karen Williams (Student Member)
Ms Angela Winchester

Apologies: Mr Andrew Carver
Ms Beth Hamilton
Mr Ken Richardson
Mrs Anne Mearns

In Attendance: Mr David Allison, Associate Prin | Executive Director Information Services
and Communication
Mrs Fiona Brown, Associ m )| and Executive Director Learning Services
Mrs Colette Filippi, A iate cipal and Executive Director Business Development
Mr Tom Gor pal and Executive Director Estates Development
Mr Andrew La iate Principal and Executive Director HR and Operational
Effectiven

Mrs Alis ciate Principal and Executive Director of Finance
Mr Step rporate Governance and Planning Officer
B/16/007 G @ 1S
No
B/ Minute of Board of Management Meeting of 25 August 2016

The Minute of the meeting of 25 August 2016 was accepted as an accurate record.
/009 Matters Arising

a) B/16/006 Falkirk Estate Full Business Case

The Chair confirmed that this would be covered under the Falkirk Campus Project
Board minute later in the agenda.
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B/16/010 Minutes and draft minutes of other Committee

a) Strategic Development Committee — 8 September 2016
Strategic Development Committee members noted that there were no ite
highlight.
b) Audit Committee — 15 September 2016

The Audit Committee Chair reported that there was no info to @

c) Falkirk Campus Project Board— 22 September 2016

The Principal updated members on the meeting @nd provide information on

the recent presentation of the Full Business Case,to the Board of the Scottish

Funding Council (SFC). He confirmed that the ion was well received with
good feedback.

He noted that there was furt
assumptions and that approval a
not to impact the overall projectiti

ing done at SFC on the financial
n devolved to the SFC Chair so as

He confirmed that the ne
approval prior to the co t of the OJEU phase of the project programme.
B/16/011 Appointment emb

nt r outlining the recent recruitment activity undertaken to

identify on-executive Board member to fill the current vacancy. He
highligh quality of candidates who had been assessed and outlined
pr. 0-opt two of these candidates onto the Board in addition to the
I ended candidate.

He ghted that these co-options would allow for a more efficient process to
replace any future vacancies which may arise.

He outlined the process for securing Scottish Ministers approval for the
recommended candidate and the co-option of the additional candidates.

a) Members approved the appointment of D Flynn and the co-option of S Torrie and
T Craggs, subject to Ministerial approval
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B/16/013

Student Association Plan and Update

The Chair noted that there was a Student Association Development Framework and
that this hadpbeentdiscussed at the recent Regional Chairs meeting. He indicated
that this wouldibe circulated to members and asked that members feedback their
impressions of theireview and how well the College Student Association are meeting
this?

He)highlighted the benefits that Student Associations can bring to Colleges and
noted'that he felt the Forth Valley College Student Association was well progressed
in Working toward the framework.

The Student Association President presented the new operational plan for the
Student Association. He outlined how this had been developed and confirmed that
this did incorporate the framework mentioned by the Chair.

He confirmed that the targets would be monitored and reported on and that this
document would feed into a longer view strategic plan which would be presented to
the Student Council.

He also updated members on recent activity including the Fresher’s Fayre and noted
that this had generated a lot of visibility for the Student Association which was
already paying off with students keen to volunteer to participate.
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B/16/014

B/16/015

Members noted that the plan referred to travel issues and asked the Student
Association President to provide more information. He confirmed that there were
issues, particularly at Stirling, with the volume of public transport services.

complement the links with Stirling University clubs whi
viewed as a good way of encouraging students to meet a

Members requested that the link to Stirling University club
students.

The Chair also reported on the establishment
has matched Student Association Exec \
mentoring support. This support would seful for the running of the informal

additional Board meetings which be ed at the previous meeting.

a) Members noted the content e rt

Board Self Evaluation Ac . hairs Evaluation (Verbal)

The Chair up bers on progress. He noted that, now the revised Code of
Governance was avail guidance on the independent assessment of the Board

new risks were identified
Any Other Competent Business

The Principal provided a brief overview of his update report which had been
attached for information to the Board papers. He highlighted the high level and
positive engagement with local MP’s and MSP’s as well as Ministerial visits since the
last meeting.

He also updated members on recent strike action from support staff across the
sector.
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Project Office Meeting Room (commencing at 4.30pm)

Present:

Apologies:

In attendance:

FC/16/010

FC/16/011

FC/16/012

FC/16/013

Ken Richardson
Bob Gill

Ken Thomson
Tom Gorman
Alison Stewart
Claire Shiels
Lyndsay Condie
Paul Dodd
Colin Campbell

Colin Alexander
Steven Tolson
David Allison
Kerry Alexander
Trevor Stone

Stephen Jarvie

Apologies for Absence

Forth Valley College Board Member (Chair)
Co-opted member

Principal *
AP and Executive Director of Estates Development
AP and Executive Director Finance
Head of Facilities, management and Health an

Communications and Marketing Manager

Scottish Futures Trust (via teleconf
AECOM (via teleconference)

Forth Valley College Board Memb

Forth Valley College Boaid Member

AP and Executive Director formation Services
Scottish Futures Trust
AECOM

Corporate Gove and Planning Officer (Minute)

The apologies were noted

Declarations of Inte

exm 22 September 2016

the meeting of 22 September 2016 were approved.

None.

Minute

sing

a) FC/16/006 Progress Update

The Chair noted that this would be covered under item FC/16/014

b) FC/16/009 Date of Next Meeting

The Chair noted that this would be covered under item FC/16/014



, - 5. Minutes of Falkirk Campus Project Board

I\:/o||‘|th | ) 10 November 2016
alle -
COI Ieée‘ 8 December 2016

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

FC/16/014 Progress Update

The Associate Principal Executive Director of Estates Development presented his
update report on progress with the development of the Falkirk estate.

He reported that discussions were ongoing with Falkirk Council in relation to their
share of the fee for the cancelled arts venue.

He updated members on progress with the approval process of the Full Business
Case (FBC) through SFC and Scottish Government approvalfchannels. He informed
members that it was still the intention to meet the OJEW tender issue ‘déadline of
25/11/16 subject to Ministerial approval as outlined in the EBC.

The Principal noted that there was significant intérest at Ministefial'and MSP level.

Members queried whether there had been anyfinterest from potential contractors.
The Associate Principal Executive Director of Estates Development confirmed that
there had been a large amount of interestfWith contractors either wanting to come
into the College to discuss the new campus_@r inviting College staff to visit recently
completed projects.

The Associate Principal Executive Director of Estates Development reported that
significant work had been progressedwith the room layouts for the new campus.

He also informed members that, post FBC completion, work was continuing on costs
for the new campus. He outlined how costs across areas were being refined but
noted that the Lollege continued to operate within the project budget.

The Assogiate Principal” Executive Director of Estates Development discussed the
process involved IN)OJEU and noted that, while it had been recorded in the previous
minttéythatthe document would need to come to the campus board for approval,
this was not actually needed in terms of project governance.

Following discussion, it was agreed that Project Board members could have sight of
the OJEU documentation if they wished.
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The Chair noted that Steven Tolson, as he was unable to make the meeting, had
submitted queries to The Associate Principal Executive Director of Estates
Development who had responded to him. He noted if there were additional
comments that these would be circulated to members.

a) Members noted the content of the report
FC/16/015 NFHC Monthly Progress Report

Colin Campbell presented members with an overview of
AECOM.

As had been reported by the Associate Principal Exec
Development, he discussed the changes to projeét.elements mpact on costs
while confirming that the overall project cost remained the same and the
overall project remained on programme.

a) Members noted the content of the re

FC/16/016 Any other competent busine

Members discussed the meetin and agreed to the removal of the 20
irmed that the next meeting of the Campus

Members als ute note the next three meeting dates. These are —
26 January

23 Febr 2
30 Marc 17
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BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Room $1.03, Stirling Campus (commencing at 4.30pm)

Present: Mrs Beth Hamilton (Chair)
Mrs Fiona Campbell
Mrs Anne Mearns

Apologies: Mr Steven Tolson
In Attendance: Mr Andrew Lawson, Associate Principal and Executive Dir, R a
Operational Effectiveness

Mr Steven Still, Head of HR
Mr Stephen Jarvie, Corporate Governance and Pl
Mrs Fiona Duff, Health and Safety Coordinator (foritem H/16/004 only)

The Associate Principal and Executive Director, HR and Operation fectiveness informed members
that items 9 and 10 on the agenda were actually the same item.

H/16/001 Declarations of Interest
None.
H/16/002 Minutes of meeting held on 10 e 2015 and 7 June 2016

The Minute of the meeting
as an accurate recor

ovember 2015 and 7 June 2016 were accepted

H/16/003 Matters arisin

a) H/15/0 te econd Cultural Survey

Principal and Executive Director, HR and Operational Effectiveness

pvided ate on the Cultural Survey, noting that the results and actions would

used to influence both strategic and operational planning. He announced that an
forum would be convened to discuss the key themes arising from the

sutvey.
H/15/018 Any Other Competent Business

The Associate Principal and Executive Director, HR and Operational Effectiveness
updated members on recent developments with National Bargaining. He confirmed
that UNISON had rejected the latest pay offer, that they intended to take further
strike action and he also outlined the positions of both the union and management
sides.
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b) H/15/015 Staff Development — August 2016

The Head of HR noted that members had requested the College investigate the
possibility of putting College staff development activity forward for externa
recognition.

He reported that the HR Department did receive a lot of recognition from pee
a number of other College’s coming to see how our systems work.

He did confirm that the College would keep an eye out for
cautioned that there was often an administrative cost to
submission would be dependent upon work levels in the

Members also noted that there were other a ollege should consider, for

example ROSPA for Health and Safety.
H/16/004 Health and Safety Update

The Health and Safety Coordi r sented a report outlining the College’s
performance against Health Sustainability.

s

She outlined key are port, noting for example that the deployment of

additional protecti uip ad reduced the number of cuts within the College.
She also bri bers’on health surveillance activity amongst staff designed to
ensure r e regularly checked based upon their individual working

rs noted the content of the report
H/16/005 Co s Overview 2015/16

The Corporate Governance and Planning Officer provided an overview of the
complaints received by the Executive Office in session 2015/16. He outlined the
continued year on year reduction in complaints received by the Executive Office and
noted that this was in part due to lessons learned from previous years complaints
and the changes to systems and processes arising from these.

Members queried how proactive the College was in seeking out complaints. The
Corporate Governance and Planning Officer outlined the complaints environment
within the College and noted that staff would always try to identify problems and
deal with any complaints as quickly as possible.

a) Members noted the content of the report
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H/16/006 Staffing Establishment Update Q4 2015/16

H/16/007

The Head of HR presented an update on the College staffing establishment for Q4
2015/16. He noted that there were two staffing establishment reports being
brought to the Committee and explained that these reports had been split to allow a
full year on year comparison between 2015/16 and 2014/15 as well as provide@n up
to date picture for the first quarter of the current year.

He outlined the key aspects within the report and noted that, in termsfof headeount;,
this had largely been consistent between the years.

He provided an overview of succession planning activity within the Cgllege and also
discussed opportunities for staff development via internal@and external secondment
and the benefits this brings to individuals and the,College as aWwhele’

Members queried the cost implications for this detivity. The Head of HR noted that
not all secondment activity was backfilled and that there was a comprehensive
review process both for the benefit to the.individual and the College of secondment
along with the cost implications of maintaining an acceptable level of service.

Members queried the level of flexible, working'within the College. The Head of HR
noted that there was a level of flexibleworking and the preferred method was for
staff to work condensed hetifsyHe cenfirmed that each request was reviewed on
individual merit and to ensure any flexible working was appropriate to the individual
role.

Members queried the methods used by the College to advertise vacancies. The Head
of HR provided antoverview of the MyJobsScotland which the College was involved
in developing.3He adtlined the significant savings this provides versus more
traditional.and other online advertising avenues.

a) Members noted the content of the report

StaffingiEstablishment Update Q1 2016/17

The Head of HR presented an update on the College staffing establishment for Q1
2016/17.

He confirmed that, overall, there had been no significant differences since the
previous quarter but noted there had been a slightly higher number of leavers than

normal. He provided details on the reasons for these.

Members queried whether staff exiting the College were questioned on their
experience. The Head of HR confirmed an exit interview is conducted.

a) Members noted the content of the report




[ ! 5. Minutes of HR (Inc. Nomination) Committee
Forth 22 November 20616

Valley

CO”ege 8 December 2016

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

H/16/008 People Strategy

The Associate Principal and Executive Director, HR and Operational Effectiveness
presented a draft, outline people strategy which looks to further develop Colleg
staff.

He noted that this was a ten year strategy and that the final version wf @
brought back to the Committee for approval.

He outlined the main points within the strategy and noted re
input to the further development of the strategy once it been fleshedyoudt more
by Senior Management and Heads of Department.

at staff i the strategy
Director, HR and Operational
ectly, there was a risk of the

Members queried whether there was a risk
negatively. The Associate Principal and Execut
Effectiveness confirmed that, if not communica
strategy causing some concern.

nificant work done and a
ade available to College staff for

He reaffirmed that the strategy w
communications plan develope for
input.

a) Members noted th ntof the report

H/16/009 Review of Risk

Members not e ntial industrial action by the College’s recognised trade
unions as a risk.

H/16/010 Comp t Business

rincipal and Executive Director, HR and Operational Effectiveness
embers that the local RPA had been signed by UNISON and it was

RPA and noted that these had arisen from elements of local activity now being
red under national bargaining.
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BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Boardroom, Falkirk Campus (commencing at 4.30pm)

Present:

In Attendance:

Mrs Lorna Dougall (Chair)
Mr Colin Alexander
Mr Liam McCabe (for items A/16/012 and A/16/013)

Mrs Alison Stewart, Associate Principal and Executive Director of Finance
Mr Stephen Jarvie, Corporate Governance and Planning Officer

Mrs Irene Andrew, Head of Finance (for items A/16/012 and A/16/013)
Mr Gary Devlin, Scott Moncrieff

Ms Claire Beattie, Scott Moncrieff

Mr Steven McNaught, Henderson Loggie

Mr Keith McPherson, Ernst & Young

The Chair informed members that, in order to ensure quorum forthe approval of item A/16/013,
Liam McCabe was being co-opted onto the Committee for that itemdShe also informed members
that the joint items A/16/012 and A/16/013 would be considered\first.

A/16/012

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2015/16
(Joint item with Finance Committee)

The Associate Principal and Exeecutive ‘Director of Finance presented the Annual
Report and Financial Statementsi2015/16 for approval.

She noted that the (prepatation/of the accounts had been challenging with the
implications ofithe new Statement Of Recommended Practice (SORP) and FRS 102 to
be taken into account. She highlighted the work done by the Finance team under the
Head of Finanee.

She informed members that the new reporting standard made the figures look more
challenging than they actually were and that neither the College nor the External
Auditorsthad “any issues with describing the College as a going concern. She
confirmed that the College was continuing to be strong in cash generation, had
achieved a better outturn for the year than had been budgeted and had met
government resource allocation requirements.

Jhe Chair of the Finance Committee congratulated the Assistant Principal and
Executive Director of Finance and the Head of Finance for pulling together the
financial statements and securing a clean audit report in this challenging year of
transition. The Chair of Finance also noted that there were concerns as to how the
changes to the accounts as a result of applying new technical changes under FRS 102
would look externally to the sector but noted that the College had no choice but to
implement this.

Members noted that the changes did make the accounts appear challenging and
invited both internal and external auditors to comment on the accounts and raise
any concerns they might have.
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A/16/013

A/

A/16/016

A/16/017

No concerns were raised.

Members requested an update regarding the existing covenants with Barclays Bank.
The Associate Principal and Executive Director of Finance confirmed that the Colleg
was in breach of the covenants and that Barclays were aware of the reason.

removal of the covenants.

The Chair asked for clarity over the use of the term ‘excepti
have appeared in the accounts for more than a year.
Loggie, confirmed that in his professional opinion these
‘exceptional’ items.

a) Members approved Annual Report and Financial'Statements 2015/16

Draft External Audit Annual Report to the Boa
(Joint item with Finance Committee)

Mr McNaught, Henderson Loggi re d annual report from the College
external auditors. He highlighted, th I had been satisfactory and outlined
the audit adjustments which had n e.

He confirmed that Hendé ggie planned to issue an unqualified audit opinion

for the accounts.

a) Members a ve content of the draft external audit annual report to the
Board of

larations of Interest

None

Minute of Audit Committee of 15 September 2016

The Minute of 15 September 2016 was approved as accurate.
Matters Arising

a) A/15/021 Internal Audit Programme Progress Report
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The Chair requested an update on progress with the arrangement of a risk session
for the Board. The Associate Principal and Executive Director of Finance noted that
an hour had been put aside at the upcoming Board meeting for risk but, following
discussion with the internal auditors, it was agreed that this time was insufficient.

Members discussed what they would anticipate the risk training to be and
agreed that Gary Devlin, Scott Moncrieff, would prepare a risk session p

which would be circulated to members for comment. a
b) A/16/006 Presentation of Internal Audit Reports

The Associate Principal and Executive Director of Finance confirmed that the SFC
returns internal audit had been circulated to Finance Com e me rs.

A/16/018 Presentation of Internal Audit Reports

Gary Devlin presented the Review of the 201
noted that the controls reviewed had bee

@

s data return report. He
d only one very minor point

a)
A/16/019 Progress Report on Audit R
The Corporate Gov nning Officer presented the update on progress
against audit
He noted endation (IT Security Policy) was seeking an extension
and outlj for this.
a)
A/16/020

The! Associate Principal and Executive Director of Finance presented the current
tegic Risk Register.

She noted that the risk surrounding funding allocation levels had been increased
over concerns on future funding levels.

She also reported that two new risks relating to the Apprenticeship Levy and
Foundation Apprenticeships had been added and outlined the reasons for these.

Members queried what activity the College was undertaking to mitigate against
anticipated funding level reductions. The Associate Principal and Executive Director
of Finance outlined actions being taken by the College to grow non-SFC income via
commercial work, international developments and fundraising.
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a) Members noted the content of the report
A/16/021 Board Effectiveness Review

The Associate Principal and Executive Director of Finance outlined the requiremen

Once the proposal had been develope
members for comment.

a) Members noted the content o r t

A/16/022 Review of Risk

Members noted the riisks a d in the papers.
A/16/023 Any Other Co ent iness

None.

O
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Room $1.18, Stirling Campus (commencing at 4.30pm)

Present: Mr Liam McCabe (Chair)
Mr Andrew Carver

Mrs Pamela Duncan
Mrs Caryn Jack
Apologies: Mr Ken Richardson
na

In Attendance: Mrs Alison Stewart, Associate Principal and Executive Direc
Mrs Irene Andrew, Head of Finance
Ms Louise Burnett, Finance Manager (F/16/016 Only)
Mr Keith McPherson, Ernst & Young

The Chair welcomed Keith McPherson to the meeting. The Associate Principal and
Executive Director of Finance noted that Mr M was representing Ernst &
Young who would be the College’s incoming ex ors.

F/16/010 Declarations of Interest

The Chair declared an interest
of Stirling in relation to certain
Council (SFC) HEI funded

th between the College and University
| courses and under the Scottish Funding

He also declared an_inter ion to item F/16/013 by virtue of being a Board
member of ARUC

F/16/011 eld on 13 October 2016.
eeting held on 13 October 2016 were approved, subject to a
attendance list.
F/16/012

a)F/16/006 FRS 102 Accounting Policies

Members requested an update on FRS 102 following the last meeting. The Associate
Principal and Executive Director of Finance reported that advice had been sought
from the auditors and the Scottish Funding Council and the decision had been taken
to prepare the accounts on an accruals basis. There had also been engagement with
the Chair on this issue. The consensus was that the College should adopt the
accruals method of accounting for capital grants which was its current practice.
While this would weaken the College’s balance sheet, given the College’s staus
under ONS this was considered to be less of an issue than adopting the
perfromamce method in which the depreciation charge would be significantly
greater.
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F/16/013

a)

F/16/014

The Chair noted that the decision on which basis to prepare the accounts had been
an outstanding approval item from the last meeting and asked members if they
were content to approve the policies used to prepare the accounts.

Members approved the accounting policies.
b) F/15/031 Budget 2016-17

Members requested an update in relation to the Raploch community campus: The
Associate Principal and Executive Director of Finance provide@'an'overview of recent
discussions with Stirling Council and noted that it was hopgéd to reach anexit'point in
early 2017. She also provided an overview of the anticipated savings\from the exit.
It was pointed out that the College would continue to have'@presence in the raploch
campus and it was from catering provisionthat thie,exit was beingiplanned.

Procurement Strategy 2016-2018

The Procurement Manager, Paul Johnsten@lwhodis,on secondment to the college
from APUC presented the updated ProcurementsStrategy for approval. He outlined
the requirement for an update to, the strategy as a result of the Procurement
Reform Act and confirmed thatithe College'métthe requirements set out in the Act.
He informed members that the Strategy:would be published on the College website
as required by the act andsdthatannual,reviews would be conducted and that these
would also be published.

Members requestedian overview of the College procurement processes which the
Procurement Manager previded.

Membersiendorsed the policy for Board of Management approval

AnnuahReport and Financial Statements 2015/16
(Joint item with Audit Committee)

The“AsSociate Principal and Executive Director of Finance presented the Annual
Report and Financial Statements 2015/16 for approval.

She noted that the preparation of the accounts had been challenging with the
implications of the new Statement Of Recommended Practice (SORP) and FRS 102 to
be taken into account. She highlighted the work done by the Finance team under the
Head of Finance.

She informed members that the new reporting standard made the figures look more
challenging than they actually were and that neither the College nor the External
Auditors had any issues with describing the College as a going concern. She
confirmed that the College was continuing to be strong in cash generation, had
achieved a better outturn for the year than had been budgeted and had met
government resource allocation requirements.
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The Chair of the Finance Committee congratulated the Assistant Principal and
Executive Director of Finance and the Head of Finance for pulling together the
financial statements and securing a clean audit report in this challenging year of
transition. The Chair of Finance also noted that there were concerns as to how th
changes to the accounts as a result of applying new technical changes under FR
would look externally to the sector but noted that the College had no choic
implement this.

Members noted that the changes did make the accounts appear c
invited both internal and external auditors to comment o cco
any concerns they might have.

No concerns were raised.

updated members on progress towards t
that, while this was a Barclay’s, decis ollege continues to push for the
removal of the covenants.

The Chair asked for clarity over t
have appeared in the acg
Loggie, confirmed that i
‘exceptional’ items.

e term ‘exceptional items’ for items that
re than a year. Mr McNaught, Henderson
ssional opinion these items should be classed as

a) Members a ed ual Report and Financial Statements 2015/16

F/16/015 Draft Ex

it ual Report to the Board of Management
it Committee)

g Henderson Loggie, presented the annual report from the College
auditors. He highlighted that all testing had been satisfactory and outlined

adjustments which had been made.

confirmed that Henderson Loggie planned to issue an unqualified audit opinion
for the accounts.

a) Members approved the content of the draft external audit annual report to the
Board of Management

16/016 Student Funding 2016/17

The Finance Manager presented a report outlining the performance for 2015/16 and
anticipated activity for 2016/17.
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a)

F/16/017

a)

F/16/018

She outlined the challenges facing student funding owing to reductions in funding
levels and confirmed that the College had submitted a bid for further ‘in-year’
funding to support anticipated activity levels.

Members queried what the College would do if additional funding was not
available. The Finance Manager confirmed that, in this case, the College wo

noted that this would impact on individuals’ ability to attend.

The Associate Principal and Executive Director of Finance a
could seek to redistribute funds from Net Depreciation
confirmed that this funding had already been allocated
moving funds to student funding.

Members noted the content of the report and ested an update once it was
known if the College would receive additional f

Budget Monitoring - 2016/17 Qtr 1 (Oct

report for the first quarter of 2016/17.
current funding levels and other
is time.

She highlighted that the C
assumptions, was anticipating a

She confirmed that SMT looking into this and that a decision had been
taken to stop all pending. She also reported that she would be
working with jate P pal and Executive Director of Finance to meet with
eview their budget and free up unallocated funds. The
adverse budget varainace of £325k was due to shortfalls

ings. The Committee was informed that all reasonable
e to recover the position as far as was possible.

mbers noted the risks in relation to student funding and the current outturn
position.

Any other competent business

None
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Boardroom, Falkirk Campus (commencing at 4.30pm)

Present: Mrs Anne Mearns (Chair)
Mr Alan Buchan, Student Association President

Mrs Fiona Campbell

Mr Andrew Carver

Mrs Lorna Dougall

Mrs Caryn Jack

Mr Scott Harrison O

Apologies: Mr Liam McCabe
Ms Amy Scobbie, Student Association

In Attendance: Mr David Allison, Associate Principal an ecutive Di formation
Services and Communication
Mrs Colette Filippi, Associate Principal tive Director Business
Development
Mr Stephen Jarvie, Corporate Go C nning Officer
The Chair welcomed Mr Scott Harrison to his first meeti the'Strategic Development Committee.
She also noted that Ms Amy Scobbie had i o the Board and would also be a

Committee member.

S/16/013 Declarations of Interest
None &
S/16/014 Minute of tin Id.on 8 September 2016

S/16/015

2 Chair noted that, as requested, the strategy would be going to the upcoming
Board of Management meeting for approval.

b) S/16/007 Student Association Plan
The Chair noted that this would be updated under item S/16/018
c) S/16/009 Student Recruitment Monitoring Report

The Chair noted that an update would be provided under S/16/019
S/16/012 Any Other Competent Business
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S/16/016

S/16/017

The Chair confirmed that the Foundation Grant request had been circulated
electronically to members and that approval had been given.

Falkirk Council - Representation within the Community Planning Leadership
Structure

The Associate Principal and Executive Director Information Services \and
Communication presented a request from Falkirk Council for a memberofithe Board
to be nominated for the Community Planning Strategic Board. He noted that the
Principal had volunteered to serve on the Executive Board.

He outlined the work of the Community Planning Partnership (CPP) and the relation
between the proposed role and the remainder of the management structure. The
Chair gave a brief outline of her role within Stirlifig CPP, statingth@ positives for the
College of involvement,

a) Members recommended that the Callege be represented by a Board
member.

b) Members recommended, that [this dtem be taken to the full Board of
Management to give all membersdn opportunity to volunteer.

c) Members requested that, if possible;ithe paper to the Board include a remit

for the strategic group
Business Development Quarterly Report

The Associate/Principaland Executive Director Business Development presented the
first of a series'of quarterly reports on the activity of the Business Development
function within the'Cellege and the contributions made to income targets.

She outlined a number of challenges being faced by the College which included a
reddiction inltModern Apprenticeship (MA) levels in areas such as Engineering owing
to employers ‘not committing to the scheme despite high level of interest from
yaung people to undertake an MA.

She reported that some areas of commercial activity had declined owing to the loss
of key staff and outlined the plans to address the shortfall.

She also provided an update on International activity and outlined the areas the
College is actively pursuing.

In relation to fundraising she confirmed that, as raised by the Finance Committee,
the original target for fundraising had been too ambitious and a more realistic target
had now been budgeted for.

Members queried the timelines noted in the paper for work in conjunction with
some HE institutions, noting that these seemed to be tight to allow for proper
recruitment. The Associate Principal and Executive Director Business Development
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confirmed that the College was aware of this for this year and outlined the plans to
mitigate this.

Members also requested, in relation to joint HE activity, that the College ensure th
student support mechanisms between the institutions were coordinated.

activity, although contributing financially to the
our students.

Members requested that futurg, Busi opment and Fundraising reports
include not only the financial ben b te benefits to students, the College
and the wider community.

Is in the paper were too high given the level
] that the risk would reduce once the mitigating
their impact assessed.

Members queried whethe
of mitigation outlined. It
actions had been im

a) Memb otedithe content of the report

S/16/018 Student ort and Update on Operational Plan

sociation President updated members on the activity of the Student
e the last meeting of the Committee.

oted that Karen Williams had resigned from the Student Association and that
her activities would be distributed to the other members of the Student Association
c team.

He informed members that this had had an impact on the Student Association
Operating Plan and that an update would be brought to the next meeting.

He outlined other activities including increased student engagement and use of
social media by the team. He also highlighted the significant increase in interest in
the Mental Health First Aid training offered by Amy Scobbie and that there were
currently over 200 people interested in attending a training session.
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He discussed the recent round of Student Council meetings and confirmed that the
Student Association Strategic Plan had been approved by members. This plan would
be circulated once final collation was complete.

a) Members noted the content of the report and the significant amou
work undertaken by the team

S/16/019 Outcome Agreement Self Evaluation 2015-16
The Associate Principal and Executive Director Inf € and
Communication presented the Outcome Agreement Self which
had been considered and approved by a subgroup of Co ers. Thanks
were given to Fiona Campbell, Alan Buchan and Anne eir work in

reviewing the document.

Members noted the increased numbers in part
at Finance Committee there had been a disc
childcare funding. She confirmed the Co ere
through in-tear re-allocation to meet th wa demand.

a) Members noted the c nt'ofith

S/16/020 Outcome Agreement Targe

The Associate Pri a ecutive Director Information Services and
Communicati ted the“draft target document. He noted that this had been
based of revis ida received from SFC.

the targets were all set by SFC. The Associate Principal and
nformation Services and Communication responded that the

queried why some target levels appeared to be lower than previous years.
Thel Associate Principal and Executive Director Information Services and

munication noted that, in previous years, targets had been expressed as wSUMs
but were now expressed as Credits. The conversion between these two different
types was not straightforward and did make the figures look slightly out of
alignment.

a) Members noted the content of the report
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S/16/021 Operational Plan Monitoring

The Associate Principal and Executive Director Information Services and
Communication presented an update on the College’s progress against Operation

Plan targets. He noted that the areas which were not classified as green related
those challenges in Business Development, and pressures on the overall ¢
budget, as covered in the earlier report.

a) Members noted the content of the report

$/16/022 Student Activity

The Associate Principal and Executive Director In ervices and
Communication presented an update on studentiactivity leve oted that, after
the Credits gap highlighted at the last committee ecially in relation to some HE
courses, there had been significant alternative ndertaken and planned to
address the Credits gap.

He confirmed that the overall position to this time last year and that the
College was confident of meeting their s target.

Members queried the disparity weenyapplication figures and enrolments. The
Associate Principal and Exe or Information Services and Communication
noted that, for a variet not all applications result in interviews or places

Members ask the as a way to filter the applicants to determine if they are
active or e Principal and Executive Director Information Services

and Co ed that this measure is used for internal reporting, and
would an additional measure in future application reports to the
C
a mbers noted the content of the report

S/16/023 Reyiew of Risk

Risk was highlighted within individual papers.
16 Any Other Competent Business

None




[ \ 6. Annual Report and Financial Statements

Forth For Approval

Valley
CO”e)ée 8 December 2016

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

1. Purpose

To present to members the Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year to 31 July
2016.
2. Recommendation

Members consider the financial position of the College for the year ended 31 6
approve the Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 20

3. Background

The Office for National Statistics (ONS) reclassification of FE Colleges e in ffect from 1
April 2014. There are a number of significant implications resulting from assification not
least the inability to retain surplus cash without this in effec ing frozen due to government
resource budgeting restrictions.

The Annual Report and Financial Statements haveffbeén d in accordance with the
Accounts Direction issued by the Scottish Funding a ih August 2015 which requires the
College to comply with the Statement ended Practice: Accounting for Further and
Higher Education issued in July 2015 (201 corporates the requirements of the

Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102, the Public Finance Manual (SPFM) and the
Scottish Government’s Financial Repop ReM).

The SPFM and FReM both re disclosures. Key changes from previous year’s
disclosures is the incorporati mance Report in place of the Operating and Financial

Review.

4. Key Considerations

as required changes to accounting policies, the key ones being in relation to the
ment of Government Grants and Financial Instruments both of which have had a significant
impact on these Financial Statements. This combined with the government accounting
restrictions on the ability to retain cash surpluses due to resource budgeting restrictions means
it is becoming increasingly difficult to present the College’s financial position in a way which
informs readers of the true underlying financial sustainability of the College.

The key consideration for members of Forth Valley College Board of Management is the long
term financial sustainability of the College. This is referred to within the Annual Report and
Financial Statements as the College continuing to operate on a “going concern” basis. Under the




[ \ 6. Annual Report and Financial Statements

I\:/O'ilth For Approval
alle
CO”e)ée‘ 8 December 2016

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

current reporting regime previous indicators such as reporting an operating surplus and having a
strong Balance Sheet with net assets are no longer achievable. This does not however mean
that the College is financially unsustainable.

The key measure the Board of Management should focus on going forward is the College’s
ability to generate cash from its day to day operational activities and that it can meet its
liabilities as they fall due. The impact of non-cash technical accounting adjustments whileithey
are relevant to some extent should be excluded when assessing the College’s financial'strength

The Financial Performance section of the Performance Report providesf@ detailed review/of the
College’s financial performance for the year ended 31 July 2016 and/its financial position at 31
July 2016. The key points to note are

e The actual outturn was an increased operational sdrplus of £699k“against the original
budget, excluding non-cash adjustments and the estates development cost.

o The net liability position reported in the Balance Sheet is distorted due to the technical
accounting adjustments in relation to the tré€atment ofggovernment capital grants and
pension liabilities. Also, the impact,of reclassification where surplus cash has been
donated to an arm’s length foundationyor 'spent to support the estates development
programme impacts on the net liabilities.) The“impact of this is demonstrated in the
Financial Performance section of the Performamce Analysis report.

e The external auditors are content there are no going concern issues as the underlying
financial position has beehn cleagly,. demonstrated.

5. Financial Implications

SFC guidance states,that forthe financial period ended 31 July 2016 Colleges are permitted to
report deficits equivalent to“the net depreciation figure (£608k) and pension charges of
(£1,073k) and4FRS102 adjustments of (£441k), totalling a net deficit of (£2,122k). The reported
operating deficit of (£2,085k) means that FVC falls within these guidelines.

Reporting a deficit'does have implications however, and to counter any queries or concerns by
the useks of the Financial Statements, SFC have issued a statement of assurance for Colleges to
incanporateginto their Financial Statements for the financial period ended 31 July 2016. This
statement stated the deficit should be viewed as a “technical” deficit and should not be
interpreted, on its own, as a challenge to the College’s on-going financial sustainability. The full
Statement is in Note 36 of the Accounts.

6¢ Banking Covenants
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7. Equalities
Assessment in Place? — N/A
8. Risk

Please indicate on the matrix below the risk score. Risk is scored against Impact and Likelihood
as Very Low through to Very High.

Likelihood | Impact
Very High X
High
Medium X
Low
Very Low

Due to the implementation of FRS 102 in terms of the accounting treatment of certain items and
the required changes to presentation, the college’s d@nderlyingfiRancial health is being masked.
There is a risk that those not familiar with the technical aspects of Financial Statements will
misinterpret the state of the College’s financial health. Ih" mitigation of this it needs to be
stressed that both the Board of Management, SFCiand the external auditors are in agreement
that there is no going concern issue.

Risk Owner — Alison Stewart Action Owner - Irene Andrew

Paper Author — Alison Stewart SMT Owner — Alison Stewart
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The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue on 8 December 2016.
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PERFORMANCE REPORT
OVERVIEW

Principal and Chief Executive’s statement

In 2015/16, thanks to the dedication of our staff and the hard work of our students, the College has continued to
live up to its mission of “Making Learning Work”.

the inability to retain surpluses owing to reclassification as a public body have underlined the need

The year has not been without its challenges. Continued ‘flat cash’ awards from the Scottish Funding Co %
management of College resource to minimise the impact on our students.

priority for the College. We are grateful for the continued support from existing
opportunity to work with new partners locally, nationally and internationally.

iver a new F dquarters campus
to the standard of our Alloa and Stirling campuses. 2015/16 saw t cottish Government reaffirm their
j apital project. We are excited to
e new campus in 2019 for our
students.

In 2015/16 the College also successfully undertook a Ed Scoatland review. The review confirmed that
the College’s commitment to Creative Learning istkey a in e resources on hand and to generate a
worthwhile learning experience for students across ve study. Our staff have fully embraced the benefits
to be gained from creative learning and this has led re aging learning experience for students.

Further external recognition of the work of e includes the College winning the TES Innovation in
Learning and Teaching Award, a numb f e visits from Scottish Ministers and Gold awards for
Essential Skills and Creative Learning at Colleg elopment Network awards.

Overall I am proud of how we have he lenges facing us and have continued to deliver for students, our
staff and other College stake

Dr Ken Thomson
Principal an

8 December 2016

\30
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Vision, purpose and activities
Legal Status

Forth Valley College came into being on 1 August 2005 as a result of the merger of Clackmannan and Falkirk
Colleges. The Office for National Statistics (ONS) reclassified all incorporated FE Colleges as central government
entities, to be referred to as Arm’s Length Public Bodies from 1 April 2014. The College is a registered charity
(Scottish Charity number SC021191) for the purposes of the Law Reform (Miscellaneous Provisions) (Scotland)
Act 2005.

The Financial Statements cover all activities of the College.

Mission Statement

The College Mission Statement is: Making Learning Work
College Vision

The College Vision is: Shaping the Future
Delivering a World €lass Service
Driving Our Momghtum

Strategic Themes

Forth Valley College of Further and Higher Education has,6 key strategic themes for the period 2014-2018. These
are:

e Creating a superb environment for learning

e Cultivating a vibrant learning organisationy,where,learners develop skills, achieve qualifications valued

by industry and progress seamlessly

e Instilling an energy and passion for, oUr, people, celebrating success and innovation

e Leading as a business that is a ghampionifor governance, financial control and balanced risk taking

e Enhancing our position asithe business and community partner of choice

e Delivering a whole systenmapproach. Simply effective, efficient and consistent.

Performance Sumgiary
2015/16 was a strong'yeanfor the,College as we continued to progress our vision of ‘Making Learning Work'.

Creating a superb environment for learning — We have continued to invest in our estates ensuring we offer the
best possible learning“eAvironment for our students. The College is now progressing with a strategy to build a
new £83m Falkirk Headquarters campus, supported by a £70m grant from Scottish Government.

A_full Technical Team were appointed following relevant procurement exercises to assist the College in the
preparation‘@f the Full Business Case (FBC). This document was completed and submitted to Scottish Funding
Coungihin September 2016 and was formally approved by Scottish Government in November 2016. Extensive
internaliconsultation has also occurred along with public events and meetings with key external stakeholders.
The College has agreed to purchase land, conditional on final FBC approval, next to the existing intended site for
the new campus. The Application for Approval of Matters Specified in Conditions (detailed planning permission)
was also submitted in September 2016.

Throughout the process, governance arrangements have been in place with a specialist Falkirk Campus Project
Board established to oversee progress. The Falkirk Campus Project Board comprises members of the Board of
Management, a dedicated College Project Team, along with representation from College staff and the Scottish
Futures Trust.
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Our new campuses in Alloa and Stirling also continue to perform well, with high demand for the accommodation
and positive feedback from students, staff, the local community and visitors on the quality of the facilities we
offer.

Cultivating a vibrant learning organisation where learners develop skills, achieve qualifications valued by
industry and progress seamlessly — This theme is fundamental to ensuring we live up to our mission statement
of “Making Learning Work”.

In 2015/2016 we further developed our Curriculum Review process to ensure that our future curriculdm
developments continue to meet the needs of the employers of Forth Valley and beyond and to take full aceeunt
of national priorities, such as the Scottish Government’s Youth Employment Strategy and the latest available
information about regional skills needs.

In 2015/2016 the College further developed its cutting edge Creative Learning initiative, with @ver 60\members
of staff participating in a Creative Learning Action Community, through which theyswere supported jto work
collaboratively with colleagues, across departmental boundaries, to design and facilitate innovative and value-
added learning experiences for their students. This initiative is proving so successful thathin 2015/2016 it
attracted two high profile sector awards — the College Development Network Learhing and Teaching Award and
the TES FE Award for Best Teaching and Learning Initiative.

We continued to operate our successful “Listening to Learners” focus group. process, through which over 2,500
students contributed their views and helped to shape learning withinftheir{@rogrammes of study. Satisfaction
levels remain very high across all of the factors included on the focus group agendas.

Finally, in May 2016 the college’s quadrennial Education Scatland external review report was published. The
report highlighted a sector-leading nineteen areas of\pesitive practiceland three examples of Excellence, along
with two areas for development, which were already,embedded within the college’s future plans. The full report
can be viewed on the Education Scotland website at this link
http://www.educationscotland.gov.uk/inspectionandreview/reports/othersectors/collegereviews/ForthValleyCo

llege.asp

Instilling an energy and passion for our people,icelebrating success and innovation — This year the College was
the only Scottish College to achiéve the highly prestigious TES award for Best Teaching and Learning Initiative.
This accolade once again put the College injan excellent position to develop further its ambition of recognising
and celebrating success in creative learning.

Staff development processSes have also been revamped and have proved to be successful in their innovative
approach in engaging staff ‘and creating a platform of ownership and pride in the delivery of learning and
teaching as well asfin increasing the knowledge base, skills and industrial experience of employees. The staff
development theme of Creative Learning develops into its next stage of innovation and has seen staff
throughout thegoerganisation embracing this in their practice. The Ambassador role within the College has also
moved ontd the next stage with an interactive web page and blog which captures the benefits of representing
Forth Valley College ‘at a wide range of national and international events. This also gives more opportunities for
staffdo Fepresent.the College at a wide range of national and international events.

The total response rate for our second cultural survey was 340 completed surveys, which is around 54% of the
collegerestablishment. This figure is a slight drop of around 2.3% from the previous survey. Overall engagement
of the cultural survey was extremely positive - achieving over 80% engagement across all 9 sections. Discussions
are now in place to provide an action plan which will highlight key targets from the survey and focus on
improvements.

Forth Valley College has officially been accredited as a UK Living Wage Employer.

Leading as a business that is a champion for governance, financial control and balanced risk taking — The Board
of Management approved the adoption of the Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges in March 2015.
The College continues to work within this framework. During the year the College started a recruitment process
for new Board members in line with the Sector Board Appointments: 2014 Ministerial Guidance. The
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appointments of 2 non-executive members were approved by Scottish Ministers in November 2016. A formal
induction process has been completed by all members appointed before November 2016. Those appointed
thereafter will complete their induction by the end of January 2017.

A full report on the College’s financial performance is included within the Performance Analysis section of this
report. The adoption of FRS102 for the first time has had a significant impact on the presentation of the financial
statements. Overall the College’s financial health continues to be strong which is demonstrated by the ability to
generate significant levels of cash surplus on the day to day operational activities of the College. In 2015/16 this
has been used to support our estates development programme for a new Falkirk campus. As an arms -length
public body the College is not expected to retain reserves for future investment and is required to balance,its
Resource Budget.

Enhancing our position as the business and community partner of choice — Strong employer andystakeholder
relationships are key to ensuring we maintain our position as a partner of choice. This has béen a challenging
year with the impact of the oil price drop when many of our partners have been advetsely affected. We have
however successfully managed to maintain and develop some key relationships; sith Engineering ConStruction
Industry Training Board (ECITB) we delivering a pre apprenticeship programmeg alongside thie apprenticeship
programme to ensure the talent is available when the oil and gas sector starts to recover. With Forth Electrical
Services (FES) we have developed a bespoke management and leadership programme to provide a progression
route for their apprenticeship programme. We have also maintaided our position#as”a leading Modern
Apprenticeship provider in the sector building on the engineering provision locally and have successfully
extended our reach with the local SME market. Additionally we havé develeped our Vocational Qualification
delivery direct to employers and are expanding this activity in a number of areas.

Partnerships are core to the College’s vision of Making Learning: Work™both nationally and internationally.
Relationships and collaborations have developed withyboth nationalforganisations like CBI (Confederation of
British Industry) and SCDI (Scottish Council for Developmentiand Industry), and international ones like CBBC
(China-Britain Business Council), SDI (Scottish Developmentihternational), the BC (British Council) as well as the
University of Stirling and Glasgow Caledonian Universitya The international connections have created a sound
platform from which we are building internatighal activity and we have delivered COMPEX courses in Ghana and
developed a skills partnership with educationallinstitutesiin Iraq.

All the relationships and activitiegywith ‘our key employers and stakeholders have generated a tangible benefit to
the College supporting and making a contriution towards its financial sustainability.

Delivering a whole systemdapproach. Simply effective, efficient and consistent — We have continued to
maximise the benefit fromiithe significant investment in the College’s ICT infrastructure over recent years. The
amount of material availableiia our*Moodle VLE has increased, providing increased flexibility and allowing
learners to take control of theirown learning. This has been supported by increased use of the Eduroam service
which enables students to bring in their own laptops and smartphones which can access College resources via
the College wirelessnetwork.

We have continually improved our online application process, supported by the functionality for applicants to
createélapbespoke_prospectus on our website, to provide a clear and supportive system to new and returning
students.“3We have embedded our online student funding application which significantly improved the
application precess and helped to ensure faster decision making and communication to students. We also
developed a schools portal in partnership with Falkirk Council, which allows local schools to see real-time
infermation on school pupil applications to the College, which we hope will enable enhanced dialogue between
alllpartners to enable students to successfully transition onto their correct course.

Through the development of a College Data dashboard we expanded the amount and range of real-time
information available to appropriate staff throughout our organisation, and we have continued to develop our
HR systems to allow staff access to a self-service “My Staff Record” area. For students we have further
developed “My Info” to provide real-time access to initially timetable and attendance information, with the
ability to access this portal from any mobile device.



Forth Valley College Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 July 2016

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The College recognises the need to take informed and calculated risks to allow for the growth of the College.
The College has comprehensive risk management systems in place to ensure that risks are fully analysed and
receive the appropriate level of approval before activity commences. All risks identified within the College are
monitored on an on-going basis and specialist registers are created for large individual projects such as estates
developments.

The College has updated the strategic risk register to reflect the recent changes across the sector. The regi
provides details of individual risks, their potential consequences and the mitigating actions put in
manage these risks.

The College has robust risk management processes in place to ensure relevant risks are capture
(where possible) mitigated against. The College maintains a register of strategic risks which
each meeting of the Audit Committee as well as being reported to the Board of Man t.

At this time, the top risks on the Strategic Risk Register are —

e There will be inadequate facilities for learners due to lack of capital investment

e  Failure to successfully exit from the current contractual obligations for th co rray on the West
Block will negatively impact on College finances and estates de

e Strike action arising from National Bargaining negotiations wi pact on the learning and teaching
provision for students

e The current economic environment including Brexit will i
commercial income

e Uncertainty over future SFC funding levels whic tsgon curriculum planning and financial
sustainability.

College’s ability to generate

Going concern

The net liability position reported in these Financial statements is due to the adoption of Financial Reporting
Standard (FRS)102 which resulted in th ification of Capital Government Grants previously treated as
Reserves to Liabilities due gre e net liabilities include a Pension Provision for early
retirements of £7.3m and Pensio 16.8m for College’s share of the Falkirk Council Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS). To the ext pension deficit is not met from the College’s other sources of
income, it may only be met
under the normal conventi to parliamentary control over income and expenditure, such grants may
rd of Management of Forth Valley College has no reason to believe that

ing. Given the above it has accordingly been considered appropriate to adopt
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PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

Performance Indicators

The College has adopted the core set of performance indicators which were developed by the Colleges' Finance
Community of Practice. The table below details performance in 2015/16 and 2014/15.

Year Period
Ended
31 July
2016
Operating surplus as % of total income: surplus on continuing activities after -6.2%
depreciation of assets at valuation and loss of revaluation of land and buildings,
and before disposal of assets and tax expressed as percentage of total income.
Non SFC Income as % of total income: total of non-SFC income expressed as a 3 27.4%
percentage of total income.
Current assets : current liabilities: ratio of total current assets to the total of 0/65:1 0.69:1
creditors: amounts falling due within one year.
Days cash: cash and short-term investments divided by total expenditure les 11 14
depreciation and expressed in days.
Staff turnover: FTE staff on a permanent contract of employment tha 4% 4%
whatever reason during the year divided by the total FTE permanen
college at the period end.
Working days lost through sickness absence: Workin S 2% 3%
through sickness absence divided by the total FTEs employ the itution at
the period end (expressed as percentage).
WSUMs per staff FTE: actual WSUMs delivered.inithe year per FES return divided N/A 457
by total of FTEs involved in delivery of WSU
Credits per staff FTE: actual Credits he year per FES return divided 329 N/A
by total of FTEs involved in delivery o
Performance against Credi wSs activity target: actual Credits / WSUMs
delivered in the year divide target its / WSUMs. 100% 100%
Year Period
Ended Ended
31 July 31 July
2016 2015
es;dtotal enrolments for students completing programme with a FE Full time 70% 70%
ua on aim, expressed as a percentage of all enrolments (per the FE Part time 91% 88%
taff performance indicator publication). HE Full time 75% 79%
HE Part time 88% 89%
tudent retention: measures number of enrolments for which the student has FE Full time 75% 77%
mpleted the programme, expressed as a percentage of all enrolments (per the FE Part time 95% 97%
tudent and staff performance indicator publication). HE Full time 83% 86%
HE Part time 92% 95%
Early student retention: measures the number of enrolments for which the FE Full time 96% 95%
student has reached the 25% date for funding purposes, expressed as a FE Part time 99% 99%
percentage of all enrolments (per the student and staff performance indicator HE Full time 98% 97%
publication). HE Part time 99% 98%
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Current & Future Developments

We continue to rigorously review our overall curriculum portfolio, in the light of local and national skills priorities
and sustain an excellent reputation with our employers, delivering industry-relevant courses within our
campuses and bespoke training on employers’ premises. We value these close links and utilise employer input
to maintain the vocational relevance of the training we offer, and to secure the future employability of our
learners.

A continued specific focus for curriculum development during 2015/2016 was the Developing the Young
Workforce agenda and the associated Scottish Government Youth Employment Strategy, which set outgseven
year plans for schools, colleges, apprenticeships, employers and equality.

One target within the Strategy is to increase the percentage of school pupils achieving vocationaliqualifications
at SCQF level 5 or above. In pursuit of this aim, the College continued to develop and expand its portfolio of
qualifications at SCQF levels 5-7 for senior phase school pupils from our three partn@mlocal authorities. This
included a sixth HNC course and two pathfinder offerings of the newly developed £oundation AppreatiCeships in
Social Services and Healthcare and Children and Young People.

In terms of learning and teaching, in 2016/17 we will maintain our strong focus on_developing a culture of
creativity in learning, using a lively and engaging Creative Learning Conference for staffin August 2016 as a
catalyst for all staff to develop personal objectives for creative learning which will be formalised and monitored
through our PRD process throughout the year. In 2016/17 we willf@lso build on the success of our current
Learning Strategy: Empowering Learners and develop this into a new, future-fecused Creative Learning and
Learning Technology Strategy for 2017 - 2022, ensuring that wegare, fullyaprepared to maximise the benefits to
learning and teaching that our new Falkirk Campus will bring.

In terms of curriculum, we will continue to rigorously review ounfutdre portfolio to ensure that it fully reflects
SDS regional skills plans, maximises employer engagement andydelivers on our Outcome Agreement targets. This
will include further development of vocational previsionifor senior phase school pupils, including further SDS
funded Foundation Apprenticeships. We will/also continue to work closely with our HEI partners to maximise
success and progression on our existing integrated degree programmes and to develop additional articulation
agreements for HN graduates.

We are also continuing to developithe Graduate Level Apprenticeship with Heriot Watt and Glasgow Caledonian
University in Instrumentationand Control, Mechanical and Electrical engineering. We are now part of the
Technical Expert Group driving forward theframeworks for this programme and will seek to deliver in 2017/18.

Internationally we areseennecting with the University of Stirling and Glasgow Caledonian University to offer a 2
plus 2 degree programme to international students in Biological Sciences and Engineering. The international
students will be students of|the university for the 4 year period with the college delivering years 1 and 2. This
model will besbasedon ourhighly successful integrated degree programmes and other courses will be explored
as an option for intesnational students.

Wehaveiinitiatedsn E-Portfolio project, One-File, to offer initially modern apprentices an electronic system for
monitoring and assessing vocational qualifications. This will be piloted in construction, engineering and business
development:

As we continue to develop and strengthen our employer relationships we have initiated the development of key
systems to ensure data is recorded and maintained, and can provide KPIs for our key areas of delivery. For
éxample our employer engagement system will support how we are engaging with employers and maintain key
information and data about the employers and stakeholders we are working with. This will also be supported by
an employer portal to provide employers with essential data on their employees in relation to attendance,
progress and behaviours when attending College.

10
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Financial Performance

The finances of Forth Valley College are regulated by the Financial Memorandum between the Board of
Management and the Scottish Funding Council (SFC) under which the Principal is designated as Accounting
Officer, responsible to the Chief Executive of the SFC for the stewardship of the College’s finances and assets.

The reclassification of the College as an arm’s length public body, effective from 1 April 2014, means the College
is also regulated by the Financial Reporting Memorandum (FReM) and also by the Scottish Public Finance Manual
(SPFM).

The financial statements have been prepared to comply with the Accounts Direction issued by SFC, the FReM
and the revised Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education which was
issued in July 2015.

The College’s financial objectives are:
e maintain a position of financial security in the context of significant interfial and externalidemand upon
resource
e optimise land and other assets in the interest of the College
e manage the impact of estates upon financial security
e continue to seek increased allocations from SFC to meet demographic demand
e grow commercial activity rates and overall contribution to the College;
e implement efficiencies and improvements identified through @ur business transformation activity
e embedded sustainability throughout College practices.

Adoption of FRS 102 and the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher
Education 2015 (2015 SORP)

The adoption of FRS 102 and the 2015 SORP in this reposting‘period has required changes to accounting policies
in relation to the treatment of GovernmentGFfants and, Financial Instruments both of which have had a
significant impact on these Financial Statements.

Government Capital Grants — under thetold SORPleapital government grants given to the College to support any
fixed asset purchases or construction were permitted to be accounted for as deferred capital grants on the
balance sheet within reserves. Thé'reserve was,then released to the income and expenditure account in line with
the depreciation charge of thelfespective fixed asset, in essence offsetting the depreciation charge within the
income and expenditure account.

Under the 2015 SORPsth€re is a ehoice of two accounting policies:

Accruals Model — in" essence, the'same as the existing model however this is only permitted for government
grants for non-land purchases. Also the deferred element of the capital grant must be retained within creditors
as deferred ihicome ratherthan in reserves.

Performance Model& under this model grants must be recognised within the income in full immediately when
the performance conditions of the grant are met. This method would result in more volatile surpluses and
defieits.“Future“Statements of Comprehensive Income would no longer benefit from the credit arising from the
release of deferred capital grants which would reduce on-going reported surpluses or increase deficits.

The College has chosen to apply the accruals model for all government funded non-land capital grants and the
performance model for all land grants. The impact of doing so has resulted in net liabilities as deferred capital
grants which were previously classified as reserves have now been reclassified to Creditors amounts falling due
within 1 year and more than 1 year.

Financial Instrument - the college uses an interest rate swap to adjust interest rate exposure in order to
guarantee fixed interest payments for the bank loan where payments are variable and hence exposed to interest
rate movements. Previously under UK GAAP this was not shown on the college’s balance sheet. With the
implementation of FRS102 the interest rate swap is now recorded at fair value on the balance sheet and the in-
year movement accounted for through the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

11
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Financial Outturn against Budget for the year ended 31 July 2016

The year ended 31 July 2016 is the first year where the College is required to adopt FRS 102. The table below
summarises the financial outturn against the original budget which excluded the impact of adopting FRS 102 and
pension valuations.

Actual Budget
Year Ended Year Ended
31 July 31)
2016 ]

£000
Operating Activities
Income 33,152
Expenditure

(1,037)
(441

Pension Valuations
FRS 102 - Interest Swap

Estates Development

Grant from Forth Valley College Foundation 370 1,800

Estates Development Costs (1,739) (1,800)
(2,085) 63

Actuarial loss in respect of pension scheme (2,498)

Unrealised deficit on revaluation of land and buildin (1,650)

(Deficit) / surplus (6,233) 63

ope position of £699k against the original budget. The main
operational expenses due to efficiency drives and effective procurement

Overall the College delivered a

processes together with unutilised contingen included within the original budget.

In October 2014 the Scotti nt announced funding for a new Falkirk campus through Scottish Future’s
Trust NPD (Not for Profit Di ogramme. In April 2016 the College received confirmation from Scottish
Government that i te was being changed to Capital Grant. The costs expensed through the

Statement of Com ncome relate to professional advisors fees in the preparation of the College’s Full

and accepts that a deficit arising from the use of cash funding originally provided for non-cash
es not indicate an underlying financial sustainability concern. This is detailed in Note 36 to the

Balance Sheet

s per FReM guidelines, due to the potential impairment of land held at the Middlefield site, a revaluation of this
land was undertaken at 31 July 2016. This resulted in an impairment of £1,650k being recognised in the Balance
Sheet.

The interest rate swap has been recorded as a liability on the balance sheet at fair value and accounted for at fair

value through income and expenditure. Under previous UK GAAP these were not re-valued to fair value or
shown on the college balance sheet at the year-end. An adjustment was made to reflect the opening fair value as

12
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at April 2014 (£92k), and the movement during both 2014/15 (£309k) and 2015/16 (£441k) has been included
within the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The College has net liabilities of £3m (2015 - net assets £4m). The net liability position is due to the
reclassification of Deferred Government Capital Grants from Reserves following the adoption of FRS102. A
reconciliation of the net liability / asset position to the underlying historical cash surplus of the College is
detailed in the following table.

Year Ended Period En
31 July
2016 e
£000
Reserves
Income & expendtiure 7,076)
Revaluation 20,715
3,639
Income & Expenditure (21,158) (17,076)
Non Cash adjustments
Early Retirements Pension Provision 7,317 7,169
LGPS Pension Liability 16,804 13,416
FRS 102 - Interest Swap 843 402
Cash adjustments due to relcassifcation
Donation to FVC Foundation 5,500 5,500
Utilisation of net depreciation 1,234 622
Other
Estates Development Costs funded by r 4,283 4,283

Underlying historical operationalﬂ 14,823 14,316

There are
reporting

between the government accounting rules used for the Resource Outturn and the financial
requirements used for these Financial Statements. One significant difference is the

.‘Any under-utilisation of allocated budget cover results in cash effectively being frozen. In order to
frozen cash in the College sector during the financial period being reported, the SFC granted Colleges
itional budget cover up to the level of net depreciation at 31 March 16 (Scottish Government’s financial year
. The net depreciation for the College was £613k. SFC authorisation was received to utilise this to support
proposed new estates development of our Falkirk Campus. This prevented that cash becoming inaccessible
to the College.

13
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A summary of the Resource Outturn reported to SFC and Scottish Government is noted below.

Resource Outturn 2015/16 RDEL CDEL
Year Ended Year Ended

31 July 31 July

2016 2016

£000

Total Income (34,602)
Revenue Expenditure 34,458
Underspend on Resource Budget (144

Ringfenced RDEL
Depreciation 61

AME Expenditure

College has to make in relation
sth public body. Although the

The RDEL underspend of £144k is equivalent to the annual loan repa
existing borrowings entered into prior to the reclassification as an
repayments utilise cash they do not score against the resource outturn

The CDEL budget was fully utilised.

Creditor Payment Performance

e rms unless the invoice is contested. Disputes and
fort is made to take advantage of additional discount
d not make any late interest payments during the year.

The College has a policy of paying suppliers v
complaints are handled as quickly as possib
where this is offered for prompt paymen e

Standard creditor terms are set o fin system to be 30 days and can be amended to adhere to supplier
terms if authorised by Finance agement. Invoices are paid on a weekly basis by the due date and only
if they are authorised for pa ance system. The average number of days taken to pay suppliers in
the financial period being 3 days (2015 - 29 days).

The Colleg i he changing climate will have far reaching effects on Scotland’s economy, people
and environment. Cénsequently, the commitment to carbon reduction remains a key strategic objective for the
Colle i the College mission statement of Making Learning Work.

lead by example in all our activities and to ensure that learners are aware of the impact their
ave, on the environment. This commitment is supported by the College Green Sustainability
that is approved by the Board of Management and Senior Management Team.

The College has an established Sustainability Committee which performs a strategic function to set, and measure

stainability progress throughout the college. The Committee representatives agree a series of performance
indicators annually, which are monitored and progressed. The Committee is led by our Associate Principal, HR &
Organisational Development.

A significant area of measurement is the College Carbon Management Plan (CMP) which was developed as a

result of the College signing the Universities and Colleges Climate Commitment for Scotland (UCCCfS) in
partnership with the EAUC (Environmental Association of Universities and Colleges). The CMP reflects all carbon
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associated with waste, fleet travel and utilities at each site. The College’s estate has altered considerably since
the CMP baseline year of 2008/09, with the opening of our new campus in Alloa (2011) and new campus in
Stirling (2012) both of which received the BREEAM (Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment
Method) Excellent rating. The College remains on target to reduce total carbon dioxide (tCO2) levels by 25%
from the baseline figure of 2,873.62 tCO2 by the year 2020. The figures for Session 2015/16 evidence that we
are ahead of target with our gross carbon footprint reduced to 2,262 tCO2.

The College has targeted the majority of projects that have a positive carbon reduction with the lowest capital
investment, however it is becoming increasingly challenging to identify further reductions without signifi

capital expense. The most significant project with low carbon benefits will be the fruition of the new j
Campus, planned for completion in 2019.

In addition, the Scottish Government has made the reporting of carbon use mandatory fro
specific template created by Sustainable Scotland Network (SSN) in association with the
submitted its first SSN completed carbon reporting template for the deadline of 30 mb
the voluntary initial pilot year and will continue to submit annual reports.

Dr Ken Thomson
Principal and Chief Executive
8 December 2016
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board of Management Report

Membership of the Board of Management

and up to the date of signing these financial statements were as follows:

Mr H Hall, Chair Regional Chair

Mrs A Mearns, Vice Chair Senior Independent Member / Non-executj mb

Dr K Thomson Principal

Mr C Alexander Non-Executive member

Mr A Buchan Student

Mr R Burns Staff Re d Jul 6

Mrs F Campbell Non-Executive member

Mr A Carver Non-Executive member

Ms T Craggs Non-Executive member ppointed November 2016
Ms Pamela Duncan Staff ted August 2016

Ms L Dougall Non-Executive memb

Mr D Flynn Non-Executive me Appointed November 2016
Ms B Hamilton Non- Execu me

Mr S Harrison Elected August 2016

Mrs C Jack

Mr L McCabe

Mr K Richardson

Ms Lorraine Simpson Retired June 2016

Ms A Stephen Resigned June 2016

Mr N Scott Resigned February 2016
Mr S Tolson

Ms Karen Williams Resigned November 2016
Ms Amy Scobbie ent Elected November 2016
Ms A Winchester Non-Executive member Resigned November 2016

Membership of the'S lanagement Team

The SMT is nsib e day to day management of Forth Valley College’s activities and operations and
consists of

Principal
Associate Principal & Executive Director Information Services
Associate Principal and Executive Director Curriculum & Quality
Associate Principal and Executive Director Estates Development
Associate Principal and Executive Director HR & Organisational
Development

s A Stewart Associate Principal and Executive Director Finance
Mrs C Walker Associate Principal and Executive Director Business Development

Conflicts of Interest procedures

Forth Valley College has comprehensive procedures for dealing with potential conflicts of interest. These include
holding, and updating at least annually, a Register of Board Members Interests. The register is available to any
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member of the public who wishes to examine it and is available on the college website,
http://www.forthvalley.ac.uk. Interests that must be registered, in terms of the name and nature of the
organisation in which the interest is held, include: remuneration, related undertakings, contracts, houses, land
and buildings, shares and securities, and non-financial interests. Declarations by Board members of any conflicts
of interest are recorded in the minutes of the appropriate Board meetings.

Dr Ken Thomson
Principal and Chief Executive
8 December 2016

Personal data related incidents
Section 417 of the Companies Act 2006 requires that organisations report on personal date related incidents.
2015/16, the College had no reported personal data incidents. Q

)
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Statement of The Board of Management’s Responsibilities
The Board of Management are required to present audited financial statements for each financial period.

In accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and 2005, the Board of Management is
responsible for the administration and management of the College’s affairs, including ensuring an effective
system of internal control, and is required to present audited financial statements for each financial period.

The Board of Management is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose, with reasonable
accuracy at any time, the financial position of the College and enable it to ensure that the financial statements
are prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992, the 2015 Statément of
Recommended Practice - Accounting for Further and Higher Education Institutions and other relevant accounting
standards. In addition, within the terms and conditions of a Financial Memorandum agreed betwe€hithe Scottish
Funding Council and the College’s Board of Management, the Board of Management, through its designated
office holder, is required to prepare financial statements for each financial period whichigive a\tkue and fair view
of the College’s state of affairs and of the surplus or deficit and cash flows faf that period.“These' financial
statements comply with the Accounts Direction issued by the Scottish Funding Council.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Management has ensured that:

e suitable accounting policies are selected and applied consistently

e judgements and estimates are made that are reasonable and prudent

e applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any“material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements

e financial statements are prepared on the going concernfbasis unlesssit'is inappropriate to presume that
the Institution will continue in operation. The Board of Management is satisfied that it has adequate
resources to continue in operation for the forgseeableffuture: for this reason the going concern basis
continues to be adopted in the preparation of thefinancialstatements.

The Board of Management has taken reasonablesteps to:

e ensure that funds from the Scottish Funding €ouncil'are used only for the purposes for which they have
been given and in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with the Funding Council and any other
conditions which the Funding Geuncil may,frem time to time prescribe

e ensure that there are approfriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard public funds
and funds from other soufrces

e safeguard the assetsofithe Collegeand prevent and detect fraud

e secure the economical, efficient and effective management of the College’s resources and expenditure

e ensure sound corperate govermance and proper conduct of the College’s operations.

The key elements/of the College’s system of internal financial control, which is designed to discharge the
responsibilities set'out above, include the following:
o clear definitionswof the responsibilities of, and the authority delegated to, heads of academic and
administrative departments
sgma comprehénsive medium and short-term planning process, supplemented by detailed annual income,
expenditure, capital and cash flow budgets
e regular reviews of key performance indicators and business risks and quarterly reviews of financial
results involving variance reporting and updates of forecast outturns
e “clearly defined and formalised requirements for approval and control of expenditure, with investment
decisions involving capital or revenue expenditure being subject to formal detailed appraisal and review
according to approval levels set by the Board of Management
e comprehensive Financial Regulations, detailing financial controls and procedures, approved by the
Finance Committee
e a professional internal audit team whose annual programme is approved by the Audit Committee and
endorsed by the Board of Management and whose head provides the Board of Management with a
report on internal audit activity within the College and an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the College’s system of internal control, including internal financial control.
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Any system of internal financial control can, however, only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

In October 2010, the UK Office for National Statistics (ONS) decided to reclassify incorporated further education
colleges throughout the UK so that they would be treated as part of central government for financial budgeting
and reporting purposes. The UK ONS's reclassification decision is the consequence of the current level of
Ministerial control and does not relate to the plans for improved governance that feature in the Post-16
Education (Scotland) Act 2013.

The implications of this are material and impact upon the ability of the College to generate and retain income, to
generate and retain surpluses (reserves), to protect and use existing reserves, and to access capital fu
commercial borrowing. The use of Arm’s Length Foundations on a sector wide basis to shelter on-go
reserves was approved by Scottish Government Ministers. Forth Valley College Foundation was ineerpo
December 2013 and has been awarded charitable status from the Office of the Scottish eg
(OSCR).

Auditor

The Auditor General for Scotland has appointed Henderson Loggie to undertake t dit fogthe year ended 31
July 2016.

Disclosure of information to auditors

rm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the e auditors are unaware; and each Board

member has taken all the steps that he or she ought t aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the College’s auditors are aw ft

Approved by order of the members of the Boar € 016 and signed on its behalf by:

Hugh Hall

QQ
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Governance Statement

Introduction

The College is committed to exhibiting best practice in all areas of corporate governance. This summary
describes the manner in which the College has applied the principles in the Code of Good Governance for
Scotland’s Colleges.

This governance statement is designed to supplement the information provided in the financial statements. It
sets out the governance structures, risk management and internal control processes that have been operating i

Forth Valley College in the year to 31 July 2016 and reports the Board’s assessment of the effectiveness
arrangements.
Governance Structure O

The College has a robust and effective Board and Committee structure in place.

Board of
Management

Finance HR (Inc Strategic
Audit Committee . Nomination)
Committee .
Comittee

Remuneration
Committee

Development
Comittee

alkirk Campus Project Board progresses
an additional committee has been established.
in Board of Management structure, three non-
dequate representation from the main Board of

Additionally, in recognition of the significant de
towards the realisation of the new Falkirk Headquart
While the Falkirk Campus Project Board is sep
executive Board Members serve on this Bo
Management.

Board of Management Committ
Audit Committee

The committee met on fo
Board of Manageme
College control sys

Finance Co e

The committee met on four occasions during the period. Its role is to contribute to good governance by
in nt advice to the Board of Management on the financial management of the College,
rategic overview of the College's financial direction while ensuring a position of financial security
vant audit and legislative requirements are met.

ittee (Inc. Nomination Committee)
committee met on two occasions and advises on HR strategy (including industrial relations matters),

oversees the Board’s health & safety responsibilities, monitors the Board’s equal opportunities aspirations, and
oversees the Board nominations process.
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Remuneration Committee

The committee met once during this period. Its role is to provide good governance advice and assistance to the
Board of Management on the remuneration of senior College staff, considering sectoral guidance and
maintaining comparability with relevant external bodies.

Strategic Development Committee

The committee met on four occasions. Its role is to contribute to good governance by providing assistance to the
Board of Management on the strategic direction of the College, to act as the primary linkage between the Board
of Management and the Student Union Executive, and to consider matters relating to the interests of learnerstin
the College.

Board of Management Members

In line with the requirements of the College Sector Board Appointments: 2014 Ministerial’ Guidance, the College
undertook an open, fair and merit-based recruitment exercise in 2014/15 to fill ghe 12 non-executive positions
on the Board. A skills matrix was developed to support the recruitment process and to ensure that the
appointments would provide the correct mixture of skills to enable the Board to fullypundertake their duties.

During 2015/16 one non-executive Board member resigned and a furthler recruitment process in line with the
2014 Ministerial guidance was undertaken. Following this process, the ecommendations of the Board of
Management were communicated to Scottish Ministers who approved the reeommendation. This also resulted
in the College maintaining, for the non-executive positions available, al50-50 gehder balance.

Membership now consists of 18 members as follows:

o Chair

. 12 Independent Non-executive members
. 2 Student Members

. 2 Staff Members

. Principal

There is a clear differentiation in thé roles.of the Chair of the Board and that of the Principal. Matters reserved
to the Board of Management are set out iadthe Standing Orders and Operating Guidelines, the Scheme of
Delegation, and under the Fin@ncial Memoerdndum with the Scottish Funding Council. The Board of Management
is responsible for the onzgoing strategic direction of the College, approval of major developments and the
approval of annual budgets.

Members of the Board have a collective responsibility for the proper conduct of the College’s affairs. Members
have full and_timely, access to all relevant information to enable them to perform their roles effectively.
Members’ poles and responsibilities are described in the Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and
the Guide for BoardMembers in the College Sector.

Board Effectiveness

The Board of Management has adopted the Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges. The code outlines
the activity to be undertaken by a Board. The Board of Management has an effective mix of skills in place,
supplemented by a comprehensive induction process which is further enhanced by Board training activities such
as'the provision of equalities training.

There are self-evaluation processes, led by the Chair and an evaluation process for the activity of the Chair led by
the Vice-Chair. These offer a mechanism for members to feedback on their perceptions of the Board, their
contribution and any future training needs.
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The Board of Management normally meets formally four times per year and has a number of committees which
are formally constituted with terms of reference. During 2015/16 one meeting was cancelled.
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Number of 3 4 4 2 4
Meetings
Mr H Hall, Chair Regional 03/03/14 | N/A 3 0
Chair
Mrs A Mearns, Vice | Senior Non- | 02/03/15 | N/A 2 0 1 4
Chair Exec
Dr K Thomson Principal 01/08/13 | N/A 3
Mr C Alexander Non-Exec 02/03/15 | NY/A 2 3
Mr A Buchan Student 26/03/15 | N/A 3 4
Mr R Burns Staff 26/03/15 | 29/07/16 2 4
Mrs F Campbell Non-Exec 02/03/15¢ " N/A 3 2 2
Mr A Carver Non-Exec 02/03/15 | N/A 2 2 2
Ms L Dougall Non-Exec 26/03/15\,.N/A 3 4 4
Ms B Hamilton Non-Exec 02/03/15 | 'N/A 3 4 2 1
Mrs C Jack Non-Exec 02/03/25 | N/A 3 3 1
Mr L McCabe Non-Exec 02/03/15"| N/A 2 4 1
Mr K Richardson Non#Exec 02/03/15 | N/A 3 1
Mr N Scott Non-Exec 02/03/15 | 29/02/16 1 2 1
Ms L Simpson Student 11/09/14 | 26/06/16 3 3
Ms A Stephen Staff 26/03/15 | 31/05/16 1 2
Mr S Tolson Non:Exec 26/03/15 | N/A 2 0
Ms A WincheSter Non-Exec 26/03/15 | 06/11/16 2 1 1
Ms K Williadms Student 26/06/16 | N/A 1

Asséssment of'carporate governance

In the,opinion of the Board of Management, we can confirm that corporate governance has been exercised
throughout the period in accordance with the principles of the Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges,
the'Scottish Public Finance Manual (SPFM) and the Financial Memorandum.

One exception to this is in relation to the role of a Secretary to the Board. The Code of Good Governance states;
“The board secretary may be a member of the senior management team in their board secretary capacity, but
they cannot hold any other senior management team position at the same time”.

The Board of Management recognises the importance of the Board Secretary being able to report directly to the
Chair independently of the Principal in order to prevent any conflicts of interests, however believe that this can
be achieved without the requirement to appoint a Board Secretary without other Senior Management Team
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responsibilities. The Board of Management have appointed the Associate Principal and Executive Director of
Finance as Secretary to the Board along with the Corporate Governance & Planning Officer as Deputy Secretary
to the Board, both of whom will report directly to the Chair in relation to the Board Secretary duties. The Board
of Management believes any risk of non-disclosure or non-compliance not being reported to the Board of
Management due to a conflict of interest is mitigated by the appointment of two individuals with direct
reporting to the Chair. The Board of Management considers that governance is strengthened rather than
weakened by the Associate Principal and Executive Director of Finance having a dual role within the Senior
Management Team. This arrangement is not unusual in either the public or the private sector, indeed a similar
practice is adopted by the Scottish Funding Council.

Estates Strategy

The Forth Valley College agreed Estates strategy comprises a vision for three new campuses. Thegfirst inPAlloas
the second in Stirling and a third in Falkirk. A significant investment has already taken place inghases®and2.of
this strategy with Alloa and Stirling successfully completing on programme and withingbudgetiin 2011 and 2012
respectively.

The College’s successful Outline Business Case for Phase 3, its new campus in FalKirk, has been/followed by a Full
Business Case submission to Scottish Funding Council in September 2016. The Scottish Goy¥ernment formally
approved the Full Business Case in November 2016.

The new campus plans include servicing the current Falkirk Campusfeurriculum and will accommodate over
11,000 students of which almost 2000 will be full time. The proposed New Falkirk,Campus will be located on the
cleared 10.87 acre Middlefield Campus site and an additional section oflland (448 acres) to the East of this, which
the College has secured thorough conditional missives fromCallendar Estates. The new facility will be 20,148
sgm and will incorporate state of the art and flexible €@aching acedommpdation, as well as low carbon initiatives,
such as Photovoltaics, a Ground Source Heat Pum@isystem, Combined{Heat and Power boilers, along with other
sustainable functions required to meet the Building ReésearchyEstablishment Environmental Assessment Method
(BREEAM) standard.

Now that the Full Business Case has been approved, the College will issue an ESPD/OJEU notice in December
2016, tender documents in April 2017, cdmmenee site/operations in September 2017 and complete and occupy
the new Campus in October 2019

Risk Management

The Board of Managemedt has overall responsibility for ensuring the effective identification, mitigation and
monitoring of strategic risks ‘within the'College. The Audit Committee has delegated authority from the Board of
Management to apgrove the Risk, Management Policy and to review regular reports from the College Senior
Management Team regardingrisk.

The Collegg operates a“Strategic Risk register which identifies the most significant risks to the College. This
register is \taken to\every meeting of the Audit Committee for comment and challenge. It is also provided
annuallito theBoard of Management and Finance Committees.

The \Principalbis responsible for the maintenance of the College strategic risk register and for ensuring
appropriate risk mitigation actions are implemented to address significant risks to College operations and
strategic objectives. Senior Management Team members are responsible for establishing controls to mitigate
identified risks wherever possible. This information is included on the Strategic Risk Register in summary form.

Risk Management is embedded in the operations of the College. The identification and mitigation of risk is a
component in all decision making and is a standing item at all Senior Management Team, Board Committee and
Board of Management meetings. The College also operates a risk management system whereby areas of
significant risk to the College have their own specific risk register. It is under this approach that an estates risk
register was established to support the Falkirk campus project.
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Delegation of responsibility for managing the key risks in the risk registers is essential if risk management is to be
effective. The risk registers, therefore identify “owners” for each risk.

Internal Audit

The College has an internal audit service, the work of which concentrates on areas of key activities determined
by an analysis of the areas of greatest risk, input from Senior Management Team and areas of significant change
to operational systems/practices and in accordance with the annual internal audit plan approved by the Audit
Committee. The internal auditors report to the Principal and to the Audit Committee on a regular basis and hatie
direct access to the Chair of the Audit Committee. The internal auditors have issued an annual report which.gives
an opinion of the adequacy, reliability and effectiveness of the College’s internal control systems. On the basis‘of
the work undertaken during the period the auditors have expressed an opinion that the College has a framework
of controls in place that provides reasonable assurance regarding the effective and efficient achievement of
objectives and the management of key risks and proper arrangements are in place to promotg value for money
and deliver best value.

Internal Control

The Board of Management is aware of the need for effective internal control and acknowledges'its responsibility
for such a control system to be in place. The system can provide onlfireasonable and ot absolute assurance
that assets are safeguarded, transactions authorised and properly recerded, and that material errors or

irregularities are either prevented or would be detected within a timelyfperiod:

The system of internal control is based on a framework of regularmanagement/iinformation, financial regulations
and administrative procedures.

In particular it includes:

o comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget approved by the Board of Management

o regular reviews by the Finance Committee of guartebly and annual financial reports which indicate
financial performance against forecast$

. setting targets to measure financial and non-financial performance.

Assessment of the effectiveness jof internal controls

The Board of Management is oféthe,view that there is an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the College’s signifieantyrisks Thissprocess is reviewed by the Board of Management through the Audit
Committee. A formal Busingss Contihuity Plan is maintained within the College.

For the period to 31 July2016, the Internal Auditors reported completion of all reviews in the Audit Plan except
for a Risk Workshap whichthas been deferred until 2016/17. Internal Audit was of the opinion that the College
has a framework af\controls in place that provides reasonable assurance regarding the effective and efficient
achievementfofobjectives@@nd the management of key risks and proper arrangements are in place to promote
value for maney andfdeliver best value.

Thefexterhal auditors have given an unqualified audit opinion on the accounts for the period to 31 July 2016 and
oh the regularity of transactions reflected in the accounts. No further significant issues have been identified as
partof their audit process.

On the basis of the assurances provided from the sources of assurance outlined above, | can confirm that sound
systems of governance, risk management and internal control, consistent with the requirements of the SPFM,
have operated for the period ended 31 July 2016 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements.
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Going Concern

The Board of Management believes that pension liabilities resulting in a net liability in the Balance Sheet can be
met as these fall due from future funding. The Board of Management has no reason to believe that future
support from Scottish Funding Council will not be forthcoming and on that basis these financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

Approved by order of the members of the Board on 8 December 2016 and signed on its behalf by: %
Hugh Hall Dr Ken Thomson :

Chairman Principal and\Chief Executive

\
)
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REMUNERATION AND STAFF REPORT

Remuneration Report

This report outlines the remuneration policy of Forth Valley College for the Board of Management and the Senior
Management Team (SMT), and provides details of members remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2016.

Board of Management

Forth Valley College Board Members, with the exception of the Chief Executive/Principal are appointed fora
fixed period, normally, four years. With the exception of the Chief Executive/Principal and elected staff
representatives, these members do not have contracts of service with Forth Valley College.

The Chairman was appointed in March 2014 by Scottish Ministers. The level of remuneration for the Chairmaniis
set by Scottish Government who informs Forth Valley College on an annual basis of afiy‘increase to be awarded.

Senior Management Team

The SMT is responsible for the day to day management of Forth Valley College’s activitiesq@dnd operations. The
Chief Executive/Principal, Ken Thomson, is a member of both the Board'and the SMT.

The Chief Executive/Principal and other SMT members are on standard Forth Valley College contracts of
employment. Their contracts provide for a notice period of 3 months For 2015/16 there was no bonus scheme
in operation in Forth Valley College.

If an SMT member’s employment with Forth Valley,College is terminated on the grounds of redundancy or in the
interests of the efficiency of the organisation, sevebhance paymentsiwill apply based on age and on length of
service and are subject to approval by the Scottish Funding €ouncil. This basis is identical to that applied for all
other employees.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee determines the framework or broad policy for the remuneration of the members
of the SMT, including the Chief Executive/Principal and other such members of the management team as it is
designated by Forth Valley (€6liege tohconsider. This policy is set within the context of the applicable
Government guidelines. With inputifrom~the Chairman and Chief Executive/Principal it determines the total
individual remuneration package of members of the SMT.

During the year the membesship’of the Remuneration Committee was extended and is now made up of the
Chair of the Board of Management plus the Chairs of each of the Board Sub Committees. All members have
completed the'mandatoryonline College Development Network Remuneration Committee training.

Senior,Management Team Remuneration

As part of Forth Valley College’s performance management system, each SMT member agrees with the Chief
Executive/Principal their personal performance objectives.

Forth Valley College aims to ensure that the remuneration packages offered to SMT:
e enable Forth Valley College to attract, retain and motivate high calibre leaders
e remunerate individuals fairly for individual responsibility and contribution
e take account of salary policy within the rest of Forth Valley College and the relationship that should

exist between the remuneration of the Senior Management Team and that of other employees.

Basic salaries are reviewed annually from 1 August. Salary levels are established after taking into account
external market levels and internal comparisons as well as individual responsibilities and performance. All senior
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posts are evaluated as part of our job evaluation process to ensure they reflect the responsibility and
accountability of the role and are graded appropriately. The College’s Job Evaluation system and processes are
externally audited on an annual basis. Salary payments are made monthly.

SMT members are all members of either the Scottish Teachers’ Superannuation Scheme (STSS) or the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). As ordinary members, they contribute a rate of pensionable salary
dependant on salary. In the financial period being reported the rates were between 9.2% to 12% and Forth
Valley College contributed 17.2% of the employees’ pensionable salary to the SPPA and 17.9% to the LGPS along
with an additional flat fee for past pension costs. These schemes are defined benefit schemes. The LGPS sche

provides benefits at a normal retirement age of 65 for all LGPS benefits paid prior to 1 April 2015. For a
benefits paid after 1 April 2015 and for STSS, benefits are provided at the state pension age. The
benefits consist of an annual pension, based on a final pensionable salary calculation up to 31 March 2
career average pensionable salary with effect from 1 April 2015. For members who joined bef A
for STSS and 1 April 2009 for LGPS a tax free lump sum will be paid automatically.

Remuneration of the Principal and other Senior Management Team who served
including salary, pension benefits and other allowances was:

Year Ended 31 July 2016

Pension
Salary Benefit Total Salary Benefit Total
£000 £000 00 £000 £000
Ken Thomson 115-120 55-60 -110 115-120 225-230
Andy Lawson 95-100 35-40 0-95 60 - 65 150- 155
Tom Gorman 90-95 85-90 20-25 105-110
Alison Stewart 80-85 75-80 20-25 100- 105
David Allison 75-80 70-75 55-60 130-135
Colette Walker 75-80 70-75 5-10 80-85
Fiona Brown 65-70 60 - 65 40-45 105-110
Salary
Salary information includes gros ry, rtime and allowances to the extent that they are subject to UK
taxation. This report is based on a pay ts made by the College and thus recorded in these accounts.

Chair Remuneration

For the year to Jul
maximum total feé
respect of thei

irman was entitled to claim remuneration of £200 for every 7.5 hours up to a
0 for which an accrual has been included. The Chair is not entitled to a pension in

ela hip between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Senior Management Team and
t edian uneration of the employees of Forth Valley College is as follows:

Year Ended Period Ended
31 July 31 July
2016 2015

£ £
Annualised remuneration of the highest paid member of the Senior Management Team 116,115 109,923
Median Remuneration of Forth Valley College Employees 30,042 28,874
Remuneration Ratio 1:3.87 1:3.81
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The median remuneration of Forth Valley College’s employees is based upon the annualised full-time equivalent
salary of the employees at 31 July.

Including severance payments, no employee (2015: no employees) received remuneration in excess of the
highest paid member of the Senior Management Team.

Pension Benefits

Pension benefits are provided to the Senior Management Team on the same basis as all other staff. The accrued
retirement benefits of the Senior Management Team for the twelve months to 31 July 2016 are:

Cash Equivalent Transfer
Accrued Pensionat  Real increase in

pension age as at 31 Pension and
July 2016 and related related lump sum At 31 July ar
lump sum at pension age 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
40-45 25-5
plus lump sum of plus lump sum of 823 74
Ken Thomson 130-135 7.5-10
30-35 2.0-25
plus lump sum of plus lump sum o 666 59
Andy Lawson 90-95 5-7.5
15-20
plus lump sum of 334 275 50
Tom Gorman 20-25
10-15
plus lump sum of 135 105 22
Alison Stewart 0-5
25-30
pluslu 387 327 53
David Allison
plus lump sum of 37 17 13
Colette Walker 0-25
0-25
plus lump sum of 396 352 37
Fiona Brown 2.5-5

ansfer value is the actuarially assessed value of the retirement scheme benefits accrued by
n time. The value of the accrued pension benefits has been calculated on the basis of the
person will first become entitled to receive pension on retirement without reduction on
ayment at that age; without exercising any option to commute pension entitlements into a lump

C nt appointment.

considering the accrued pension benefits figure the following contextual information should be taken into
account:
e the figures for pension lump sum are illustrative only in light of the assumptions set out above and do
not necessarily reflect the actual benefits that any individual may receive upon retirement
e The accrued benefits figures are reflective of the pension contributions that both the employer and the
scheme member have made over a period of time.
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Real Increases in CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include the increase in accrued
pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred
from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end
of the period.

Staff Report
As at 31 July 2016 there were 629 staff in post. The split across gender and business area is detailed i
below.
Employees Male FemaO 0
Senior Management Team 4 7
Heads of Teaching / Service 7 15
Academic Staff 152 1 305
Support Staff 112 0 302
354 629
The table below shows the number of inward seconded and oyed by the College during the
year:
En ded Year Ended Period Ended
uly 31 July 31 July 31 July
2016 2016 2015

Total of inward Total of inward

ard secondees and secondees and

Seconded and Agency Staff secondees Agency staff agency staff agency staff
£000 £000 £000 £000

Total costs : 65 70 135 121

Number of staff

Academic/ nts & Services 2 2 5
Administr. nd @entral Services 2 8 10 16
2 10 12 21

na
ultan sts

ad to the above staff costs, £72k was spent on consultancy costs during 2015/16 to support business
i ovement. £27k of which was spent on additional lecturing staff resource and the remainder was in relation
to'technical and specialist services including VAT and governance and business planning advice.
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Attendance Management

Forth Valley College accepts that employees will be prevented from attending work due to iliness or injury from
time to time. Although the College recognises that employees need to be properly supported during absences,
our priority is to meet our operational objectives. As a result, we take distinct steps to balance the needs of the
individual with the needs of the organisation to effectively manage sickness absence. To achieve this balance,
working with our Occupational Health advisors, we take a positive and pro-active approach to attendance
management. We also offer a range of services that staff can access to help them with their own wellbeing.

These include:

e advising all employees and line managers of their roles and responsibilities in managing
through appropriate training, guidance and support

e monitoring and analysing absence and providing useful Management Information

e supporting employees with regular short-term absence to improve their level of attends

to work plans
e allowing staff to self-refer to our Occupational Health Advisor on a confi
o offering sessions to staff to help them with their own wellbeing at wor
stress or mindfulness
e providing access to a confidential Employee Assistance scheme to provide advice or counselling when
dealing with issues of a personal, financial or legal matter.

In 2015/16, an average of 9.87 days (including leavers) was lost per sta

Equalities Policy

Forth Valley College is committed to the provision o al or ies in all aspects of college life.

olic d Equality Outcome Plan, which ensure that staff,
age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and

We have a range of policies including our Eq
learners and visitors are treated equally rega

maternity, marriage and civil partnershi e d belief, sex and sexual orientation.
We value diversity and aim t vanceyequality of opportunity, foster good relations and eliminate
discrimination, victimisation and har ent Il our activities, in order to meet both the General Equality Duty

and Public sector Equality D
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Five members of staff left the College during the year, three of which left under the voluntary exit terms, the

details of which are as follows:

Compensation for loss of office
< £5k

£5k - £10k

£10k - £15k

£15k - £20k

£20k - £25k

Total number of exit packages
Total resource cost

Dr Ken Thomson
Principal and Chief Executive
8 December 2016

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31 July 31 July 31 July 31 July
2016 2016 2016 2015
Number of Number of Total
voluntary other number of
redundancies departures departures
3 1
0 1]
0
0
0
3 2

31
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AUDIT REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the members of the Board of Management of
Forth Valley College, the Auditor General for Scotland and the Scottish
Parliament

We have audited the financial statements of Forth Valley College for the period ended 31 July 2016 under the
Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment
(Scotland) Act 2005. The financial statements comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement, of
Changes in Reserves, Balance Sheet, and Cash Flow Statement and the related notes. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance withpthe Public Finance and
Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and for no other purpose. In accordance withgparagraph 125%f thé Code of
Audit Practice approved by the Auditor General for Scotland, we do not undertake to havegfesponsibilities to
members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third parties.

Respective Responsibilities of the Board of Management and Additor

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board of Management’s, Responsibilities, the Board of
Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and,for being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view, and is also responsible for ensuring thémregulanityof expenditure and income. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the finangcial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland),as required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by
the Auditor General for Scotland. Those standardsyrequire us togeomply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors. We are also responsible forigiving an opinion on the regularity of expenditure
and income in accordance with the Public Financegand Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidengefaboutithe amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that thé&financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes anfassessmentsf: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the college’s
circumstances and have bgen consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the“Board of Management; and the overall presentation of the financial
statements. It also invelVes, obtaining evidence about the regularity of expenditure and income. In addition, we
read all the financial and nen-financial information in the report and financial statements to identify material
inconsistencies withy the addited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently
materially incorrect basedfon, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements, irregularities or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
Intour opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and
directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council of the state of the college’s affairs as at 31
July 2016 and of its deficit for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Further and Higher Education
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council, the Charities and
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Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and regulation 14 of The Charities Accounts (Scotland)
Regulations 2006 (as amended).

Opinion on regularity

In our opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial statements were incurred or
applied in accordance with any applicable enactments and guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers.

Opinion on other prescribed matters

In our opinion:

e the part of the Remuneration and Staff Report to be audited has been properly prepared in ac
with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made théreu
Scottish Ministers; and

e the information given in the Performance Report for the financial rw nancial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

e  proper accounting records have not been kept; or

e the financial statements and the part of the Remun a eport to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records; or

e we have not received all the information an lan we require for our audit; or

e the Governance Statement does not com it t ing Council requirements.

We have nothing to report in respect of these Mma

Catherine Wyllie

Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of Hender$en Loggie
Statutory Auditors

Chartered Accounta
34 Melville Street
Edinburgh

EH3 7HA

cember 2016

Henderson Loggie is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of Section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 July 2016

Year Ended
31 July
INCOME Note 2016
£00(

Scottish Funding Council grants 2
Tuition fees and education contracts 3
Other grant income 4
Other operating income 5
Investment income 6
Total Income
EXPENDITURE
Staff costs 23,467 28,939
Pension provision charge 547 159
Other operating expenses 1 6,543 10,010
Estates Development Costs 1,739 176
Depreciation 15 2,194 3,542
Interest and other finance costs 12 1,117 1,178
Donation to FVC Foundation 13 0 1,100
Total Expenditure 35,607 45,104

Deficit before other gains/losses (2,085) (1,684)

Loss on Revaluation of Land & Buildings & 0 (615)
Deficit before other comprehensive i (2,085) (2,299)

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss in respect of pensi (2,498) (1,759)
(1,650) 899
(6,233) (3,159)
(4,081) (3,306)
(2,152) 147
(6,233) (3,159)

ms of in and expenditure are in respect of continuing activities.
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Statement of Changes in Reserves for the year ended 31 July 2016

Income and
expenditure
account Revaluation
Unrestricted reserve Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 April 2014 (restated) (13,770) 20,568
Deficit from the income and expenditure statement (2,299)
Other comprehensive income (1,759)
Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserve 752 (7
Total comprehensive income for the period (3,306)
Balance at 1 August 2015 (17,0 20 3,639
Deficit from the income and expenditure statement (2,08 (2,085)
Other comprehensive income (2,498) 0) (4,148)
Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserve 502 (502) 0
Total comprehensive income for the year 81) (2,152) (6,233)
Balance at 31 July 2016 58) 18,563 (2,595)
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Balance Sheet as at 31 July 2016

As at As at
31 July 31 July
Note 2016 2015
Restated
£000 £000
Non Current Assets
Tangible fixed assets 15 57,405 61,0
Current assets
Stocks
Trade debtors and other receivables 16

Cash at bank and in hand
Total current assets

Less: Creditors - amounts falling due within one year 17

Net current liabilities (1, (1,338)

Total assets less current liabilities 56,045 59,756

Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year 34,519 35,532

Provisions

STSS early retirement provision 7,317 7,169

LGPS pension provision 19, 27 16,804 13,416
24,121 20,585

Total Net (Liabilities)/Assets (2,595) 3,639

Unrestricted Reserves

Income and expenditure reserve - unrestricted (21,158) (17,076)

Revaluation reserve 18,563 20,715

Total Reserves (2,595) 3,639

The financial statements on page to ere approved by the Board of Management on 8th December 2016

and were signed on its be n tha e by:

H Hall Dr Ken Thomson

irman Principal and Chief Executive
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 July 2016

Year Ended Period Ended
31 July 31 July
Note 2016 2015
Restated
£000 £000
Cash flow from operating activities
Deficit for the year (2,085) (2,29
Adjustment for non-cash items
Depreciation 15 2,194
Loss on revaluation 0
(Increase)/Decrease in stock 6
(Increase)/Decrease in debtors 16 ( 1,
Decrease in creditors 17,18 (3 (1,370
Increase/(decrease) in pension provision 19 14 (367)
Pension Costs 27 843
Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Investment income 6,22 14) (26)
Interest payable 12 1,117 1,178
Capital grant income (1,586) (2,713)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (365) 1,192
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital grants receipts 155 638
Investment income 6,22 14 26
Payments made to acquire fixed assets 15 (155) (638)
14 26

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid 12 (186) (256)

Repayments of amounts borrowed (146) (139)
(332) (395)

(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equiv ir& (683) 823
Cash and cash equivalents at beginni ear 1,609 786
Cash and cash equivalents at end eyear 926 1,609
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Statement of Principal Accounting Policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the financial statements.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Acce
Practice (SORP) 2015: ‘Accounting for Further and Higher Education’; the Financial Reporting Standards FRS
the 2015-16 Government Financial Reporting Model (FReM) issued by the Scottish Government and in ac
with applicable Accounting Standards. They conform to the Accounts Direction and other guida

Scottish Funding Council.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, modifie the re ation of certain
fixed assets.

The financial statements do not include the income and expenditure of t ts' Union as the College does not
exert control or dominant influence over policy decisions.

Going Concern

The Board of Forth Valley College has no reason t
accordingly been considered appropriate to adopt a
statements.

turg funding will not be forthcoming. It has
sis for the preparation of these financial

FRS 102 requirements

ting quirements of the accounting standard FRS 102 which
ants. Previously capital government grants were permitted to be
accounted for as deferred reserves o ce sheet. The income was then released to the income and
expenditure account in line wit charge of the respective fixed asset. This is the same for FRS 102
however the deferred elem

FRS 102 also requires valuation of the pension scheme liability as explained in note 27 to the accounts.
This reflects the in
may only be met by future grant-in-aid from the Scottish Funding Council. This is
bnventions applying to parliamentary control over income and expenditure, such grants

ion o me

from grants, contracts and other services rendered is included in proportion to the extent of completion of
tract or service concerned. All income from short-term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure
unt in the period in which it is earned.

Recurrent grants from the Scottish Funding Council (SFC) are recognised in the period in which they are receivable.
Grant Funding

Government revenue grants including Funding Council block grants are recognised in income over the periods in
which the College recognises the related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate. Where part of a
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government grant is deferred it is recognised as deferred income within creditors and allocated between creditors
due within one year and due after more than one year as appropriate.

Grants from non-government sources are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the income and
performance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions
being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet and released to income as the
conditions are met.

Capital Grants

Government capital grants are recognised in income over the expected useful life of the asset. Other capital grants
are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related cgnditions
being met.

Tangible fixed assets
In line with FReM all tangible assets must be carried at fair value.

Land and Buildings

Land and buildings are measured using the revaluation model and accordingly, assetsyare revalued to fair value.
Where appropriate Depreciated Replacement cost has been used as a me@sure of fair valuéifor land and buildings
otherwise Market Value will be used. The land at Branshill, Alloa and the Middlefield site have been valued on the
basis of Open Market value.

The College has a policy of ensuring a full revaluation takes place at least every 5 years such that the fair value is not
materially different to the current value. In line with the FReM this'will be supplemented by an interim professional
valuation in year 3.

Depreciation and impairment losses are subsequently charged anthe revalued amount.
Finance costs, which are directly attributable to the construction oflland and buildings, are not capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets.

Costs incurred in relation to land and buildings after initial purchase or construction, and prior to valuation, are
capitalised to the extent that they ingrease the expectedfuture benefits to the College.

If a building is brought into use mid-way through@year the depreciation charge in the first year will be pro-rated to
reflect the number of months that'theasset'was’in use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of anyfixedasset may not be recoverable.

Assets under constiuction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ certificates and other direct
costs, incurred/to 31 July, 2016'and are not depreciated until they are brought into use.

Freeholddland is mot depreciated as it is considered to have an indefinite useful life. Freehold buildings are
depreciated oma straight line basis over their expected useful lives.

The, expected useful life of buildings can vary from 20 to 50 years as determined by professional opinion and
valuation.

Equiment

Equipment costing less than £10k per individual item or grouped items is written off to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the year of acquisition. All other equipment and vehicles are capitalised and depreciated
in accordance with the depreciation policy.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of tangible fixed assets on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful lives of the assets. New build campuses at Alloa and Stirling are depreciated using a component
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accounting approach.

i) Buildings 20 - 50 years
ii) Plant & Equipment 5 years

iii) Building improvements 10 years

iv) IT Equipment 4 years

v) Motor vehicles 7 years

vi) Equipment acquired for other projects project life
vii) Specialist Equipment acquired for Oil and Gas teaching 10 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the date of preparation of each/B
Sheet.

Leased assets

Finance Leases
Leases in which the College assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ow
classified as finance leases. Leased assets acquired by way of finance lease and the c

ea asset are
se liabilities are
minimum lease
payments at inception of the lease.

Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially all the beng
treated as if the asset had been purchased outright. The assets are incluc
of the leasing commitments is shown as obligations under financ s
depreciated over their useful life.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, th
classification.

in lements are considered separately for

st. The capital element is applied to reduce the
arged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in

The lease rentals are treated as consisting of ca
outstanding obligation and the interest eleme
proportion to the reducing capital element o@itsta

Operating Leases

Leases not meeting the criteria of a fin lea re treated as an operating lease. Costs in respect of operating
leases are charged on a straight iso e lease term. Any lease premiums or incentives are spread over the
minimum lease term.

Arrangements that do
are accounted for und

th al status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for payment
y where fulfiiment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.

Revaluation re§€rve

Surplus isin evaluation of the College’s properties are transferred to the revaluation reserve. Additional
depr rged on the revalued amount of these assets is transferred from the revaluation reserve to the
co iture Account together with any surplus or deficit on disposal.

Sto held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow-
ing and defective stocks.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include sums on short-term deposits with recognised banks, building societies and
government securities.
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Taxation

The College has been entered into the Scottish Charity Register and is entitled, in accordance with section 13(1) of
the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, to refer to itself as a Charity registered in Scotland. The
College is recognised by HM Revenue & Customs as a charity for the purposes of section 505, Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988 and is exempt from corporation tax on its charitable activities. The College receives no
similar exemption in respect of Value Added Tax.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the College has a present or constructive obligation as a result of a past e
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable esti
made of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is determined by discounting the expected future flows\a ax ra
that reflects risks specific to the liability.

A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obli
be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wh

stence will only
control of the

only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain f
College.

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised in th la
Agency arrangements

The College acts as an agent in the collec and, payment of certain Student Support Funds. These funds are
excluded from the College’s Statem rehe ncome, and movements have been disclosed in the notes
to the accounts. Where the College more discretion in the manner in which specific funds are disbursed, and
those funds do not meet the definition geneyfunds, the income and expenditure relating to those funds are
shown in the College’s Stateme pr ive Income.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions denomi
transaction. M
year-end rate he res

eign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
d liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the

Retj ent benefits

The two principal pension schemes for the College are the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and the
Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme (STSS).

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a pension scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable pay, prior to 1 April 2015 and a career
average scheme from 1 April 2015. The assets and liabilities of the scheme are held separately from those of the
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College. Pension scheme assets are measured using market values. Pension scheme liabilities are measured using a
projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent
term and currency to the liability. Contributions to the Scheme are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions
over employees’ working lives with the College. The contributions are determined by an actuary on the basis of
triennial valuations using the Projected Unit Method. Variations from regular cost are spread over the expected
average remaining working lifetime of members of the scheme, after making allowances for future withdrawals.
The amount charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income represents the service cost expected to arise from
employee service in the current year.

Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme (STSS)

The College participates in the STSS pension scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable pay. The @ssetsof
the scheme are held separately from those of the College. The College is unable to identify its share, of the
underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore, assrequired by
FRS 102, accounts for the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. As a result, the amount charged to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income represents the contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the year.

Pension Provision

The College has made provision for the enhanced pensions, payable to former employees whe have taken early
retirement, for which it is liable. This provision is calculated based on the detuarial tables'whi€h*take account of the
enhancement payable, the age, sex and marital status of the former employeeiThe annual cost of the enhancement
is funded from the provision. The provision is made in accordance with FRS 102)and any movements are adjusted
through the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derivatives

Derivatives are held on the balance sheet at fair value withhmovements in fair value recorded in the Surplus or
Deficit.

Derivative financial instruments are initially measlred atyfairvalue on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently measured at/ fair value through profit or loss. Derivatives are carried as assets
when the fair value is positive and as liabilities' when the fair value is negative. The fair value of interest rate swap
contracts are determined by calculating the presentvalue of the estimated future cash flows based on observable
yield curves.

Reserves

Reserves are classified as restricted or unrestricted. Restricted reserves include balances where the donor has
designated a specific pufposei@and therefore the College is restricted in the use of these funds.

Change in accounting policy

The College is preparing its financial statements in accordance with the 2015 SORP for the first time in the financial
year to 3dluly 2026.

Following the capversion to 2015 SORP the College has changed the following accounting policies in the financial
year 31 July. 2016.

Deferf@d Capital Grant

Undér the 2007 SORP capital government grants given to the College to support any fixed asset purchases or
construction were permitted to be accounted for as deferred reserves on the balance sheet within reserves. The
income was then released to the income and expenditure account in line with the depreciation charge of the
respective fixed asset, in essence offsetting the depreciation charge within the income and expenditure account.

As a result of FRS 102 the college has elected to use the accruals model for all government grants which requires the

deferred element of the capital grant to be retained within creditors as a deferred income rather than a reserve.
Note 38 provides the detail of the adjustments required for both the previous and the current financial year.
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Derivatives

The college uses an interest rate swap to adjust interest rate exposure in order to guarantee fixed interest payments
for the bank loan where payments are variable and hence exposed to interest rate movements. The interest rate
swap has been recorded as a liability on the balance sheet at fair value and accounted for at fair value through profit
and loss. Under previous UK GAAP these were not re-valued to fair value or shown on the college’s balance sheet at
the year end. An adjustment was made to reflect the opening fair value as at April 2014 (£92k), and the movement
during both 2014/15 (£309k) and 2015/16 (£441k) has been included within the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Year Ended
31 July
2016

2 Scottish Funding grants

FE recurrent grant (including fee waiver) 25,202
Childcare funds 696
SFC deferred income 2,712
Scottish Funding Council maintenance grant 1,396
Other Scottish Funding Council grants 1,516
Total 31,522
3 Tuition fees and education contracts
Further education fees - UK & EU Students 130 145
Higher education fees 1,532 1,877
Skills Development Scotland Income 993 1,298
Education contracts 1,900 1,635
Other contracts 3,659 4,971
8,214 9,926

4  Other grant income
European funds 0 0
Forth Valley College Foundation 370 0

Other grants 281 97
Total 651 97
5 Other operating income

Residences, catering and conferences 817 1,064
Other income-generating activities 93 118
Otherincome 545 667
Total 1,455 1,849

6 Investment inf@me
Other interest rec ble 14 26

7 D

onations
6 e no do s during 2015/16.
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Year Ended Period Ended
31 July 31 July
2016 2015
£000 £000
8  Staff costs
Salaries 18,614 22,961
Social security costs 1,485 1,752
Other pension costs (including FRS 102 adjustment of £399k (2014/15: £843k) 3,368 4,226
Total 23,467 28,9,
Academic/ Teaching Departments 14,330
Academic/ Teaching Services 3,156
Administration and Central Services 3,307
Premises

Other expenditure
Catering and Residences

Modern Apprentice Trainees

Total

Compensation for loss of office payable to a senior post-holder:
No senior post holder left office during the year.

The average number of full time equivalent employees, including higher paid e during the period was:
No. No.
Senior management 7 7
Teaching departments 262 266
Teaching services, Admin and central services 232 221
Premises 13 12
Catering 18 13
Modern Apprentice Trainees 108 111
Total 640 630
Analysed as:
Staff on permanent contracts 606 596
Staff on temporary contracts 34 34
640 630
The number of staff, including senior t-ho and the Principal, having responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of th e, o received emoluments including benefits in kind where appropriate,
excluding pension contributi annua from the 12 and 16 month periods in the following ranges were:
2016 2016 2015 2015
Senior post-  Other members Senior post- Other members
holder of staff holder of staff
No. No. No. No.
0 8 0 6
1 1 1 1
2 0 3 0
1 0 1 0
2 0 1 0
0 0 1 0
1 0 0 0
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Year Ended Period Ended
31 July 31 July
2016 2015
9 Senior post-holders' emoluments No. No.
The number of senior post-holders that form the senior management team, including the Principal was: 7 7
Year Ended Period Ended

31 July 31J

2016 2

£000
Senior post-holders' emoluments are made up as follows:
Salaries and benefits

Employer's Pension contributions

Total emoluments

The above emoluments include amounts payable to the Principal, the highest paid senior post-holder, of:

Salary 1 147
Benefits in kind 0
6 147

Pension contributions 20 22

The Principal and two other senior post-holders were members of th tis
senior post-holders were members of the Local Government Pensi
same rate as for other members of staff.

ensions Agency and the other four
ension contributions were paid at the

The Chair of the Board of Management was entitled to ¢ re ra 21k in the financial period and an accrual has
been made for his fee. Other members of the Board of e other than the Principal and staff members, did not
receive any payment from the College other than imb ent of travel and subsistence expenses incurred in the
course of their duties.
Year Ended Period Ended
31 July 31 July
2016 2015
Restated
£000 £000
10 Pension Provision Charge
Increase due to revaluation of pension liability 296 (261)
Interest 251 420
547 159
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Year Ended Period Ended
31 July 31 July
2016 2015
£000 £000
11 Other operating expenses
Teaching departments 1,676 2,961
Administration and central services 1,331 1,915
Premises costs 1,288 1,959
Planned maintenance 299 1,00.
Other employee related costs 420
Agency staff costs 70
Other income generating activities 321
Residences, catering and conferences 491
Childcare 647

6,54,

Total

Other operating costs include:
Auditors' remuneration

- external audit of the financial statements 26

- internal audit services 28

- external auditors other services 4

- internal auditors other services 13
Hire machinery - operating leases 126 143
Hire of premises - operating leases 70 88
240 302

12 Interest and other finance costs

Loan interest 186 256
Increase in fair value of derivatives 441 309
Pension finance costs (note 27) 490 613
Total 1,117 1,178

13 Forth Valley College Foundation

Donation to Forth Valley College Foundation 0 1,100
14 Taxation
The Board does not consider that the ge iable for any corporation tax arising out of its activities during the period.

15 Tangible Fixed Assets
Land and buildings were rev. 2015 by DM Hall, Chartered Surveyors, in the capacity of independent valuer and
in accordance with the Roya itution ‘ofChartered Surveyors' Appraisal and Valuation Manual. As the majority of the
College’s buildings are i

f depreciated replacement cost with the exception of the land at Branshill, Alloa and
ich are valued on the basis of Open Market value. Land is not depreciated and buildings are
life as identified by the valuer.

or the Middlefield site was obtained as at 31 July 2016 on the basis of fair value which resulted in the
ired by £1,650Kk.
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Total

£000

64,779
(1,650)
155

0

61,094

Land and Plant and
Buildings Equipment
£000 £000
Cost or valuation
At 1 August 2015 60,101 4,678
Revaluation (1,650) 0
Additions 0 155
Disposals 0 0
Transfers (5) 5
At 31 July 2016 58,446
Depreciation
At 1 August 2015 0
Charge for the year 1,759
At 31 July 2016 1,759
Net Book Values at 31 July 2015 60,
Net Book Value at 31 July 2016 56,68 8

Land and buildings with a net book value of £50.2m have been funded from g
Funding Council capital grants. These assets may not be disposed of withd
Council and the College may have to return all or part of the sale proceeds to

16 Trade debtors and other receivables
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors - net of provision for doubtful debts

Prepayments and accrued income K
&

17 Creditors: Amounts falling due
Trade creditors
Other taxation and social security

Accruals and deferred inco
Loan Repayment

Other creditors

Deferred capital gr.

1 reditors: Amounts falling due after one year
D red Income
red/Unsecured Loan
eferred capital grant
Interest rate swap

47

57,405

al authority sources or from Scottish
approval of the Scottish Funding
Funding Council.

ferred income are the following items of income which have been deferred until specific performance related

As at As at
31 July 31 July
2016 2015
£000 £000
448 468
1,172 941
1,620 1,409
251 157
505 451
1,498 1,679
151 146
112 402
1,419 1,548
3,936 4,383
66 29
218 273
284 302
4,064 4,215
29,612 30,915
843 402
34,519 35,532
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As at As at
31 July 31 July
2016 2015
£000 £000
Analysis of secured and unsecured loans
Repayable within one year 151 146
Repayable between one and two years 160 151
Repayable between two and five years 574 502
Repayable over five years 3,331 3,5
4,216 4,

The term loan is a 29 year loan from Barclays, taken out 30 September 2010. The first drawdown against the facil
2011/12. The College has an interest rates swap at 31 July 2016 of £4.2m at a fixed rate of 4.3% which terminate
2029. In the 12 month period to 31 July 2016, the College repaid £146k of the loan principal.

STSS Early LGPS r End d Ende
Retirement Pension 31 July
2015
Restated
19 Provisions for liabilities and charges £000
At 1 August 2015 17,737
Utilised in year (2,129)
Additions in 2015/16 1,801 2,446
Revaluation adjustment 2,794 1,498
Interest charged 741 1,033
At 31 July 2016 24,121 20,585

rising from early retirals. The value of the
independent firm of actuaries.

The STSS early retirement provision above is in respect of fut
provision is based on a valuation at 31 July 2016 performe

The valuation of the STSS unfunded pension liabilities at 31 July
key actuarial assumptions adopted as at 31 July 20 y n a discount rate of 3.6% pa and a pension increase
assumption of 2.6% pa. However the valuation of the S
increase assumption of 4.0% pa (as opposed to 2.6% p
around 20%).

o the unfunded liabilities at 31 July 2015 being overstated (by

As a result of this overstatement the 2 58S arly retiral provision included in these financial statements have been
restated from the figures in the 2014/ tatements and have been revised downwards by £1.5m.

The LGPS pension provision rel ility under the College’s membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Further details are provided at not
20 Restricted Reserve

The college has ict s as at 31 July 2016
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Year Ended Period Ended
31 July 31 July
2016 2015
Note £000 £000
21 Reconciliation of operating deficit to net cash flow from operating activities
Operating deficit after depreciation of assets, loss on revaluation of land and buildings and tax (2,085) (2,299)

Pension costs (less contributions payable) 27 399
Depreciation 15 2,194
Interest payable on swap 441
Revaluation adjustment for Land and Buildings 0
Deferred capital grants released to income (1,586)
(Increase)/Decrease in stock (3)
(Increase)/Decrease in debtors 16 (211)
Decrease in creditors 17,18 3
Increase/(decrease) in pension provision 19

Interest receivable - bank interest 6,22

Interest paid - loan interest 12,22 1
Net return on pension liability 27

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (3

22 Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Interest received 14 26
Interest paid (186) (256)
Net cash outflow from investments and servicing of finance (172) (230)

23 Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of tangible fixed assets 15 (155) (638)
Deferred capital grants received 155 638
Net cash flow from capital expenditure 0 0
24 Financing

Loan repayment 17,18 (146) (139)
Net cash outflow from financing (146) (139)
As at As at
31 July Cash 31 July
2015 Flows 2016
£000 £000 £000

25 Cashand cas en
Cash and cash equivalents 1,609 (683) 926
Year Ended Period Ended
31 July 31 July
2016 2015
Equipment Property Total Total
26 LegaSe commitments £000 £000 £000 £000
a during the year 126 70 196 245

uture minimum lease payments due:

Not later than 1 year 74 35 109 210
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 267 0 267 35
Later than 5 years 0 0 0 0
Total lease payments due 341 35 376 245
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27 Pensions and similar obligations

The College's employees belong to two principal pension schemes, the Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme (STSS) and the
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).

Year Ended Period Ended
31 July 31 July
2016 2015
Total Total
£000 £
The total pension costs for the institution was :
Contribution to STSS 1,567

Contribution to LGPS 1,402
Pension costs as a result of implementing FRS 102 399
Total pension cost (Note 8) 3,368

Employer contribution rates
STSS 17.
LGPS 17.99

The Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme

(a) Forth Valley College participates in the Scottish Teachers’ Superannuation Seheme. The sch unfunded statutory

public service pension scheme with benefits underwritten by the UK Government."The scheme is financed by payments from

(b) Forth Valley College has no liability for other employer’s

(c) As the scheme is unfunded there can be no deficit or
the scheme.

(d) (i) The scheme is an unfunded multi-employer defi scheme

for accounting purposes as a defined contribution scheme in circumstances
tify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme

015 was 14.9% of pensionable pay. This increased to 17.2% from 1

rate applied is a variable it will provide an actuarial yield of 9.6% of

(ii) Itis accepted that the scheme c
where Forth Valley College i

(iii) The employer contribution
September 2015.
pensionable pay

(iv) At the last valuatio f £1.3 billion was identified in the notional fund which will be repaid by a supplementary

s per the Scottish Public Pensions Agency website. Forth Valley College's level of participation in the
based on the proportion of the employer contributions paid in 2015/16.

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2014 by a qualified independent
actuary, rolled forward to 31 July 2016 using approximation methods which allow for changes in financial assumptions, additional
benefits, cash flows and actual pension increase orders.
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Principal Actuarial assumptions
Life expectancy is based on the Vita Curves mortality tables with some adjustments. Based on these assumptions, the average
future life expectancies at age 65 are summarised below:

Male Female
years years
Current pensioners 22.1 23.8
Future pensioners 24.3 26.3
As at
31 July
2016
Pension increase rate 1.9%
Salary increase rate 3.4%
Discount rate 2.4%

The assets of the scheme and the expected rates of return were:

estments
31 July
2015
Equities 63%
Bonds 24%
Property 8%
Cash 5%
The following information is in relation to the Statement of Comprehensive Income:
Year Ended Period Ended
31 July 31 July
2016 2015
£000 £000
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Current service cost 1,801 2,446
Interest cost 1,527 2,138
Interest income on plan assets (1,037) (1,525)
Total 2,291 3,059
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obli ns
Opening defined benefit obligations 41,748 35,887
Current service cost 1,801 2,446
Interest cost 1,527 2,138
Contributions by members 422 491
Remeasurements
- change in demographic assumption 0 (297)
- change in financial assumption 5,687 1,397
- other experience (459) 294
Benefits paid (824) (571)
Unfunded benefits paid (28) (37)
Closing defined be| i 49,874 41,748
28,331 25,685
1,037 1,525
2,730 (365)
422 491
1,374 1,566
28 37
(824) (571)
(28) (37)
ng fair value of the plan assets 33,070 28,331
The underlying net liability for retirement benefits attributable to the College at 31 July 2016 is £16.8m 16,804 13,417

An adjustment was made for the year ended July 2015 as the basis for the net interest calculation was changed due to the
implementation of FRS102 and as a result the 2014/15 pension finance cost increased by £645k (note 12), the 2014/15 actuarial
loss decreased by £745k and the pension liability at 31 July 2015 decreased by £100k.
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Year Ended

31 July

Analysis of projected amount to be charged to operating result for the year to 31 July 2017 2017
£000

Projected current service cost 2,111
Interest on obligation 1,387
Interest income on plan assets (804)
Total 2,694

28 Related Party Transactions

The College's board members are the trustees for charitable law purposes. Due to the nature of the College's operatio
composition of its Board of Management being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, it i
transactions will take place with organisations in which a member of the Board of Management may
transactions involving organisations in which a member of the Board of Management may have a
at arm's length and in accordance with normal project and procurement procedures.

During the period under review, transactions with bodies in which a member of the Board o
which, in aggregate, exceeded £5k are noted below:

College
Member Organisation Contract type College  Sales Purchases
£000 £000
Mr H Hall University of Strathclyde Educational 79 0
Miss L Dougall University of Strathclyde Educational 79 0
Ms CJack Scottish Power Edu atlonal 220 9
Mr L McCabe University of Stirling 1137 26
Mr L McCabe APUC 0 68
Mr C Alexander BP Oil Exploration Ltd 552 0
Mr H Hall Colleges Scotland 0 34
Mr K Thomson Historic Environment Scotland 60 0
At 31 July 2016 the following balances existed which were grea or the organisations noted above:
Due to the Due from the
Organisation College College
£000 £000
University of Stirling 196 0
BP Oil Exploration 37 0
233 0

The College had transact e year, or worked in partnership with, the following bodies in which members of the Board

of Management h positions.

Member Organisation

Mr H Hall University of Strathclyde Chief Operating Officer
University of Strathclyde Faculty Manager
Scottish Power Energy Networks Head of Delivery (Central & Fife)
University of Stirling Director of Finance
Fujifilm Diosynth Biotechnology Senior Commercial Development Manager
BP Oil Exploration Ltd Reliability and Maintenance Manager
Historic Environment Scotland Board Member

29 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are carried in the balance sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating
the present value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining period of the instrument, using the assumption that
the fair value of trade and other receivables (note 16) and trade creditors (note 17) is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.
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Liquidity risk — The College uses an interest rate swap to adjust interest rate exposure in order to guarantee fixed interest
payments for a bank loan (note where payments are variable and hence exposed to interest rate movements). The swap has a
fixed rate of 4.3% and the fair value as at July 2016 was £843k. The swap is due to terminate on 30 July 2029. The term loan is a
29 year loan from Barclays, taken out 30 September 2010. The first drawdown against the facility was in 2011/12. In the 12
month period to 31 July 2016 the college repaid £146k of the loan principal. A covenant was arranged as part of the original loan

agreement.
Year Ended Period Ended
31 July 31
FE Bursary EMA's Other 2016 20

30 FE Bursary and other Student Support Funds £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance brought forward 231 20 1
Allocation received in period 2,764 176 259 3,

2,995 196 260 3,
Expenditure (3,034) (196) (221) (3,4
Virements 39 0 (3
Balance Carried forward (0) (0) ( 250

Represented by:

Repayable to Funding Council as Clawback 0 0 0 0 250
Retained by College for Students 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 250

FE Bursary and Student Support Fund grants are available solely for stude
and related disbursements are therefore excluded from the Income and

g only as paying agent. The grants

Account.

Year Ended Period Ended

31 July 31 July

2016 2015

31 Childcare Funds £000 £000

Balance brought forward 13 0

Allocation received in period 633 710
646 710
Expenditure (646) (697)

Balance Carried forward (0) 13

Represented by:

Repayable to Funding Council a ba 0 13
0 13
Childcare Fund saction luded within the College Income & Expenditure account in accordance with the Accounts

Direction issue the Scottish Funding Council.
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Year Ended Period Ended
31 July 31 July
2016 2015
32 HE Discretionary £000 £000
Balance brought forward 1 58
Allocation received in period 127 119
128 177
Expenditure (126) (17
Repayable to SAAS as Clawback (1)
Balance Carried forward 1 1
Represented by:
Repayable to SAAS as Clawback 1
1
33 Capital Commitments
There were no capital commitments as at 31 July 2016
34 Contingent Liabilities
The college has no contingent liabilities at 31 July 2016
35 Post Balance Sheet Events
Scottish Ministers approved the Full Business Case for a new Falkirk Camp h alue of the existing Falkirk campus,
based on depreciated replacement cost will change to being based on . ill result in an impairment in the value
of the existing Falkirk Campus of £15.5m based on the market inclt it the Full Business Case.
36 Deficit resulting from non-cash transactions
One consequence of college reclassification as central go 1 i that, from 1 April 2014, while colleges continued to

e, they are now also required to comply with Central
he way in which non-cash depreciation charges are treated.
ollege,generated surplus cash of £608k (2014/15: £700k) from SFC funding

prepare accounts under the FE/HE Statement of Recg
Government budgeting rules. This affects, amon
For the financial year 2015/16 this meant that
and commercial income, which had beemea

College on this matter on 30 January 201 C/A
loan repayments and to deliver improve ices t
effectively frozen.

The impact of the above, togeth
The Scottish Funding Coungi
following SFC’s guidance
College’s on-going finan

as a ‘technical’ deficit and should not be interpreted, on its own, as a challenge to the
ility. The "technical" deficit also applies to the pension and land revaluation adjustments.

a), 'Land and buildings - should the full business case be approved during 2016/17 for the new Falkirk campus, a formal
valuation will be obtained for the existing Falkirk building on an open market basis (rather than the current depreciated
replacement cost basis) and the expected impairment will be reflected within the 2016/17 annual accounts

b) Interest rate risk - the College is exposed to interest rate movements on the loan and as a result entered into a swap
arrangement when the loan was agreed. As a complex financial instrument the swap is being accounted for at fair value
at each year end. In the current market environment the fair value of the swap agreement is a liability to the College, as
assessed by the bank and confirmed as reasonable through an independent assessment. The interest rate swap fair
value was a liability at 31 July 2016 but if the LIBOR interest rates and other market factors change going forward there
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is the potential for the fair value of the swap to be assessed as an asset for the College rather than a liability, or for the
liability to increase

c) LGPS Pension liability - the College's participation in the Local Government Pension Scheme requires the funding of
liabilities that may stretch out 60-70 years based on the working lives of active members and period during which
pensions are in payment. During these periods there will be diverse economic cycles, varying levels of investment return
and changes in mortality rates. The key assumptions that impact on the net pension liability in future are set out within
note 27

d) STSS Early Retirement provision. The College has a provision for staff who had early retirement. The amount of
liability varies based on a number of factors, but most significantly on the discount rate applied by the actuary. T ey
assumptions used in the valuation are the same as for the LGPS (as set out in note 27).

The following are other areas where there is significant estimates or judgements which affect the financial statement

a) Depreciation - depreciation rates have been set for the Falkirk, Alloa and Stirling campu
recommendations of estimated useful lives by valuers

ash flow
ertaken the three
of any change in
to take a prudent

b) LGPS - Cash payments - all of the factors set out above regarding the LGPS could j
position as they could require the actuary to set a revised employer contribution
yearly valuation of the pension fund. Whilst there is always an element of uncertain
the contribution rate, the actuary is obliged to have regard to the Fund's Funding St
long term view of liabilities and maintain as constant an employer contribation rate as p

38 Transition to FRS102 and the 2015 SORP

As explained in the accounting policies, these are the College's first fina
g the financial statements for the year
ended July 2016, the comparative information presented in t ts for the year ended July 2015 and in the
preparation of an opening FRS 102 Statement of FinancialyPos
Statement of Financial Position, the College has adjusted un previously in financial statements prepared in

accordance with its old basis of accounting (2007 SORP).

An explanation of how the transition to FRS 102 an ORR 2 has affected the College's financial position, financial
performance and cash flows is set out in the following tab

As at As at

1 April 31 July

2014 2015

Financial position £000 £000
Total reserves under 2007 SORP 41,426 36,502
Deferred capital grant (34,537) (32,462)
Financial Instrument - fair value b (92) (401)

Total effect of transition to F 0 (34,629) (32,863)
Total res de 6,797 3,639
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Period Ended

31 July
2015
Financial performance £000
Surplus for the year under 2007 SORP (restated) (1,345)
Financial Instrument - movement in fair value of the swap (309)
Increase in pension costs (6.
Effect of transition to FRS 102 (

Reclassification of actuarial losses into the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Total comprehensive income for the year under 2015 SORP

Deferred Capital Grants
Under the 2007 SORP capital government grants were permitted to be accounted for as deferr
within reserves.

The College has adopted the accrual model to account for the deferred capital grants with the
the grant is now reflected as deferred income within creditors as opposed to being held w
required to the financial performance.

ferred element of
h no adjustment

reserves

Pension Costs

FRS 102 requires that the net interest expense (or income) is based upon the net surplus) within the scheme however
this differs from UK GAAP where the interest is equal to the difference between 2 discount on scheme liabilities and
the expected return on assets.

Financial Instruments

Interest rate swaps are recorded on the balance sheet at fair va nd ted for at fair value through profit and loss. Under
previous UK GAAP these were not re-valued to fair value le] t balance sheet at the year end. Net interest
payable is accrued.

Cash Flows
There was no impact of the transition to FRS 102 on th vs of the College.
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Appendix 1 Accounts Direction from Scottish Funding Council

2015-16 Accounts direction for Scotland’s colleges and universities

1. Itis the Scottish Funding Council’s direction that colleges and universities comply with the 2015 Statement
of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education (SORP) in preparing their ann
report and accounts.

2. Colleges and universities must comply with the accounts direction in the preparation of their annu @
and accounts in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with the Scottish Funding Co C i
Regional Strategic Body (for assigned colleges).

3. Incorporated colleges are also required to comply with the Government Fi 12015-

16 (FReM) where applicable.

4. Incorporated colleges are reminded that they must send two copies of their a
the Auditor General for Scotland by 31 December 2016.

5. The annual report and accounts should be signed by the chief veyofficer and by the chair, or one
other member of the governing body.

6. Incorporated colleges should reproduce this Direction a

Scottish Funding Council
24 August 2016
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Notice: About this

This report has been pr
on Auditing (ISAs) and et out within Audit Scotland’s Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’) and
Statement of Resp@

This repo it of only Forth Valley College and is made available to Audit Scotland
(together With the@eneficiaries), and has been released to the beneficiaries on the basis that it shall
not be co refgfred to or disclosed, in whole or in part, without prior written consent.

is report constitutes a valuation or legal advice.

not verified the reliability or accuracy of any information obtained in the course of our
wokk, other than the limited circumstances set out in the scope and objectives section of this report.

is report is not suitable to be relied on by any party wishing to acquire rights against Henderson
Loggie CA (other than the beneficiaries) for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
beneficiaries that obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on this report (or any
part of it) does so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law Henderson Loggie CA does
not assume any responsibility and will not accept any liability in respect of this report to any party
other than the beneficiaries.
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Executive Summary

Financial Statements

Chartered Accountants

o On 8 December 2016 we plan to issue an audit report with an unqualified opinion on th
financial statements of the College for the year ended 31 July 2016 and on the regulari
the financial transactions reflected in those financial statements.

. Three new accounting standards (Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 100, 101
into force in 2015/16, with comparative figures for 2014/15 restated
these new standards. In addition, a new Education Statement of R
(SORP) has been implemented for the 2015/16 financial statement

. The current financial period covers the year to 31 July 2016. The c
16 months from 1 April 2014 to 31 July 2015. Colleges been allo align their
financial year to the academic year, although they are still ired to meet HM Treasury

budgeting and reporting requirements at a March year

. The College met its Credits targe

° Income of £0.339 million fro e ley College Foundation, an arms’ length body,
has been included in t nt o prehensive Income. This is part of the £1.800
million grant that on 2 e 2095, the Forth Valley College Foundation agreed to award to

the College for assi the’new Falkirk campus redevelopment project.

. There was expe .739 million during the year (14/15: £0.176 million) by the
College on and other costs related to the Full Business Case for a new Falkirk
campus. ncluded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

. Th 3l Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) pension liability increased in total
b illion during the year to £16.804 million at 31 July 2016, which was largely due to

y actuarial assumptions relating to discount rates, along with net interest on the
ension liability and a £0.399 million extra charge for the current cost of pensions
u FRS102.

he College’s Middlefield site was revalued at 31 July 2016, which led to an impairment of
£1.650 million being recognised against the revaluation reserve through other comprehensive
income. The reason for the impairment was that ground surveys identified that significant
piling works would be required before building on the site which had not previously been
known.

. The annual financial statements of the College comply with the Accounts Direction issued by
the Scottish Funding Council (SFC), the SORP on Accounting for Further and Higher
Education and, as far as applicable, the Government Financial Reporting Manual 2015/16 (‘the
FReM).
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Financial Statements (Continued)

. There was a prior period adjustment made to the enhanced early retirement provision
expenditure for 2014/15 as a result of an actuarial error, and this reduced the 2014/15 deficit
by £1.543 million.

. Six audit and accounting adjustments were made to the draft financial statements present
for audit; which had the impact of increasing the reported deficit for the year by £1.52
million. The main reason for this was the impact of the error in the actuarial calcula
(£1.525 million), with the other five items not having any net impact on the deficj t
year.

. A number of disclosure and clarification adjustments were made t nts
to ensure SORP, FReM and Accounts Direction compliance and i

presentation of the financial statements.

Corporate Governance

V€rnance Statement and
, replacing the Operating

. A Performance Report and Accountability Report (includ
Remuneration and Staff Report) are included in
and Financial Review that was included ingprevi s.

. The College’s Governance Statement ¢ at orate governance has been
exercised throughout the year in accorda i e principles of the Code of Good

ception in relation to the role of the

ained in the report and financial statements), the

e SFC Financial Memorandum with colleges.

Secretary to the Board, which has
Scottish Public Finance Man

. No material weakness the unting and internal control systems were identified
during the 2015/16 fi i tements audit which would adversely affect the ability to

ise and’report financial and other relevant data so as to result in a

financial statements. Some areas were however identified from

material misstat

our syste i esting during 2015/16 where controls could be further improved to
bring the S e with good practice.

. W, no any matters of concern relating to the College’s corporate governance
arfangemefits regarding the prevention and detection of fraud, or standards of conduct and
h veption and detection of corruption.

. Th&€ollege had an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing its significant
risks.

rformance
. The College management and committee structure included mechanisms to monitor and

manage financial and non-financial performance which are considered appropriate.

. A Regional Outcome Agreement with the SFC was in place for 2015/16 and the Self-
Evaluation review of this found that most key targets had been met.
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Outlook

. The funding position will remain challenging going forward. Commercial work has been an
important income source to generate extra income for the College. However the downturn
in the oil and gas sector, which is affecting commercial income, and the impact of national pay
bargaining proposals are of significant concern and robust budget setting and monitoring
arrangements will be essential in helping to retain sustainability.

o The College’s total funding allocations for the 2016/17 academic year from the SFC fé
Teaching and Fee Waiver is £20.148 million, an increase of £0.375 million from 20
with the equivalent academic output (16/17 and 15/16: 83,984 Credits). The
allocation for 2016/17 from the SFC has increased by £0.225 million t
(2015/16: £1.056 million).

. The College’s planned Falkirk campus redevelopment project is pr
Business Case having been developed by the College in conjunction
consultants. This is planned to be funded by the SFC th h capital fu and approval to
progress the project into procurement was received fro cottish Government on 29
November 2016.
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Introduction

Background

1. 2015/16 was the fifth and final year in our five-year appointment as external auditors of Fo
Valley College (‘the College’). This report summarises our opinion and conclusions and
highlights significant issues arising from our work. It covers the communication of findi
from the audit required by International Standard on Auditing (ISA) (UK and Ireland)
Communication of Audit Matters with Those Charged with Governance. The fipaneia
statements for 2015/16 cover the 12-month period to 31 July 2016 and the cofiparat
figures are for the 16-month period to 31 July 2015. Paragraph 27 e th&keasons
this.

2. The audit framework is outlined in our Strategic Planning MemoraR@um and 2045/16 Annual
Audit Plan issued on 19 May 2016 and considered and approved by itflCommittee at
its meeting on 2 June 2016. The scope of the audit was t0

nt authorities, the financial
with the standards and

. provide an opinion on, to the extent required by
statements and the regularity of transactions in act
guidance issued by the Financial Reporting

. review and report on the Coll oyérnance arrangements in relation to
systems of internal control, the p tection of fraud and irregularity,
standards of conduct, and preventio ction of corruption; and the College’s
financial position;

. audit specific parts of ation report;

. read and expres pini@h,on whether the Performance and Accountability Reports
are consiste i inancial statements; and

he College’s arrangements to manage its performance, as they
nomy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources.

compliance with legislation and financial regulations;

. fixed assets transactions, including consideration of any impairment as a result of

revaluation or asset conditions, on-going estate improvements and maintenance; and

compliance with relevant financial reporting standards;

recoverability of debtors;

recognition of funding provided for specific purposes and the regularity of

corresponding expenditure;

review of expenditure on the Full Business Case;

. compliance with FRS102 regarding the provision for pension liabilities and provision
for early retirals; and

. compliance with the SORP on Accounting for Further and Higher Education, FReM

and Accounts Direction.
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Basis of Information

4. External auditors do not act as a substitute for the College’s own responsibility for putting in
place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance with
the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted
for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

provided by, or is based on discussions with, management and staff of the College. E
the extent necessary for the purposes of the audit, this information has not been
independently verified. The contents of this report should not be taken as refl
views of Henderson Loggie CA except where explicitly stated as bein

5. To a certain extent the content of this report comprises general information that has b %
D

6. As our audit is designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion@n the fina ements
taken as a whole, our report cannot be expected to include all th
recommendations that a more extensive special examination woul
Weaknesses or risks identified by us are only those that fiaye come to ention during
our normal audit work in accordance with the Audit ScotlaRéhCode of Audit Practice, and

may not be all that exist.

Acknowledgement
7. Our audit has brought us into contact a e llege staff. We wish to place on
record our appreciation of the co-operati n istance extended to us by staff in the

discharge of our responsibilities.

&



HENDERSON LOGGIE

Forth Valley College
DRAFT Annual Audit Report 2015/16 to the Board of Management and

The Auditor General for Scotland

Financial Statements

Audit Opinion

Chartered Accountants

8. On 8 December 2016 we plan to issue an audit report with an unqualified opinion on:

e the financial statements of the College for the year ended 31 July 2016;

ity
financial

date of

in the peri December
2016 to determine if there are any post balance sheet eve hat require adjustment to be
made to the financial statements or additional disclosure

10. At the planning stage of the audit we iden ey Jareas of focus which we considered
had the greatest effect on the overall audi ocation of resources in the audit,
and directing the efforts of the audit tea dings from our audit work on these items
are set out below. Management ove S s and income recognition are included
below as there is a presumption m nal auditing standards for all audits to take

|

account of these areas.
Key audit area . Our findings

Completeness of Our review of key income streams
income venUe streams and transactions did not identify any items which
through a combination of had been omitted or accounted for
analytical review, compliance incorrectly.

testing of key controls and detailed

substantive testing, obtain comfort

that these transactions appear

reasonable based on our

knowledge of the College.

gement Our approach was to review any We did not identify any significant
override of controls | significant unusual transactions to unusual transactions or manual
ensure that they appeared postings that did not have
reasonable in the context of our adequate back-up or management
knowledge of the business. explanations.
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Key audit area Our planned approach Our findings

The College may not = We planned to identify major areas = Results from our testing were
comply with of legislation and financial satisfactory.
legislation and regulations that the College is
financial regulations required to comply with, consider
the risk of non-compliance of each,

and consider whether there may be
a material financial impact from
these. We then planned to discuss
with management what key

controls are in place to ensure

compliance and asked whether any

actual, suspected or known

instances of non-compliance had
been noted.

The College may not = We planned to review a sample Results ur testing were

properly account for | capital expenditure to ensure it satisfactory.
its capital projects appropriate to capitalise this.

expenditure and also planned to review significa

related funding or accounts of a repairs an

fixed assets maintenance na
transactions. This
includes
consideration of any
impairment as a
result of revaluation
or asset conditions,
on-going estate
improvements and
maintenance; and
compliance with
relevant financi
reporting standa

imp nt, and check that any
airments made had been
correctly treated.

Our approach was to review all Results from our testing were
significant ring fenced funds and satisfactory.

check whether grant terms and

conditions had been met before

recognising income.

The&College may not = We considered the process As part of auditing procedures,
achieve its planned undertaken by management to auditors must consider whether an
budget resultingina | satisfy themselves that the going entity can continue to operate for
deterioration of the | concern basis of preparation of the | a period of 12 months from the
financial position, financial statements was date of signing the financial
non-compliance with | appropriate. We also reviewed statements. This needs to be
financial covenants relevant evidence available, considered on an annual basis.
and going concern including management accounts and = Based on our review we consider
issues the Forecast Financial Return to the College is a going concern.

the SFC.
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Key audit area Our planned approach Our findings

Compliance with the = We planned to check whether Our review found a small number
SORP on Accounting = disclosures and accounting of items requiring amendment.
for Further and treatment was in line with the The College amended these for
Higher Education, SORP, FReM and Accounts the final version of the financial
FReM and Accounts | Direction through reviewing the statements.

Direction requirements and completing

checklists to ensure that the
requirements were being met.

11. We told you materiality at the planning stage was £0.299 million. This
draft financial statements were received to £0.335 million. Perfor
revised to £0.234 million from £0.209 million, and the amount bel
deemed to be clearly trivial became £0.023 million. We determin
College’s annual income.

Audit Completion

12. An important measure of proper financial control and ad
publication of audited financial statements. Table
the audit process.

is the timely closure and
e three key elements of

Table 1: Key elements of the audi

Completeness of draft financial
A set of draft financial statement
first day of the audit fieldwork aft did not include the
Performance Report, Acco part (including Corporate
Governance informa a number of financial statement disclosures.
These were received 4 ber 2016 after the audit fieldwork had
been completed. igh standard and required minimal
presentational ¢ the audit process.

on 17 October 2016, the

spons@ to audit queries
Audit quebies were dealt with in a timely manner.

orate Governance Statement

1 Colleges are required to include a statement on their corporate governance arrangements
within their annual financial statements. The statement describes the ways in which the
College has complied with good practice in corporate governance, including the
arrangements for risk management.

14. We are required to review the statement to assess whether the description of the process
adopted in reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control appropriately reflects
the process and report where the statement is not consistent with our knowledge of the
body and report if the statement does not comply with SFC requirements.
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Corporate Governance Statement (Continued)

15. The College’s Governance Statement for 2015/16 confirms that corporate governance has
been exercised throughout the year in accordance with the principles of the Code of Good
Governance for Scotland's Colleges (with one exception in relation to the role of the
Secretary to the Board, as detailed in paragraph 58 below, and which has been explained in
the report and financial statements), the SPFM and the SFC Financial Memorandum with
colleges.

16. From our audit work and our review of the College’s statement we have no issu r
within our audit opinion.

Remuneration and Staff Report

17. 2015/16 is the second time a Remuneration Report has been requ

18. We are required to audit part of the Remuneration and
remainder as part of our review of the Performance and
a specific opinion on whether the audited part ha,

19. audigion 17 October 2016. From the

ified opinion.

Performance Report and Ac y Report

20. erformance Report and Accountability Report

ancial Review prepared in previous years) to be
included in the financia . The content is prescribed through the Accounts
Direction from the eM.

21. We review the i rovided in the Performance Report and Accountability Report
and conside or not it is consistent with the financial statements and other
informati ered in the course of our audit. We are not required to verify, or
report o pleteness of the information in the Performance Report and
Ac 2l ort, with the exception of the audited element of the Remuneration and
Staff Rep

22, e ed the Performance Report and Accountability Report on 14 November 2016 and

congluded that an unqualified opinion could be provided for this.
nd Accounting Adjustments and Confirmation

In Table 2 we draw attention to the agreed audit and accounting adjustments to the financial
statements made by management following the audit process which had the impact of
increasing the 2015/16 deficit by £1.525 million. With the exception of item 2, which
processed the actuarial error on the early retirals pension provision, none of the adjustments
were material.
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Audit and Accounting Adjustments and Confirmation (Continued)

Table 2: Audit and accounting adjustments

1&E 1&E B/Sheet = B/Sheet

Description DR CR DR CR

£2000 £2000 £°000 £2000
B

1 14/15 (prior period adjustment
LGPS pension liability

Income and Expenditure Reserve
15/16

Income and Expenditure Reserve
Interest and other finance costs 4
Being adjustment for actuarial error relating to LGPS pension

2 14/15 (prior period adjustment)

STSS pension liability 1,543

Income and Expenditure Reserve 1,543
15/16

Pension Provision Charge 29

STSS pension liability 1,529

Being adjustment for actuarial error relating to STSS early
retirement pension

3 Staff costs 12
Accruals 12
Being accrual of pension costs on holiday en e
initially included

4 Staff costs 19
Accruals 19
Being accrual for voluntary severanc 0 ber

5 Accrued income 31
Other grant income 31
Being extra accrual ome the Forth Valley College
Foundation

6 Accrued income 113

113
from SFC for Student Support Funds

al (20158416 impact only) 1,560 35 148 1,673

erall'increase in Deficit 1,525

10
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Audit and Accounting Adjustments and Confirmation (Continued)

24. In addition, a number of disclosure and clarification adjustments were made to the financial

statements to ensure SORP, FReM and Accounts Direction compliance and improve the

overall presentation of the financial statements.

Confirmations and Representations

25. We confirm that as at the date of this report, in our professional judgement, Henderso,

Loggie CA was independent within the meaning of regulatory and professional requir:
and the objectivity of audit staff was not impaired.

26. In accordance with auditing standards, we obtained representations fr he ¢
material issues.

Financial Reporting

27. Scottish colleges were reclassified as Government Bodies
change of financial year-end to 31 March. From 1 April porated Colleges and
Regional Boards were required to comply with the SPF ere directed by SFC’s
Accountable Officer. Financial reporting is now e cordance with HM
Treasury’s FReM 2015/16 in addition to SOR ? cgbunting for Further and Higher
Education and the SFC’s Accounts Digecti A :

1 April 2014, resulting in a

e in 2013/14 colleges prepared financial'§tater@nts for an eight month period to 31 March

2014;
e following this change coll - ed to return to the 31 July financial year-end
although they are/sti i eet HM Treasury annual budgeting and reporting

inancial period for 2014/15 covered the 16 months from 1
April 2014 to 3

e College submitted the required Resource and other returns for 31
the SFC. In September, as allowed, an update was submitted which

¢ Offier income — reduction in grant from Arm’s

Length Foundation to College £(0.011) million
¢ Operating costs — Reversal of accrued costs £0.011 million
Pension liability adjustment (to reflect impact of pension
on the Comprehensive I&E Statement as at 31 July 2016 £0.089 million
2 The application of the FReM results in some changes and additional disclosure, including a

Performance Report and Accountability Report.
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Financial Reporting (Continued)

FRS 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard’ and new Education SORP

29. The FRC has been implementing a convergence programme aligning UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (GAAP) to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
published three new FRSs (FRS 100, 101 and 102) with the substantive FRS 102 “The Financi
Reporting Standard’ representing the final step towards IFRS convergence. These three new
FRS’ became the new UK GAAP, which is fully IFRS-based. The new accounting standa
came into force in the 2015/16 financial statements, which included comparative figu
2014/15 being restated in the 2015/16 financial statements. The main areas of ch
College related to the treatment of deferred capital grants, pension costs and
rate swap.

02,"and
available at

30. In addition, a new Education SORP was effective for 2015/16 whic
provides specific details on disclosure of the main statements. Th
www.fehesorp.ac.uk.

Financial Position

ding budgets each year to
s at note 36, the SFC has allowed
s as if it was a cash resource,
omprehensive Income. There are
the deficit position. Table 3 provides a

31. Colleges are required to break even in line with
31 March. For 2015/16, as noted in the

2015/16 2015/16 2016/17

\ moi. “s) (12 months) (12 months) (12 months)
£ -tual Planned Actual Planned

£000 £000 £000 £000

(2.299) (603)

restated

(2,085)

(3,660) (2,822) (4,354) (4,986)
restated
Cash balances 1,609 1,735 926 1,324

ource: Audited financial statements and June 2015 and June 2016 Forecast Financial Return (FFR)

The deficit of £2.085 million includes the following non-cash items:

£000
Use of depreciation cover 608
STSS Early retirement pension revaluation 547
LGPS pension revaluation 889
Increase in fair value of derivatives 441

12
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Financial Position (Continued)

33. A direct comparison of College income in 2015/16 of £33.522 million against the last financial
period is not possible given the change in accounting period from 16 months to 12 months.
Points to note for 2015/16 include:

° SFC Capital and Maintenance Grant recognised has decreased as £0.500 million of the
2015/16 grant allocation (relating to 1 April 2015 — 31 March 2016) was used in
2014/15 as well as the prior year having one off items including grant funding fo
demolition of the Middlefield building (£0.500 million);

° Deferred income release has decreased due to some assets becoming f
in the year;

° Other grant income has increased due to £0.370 million of i
the Forth Valley College Foundation as a contribution towa
costs for the new Falkirk campus; and

34. Similarly, a direct comparison of College expenditure in

° there was a staff pay increase awaid and ase in staff numbers, increase in
the STSS pension contributio d oval/ef national insurance rebates on
some national insurance catego I increased pay and related costs;

° a £0.399 million increase in pensio a result of the calculation under FRS102

' tual contributions;

° there was an increase in the :d early retirement provision cost by £0.388
million largely due t arial provision as a lower discount rate on
liabilities was lj ;

° other operatin e was down as there was no Middlefield demolition
expense, le sing SFC capital and maintenance funds (see related note

a range of other movements;

d due to a range of assets becoming fully depreciated in

J finance costs increased due to the fair value of the College’s interest
hich is a liability) worsening;

elWa@s a significant increase in expenditure on the Full Business Case for the new
Falkirk campus (up £1.563 million from the previous period); and

2014/15 expenditure included a donation of £1.100 million to the Forth Valley
ollege Foundation. No donation was made in 2015/16.

n recent years, voluntary severance costs, accounting for estates developments and the

onation to the Forth Valley College foundation has led to the College reporting an Income
and Expenditure Account reserve deficit (£4.354 million at 31 July 2016 (excluding pension
reserve)). As demonstrated from the information in paragraphs 31 to 34 the underlying
position in 2015/16 continues to be robust and projections show that the College should be
able to manage the position long term as long as it reacts to any negative changes on a timely
basis.
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Financial Position (Continued)

2015/16 Credits Outturn
36. The College’s outturn against its 2015/16 Credits target is shown in Table 4 below.

Table 4: 2015/16 Credits/Weighted SUMs outturn

2014/15 2015/16
(Weighted SUMs) (Credits)

Target (including ESF) 121,664
Actual 121,781

Excess
Source: Audited Credits and SUMs returns

Short and Long Term Creditors
37. In 2015/16, due to the application of FRS102, deferred
from reserves into current and long term creditors. Co \igures at 31 July 2015
have also been restated. The main reason for shg ditors reducing between 31 July
2015 and 31 July 2016 is that there were @ numf fStudent support funds that had
underspent in 2014/15 which had credito anGes d, but there are no similar
underspends this year.

ts have been reclassified

38. The long term creditors have decr,
release of income) and repayment
fair value of the College’s integ@st

deferred capital grants decreasing (due to
the’long term loan, offset by an increase in the
liability.

Pension Provisions
39. In 2015/16 the College ace@unted¥fer its participation in the local government pension

scheme as a defin e. This is consistent with the accounting treatment
adopted in previ

40.

million (restated balance — refer to paragraph 42 below for reason for restatement)
elating to pension costs from early retirements awarded to former employees. The
ollege’s approach to the valuation of the provision is to have an independent actuarial firm
calculate this provision annually.

42. There was a prior period adjustment made to the enhanced early retirement provision
expenditure for 2014/15 as a result of an actuarial error being identified for that year, and
this reduced the 2014/15 deficit by £1.543 million.
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Financial Position (Continued)

Capital Income and Expenditure
43. Arrangements to access capital funding have changed following Office of National Statistics
(ONS) reclassification.

44. All of the £0.155 million of capital additions in 2015/16 related to the purchase of IT
equipment.

45. The Middlefield site was revalued at 31 July 2016, which led to an impairment of

known. Based on the valuation obtained we are content that the
in the financial statements at an appropriate valuation.

46. In December 2014 an Outline Business Case for a new Félkirk campus

identified and that with the future of the Grangemouth | ical complex secure it was
important that the College had a modern fully equipped pport the oil and gas
industry as well as the needs of other local emplo ts. The need for a new
campus was also identified as important ip orde aghteye the College’s curriculum strategy
and to become a national and internation nt

47. An external project manager for the proj
Falkirk Campus Project Board which
Senior Management Team (SMT)

w pointed in March 2015, along with a
oject manager, Scottish Futures Trust,

ome Board members.

48. The College submitted the Busi ase to the SFC in September 2016 and approval to

progress the project i ro ment was received from the Scottish Government on 29
November 2016.

49. Legal issues withgthe NomgRrofit Distribution model planned to be used by the Scottish
Futures Trust to fund the project have led to the project now planned to be funded
using capi

50. FRS Property, Plant and Equipment’ and the SORP require that where a

t comprises two or more major components with substantially different

d depreciated over its individual useful economic life. The requirements of FRS
to capitalise and depreciate separately the components of what could previously have

beeVtreated as a single item ensures that the assets are charged to the Statement of

omprehensive Income over the periods in which they are consumed. We noted in
previous years’ Annual Reports that the new Alloa and Stirling campuses were depreciated
on a component accounting basis in 2012/13 for the first time. We noted however that the
Falkirk campus buildings has been depreciated over 29 years as a whole and not as separate
components and previously recommended that component accounting was considered
further for the College’s other buildings in future years. Management advised that the
College does not intend to adopt component accounting for the current Falkirk Campus. It
is proposed that if and when the new Falkirk Campus is brought into use component
accounting will be adopted for the new building.
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Forth Valley College Foundation

51. An arms-length foundation, the Forth Valley College Foundation, was set up in December
2013. The objects of the Foundation are to advance the charitable purposes of the College
to include the advancement of education by making grants and financial support for projects
and activities being carried out by and supported by the College. The main reason for setting
up the Foundation is that the Central Government budget mechanisms mean that the
to use college reserves and surpluses in future periods is restricted.

52.

53.

&
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Corporate Governance

are in place to ensure the proper conduct of its affairs. Mechanisms to monitor the
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements should also be in place.

55. Our responsibility, as noted in the Code of Audit Practice, is to review and repo
audited bodies’ corporate governance arrangements as they relate

Corporate Governance
54. The College is responsible for ensuring that governance arrangements follow the three
fundamental principles of openness, integrity and accountability and that these arrange

° Bodies’ reviews of corporate governance and systems of intégnal controlyincluding
reporting arrangements;

° The prevention and detection of fraud and irregul ;

o Standards of conduct and arrangements for the prevefition and detection of
corruption; and

° The financial position of audited bodies.

56. Comments on the financial position and the Col ernance Statement are covered in

the Financial Statement section of this rep

57. The Designation of Regional Colleges (Scotlan der 2014 came into force on 3 March
2014 and formally designated Fort e'as the Central regional college.

58. The Post-16 Education (Scotlafd) ncludes provisions in relation to the
identification of principles od go ance practice for the college sector. In December

2014 the ‘Code of Go ov:
mandatory for Colleges toieomp
August 2016. Th
Cabinet Secret

nce for Scotland's Colleges’ was published which is

ith. An updated version of the Code was published in
ode took into account recommendations made by the

overnance Task Group. The Code sets out the principles of

Experien

expected with the Code as condition of grant from the SFC or their regional
strategi 2 College has undertaken an evaluation of its compliance with the Code
a ved this for reasonableness. The College has highlighted one area of non-

ith the Code in that the Board of Management has appointed the Associate

the)Board Secretary may be a member of the SMT in their Board Secretary capacity but
cannot hold any other SMT position at the same time. The Board of Management believes

at risks relating to a potential conflict of interest are being mitigated and that governance is
strengthened rather than weakened by the Associate Principal and Executive Director of
Finance having a dual role within the SMT.

59. Incorporated colleges and Regional Boards are required to comply with the requirements of

the SPFM, except where directed by the SFC’s Accountable Officer. The College’s
procedures have been updated to reflect SPFM / FReM requirements.
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Corporate Governance (Continued)

60. A Financial Memorandum with colleges has been agreed with the SFC setting out the formal
relationship between the SFC and fundable bodies in the college sector, and the
requirements with which fundable bodies are expected to comply in return for payment of
grant by the SFC.

61. We have considered the College’s governance arrangements through formal review of
documents and procedures and informal observation of the operation of committee
arrangements and the relationships between Board members and staff. In particu
considered arrangements for risk management and reporting to committees.
identify any areas of concern regarding the College’s governance arra ent

Risk Management
62. Risk management is important for the development and on-going rigxiew of sysgéms of
internal control.

63. The College’s Risk Management Policy and Procedure det e College’s approach to risk
capture, monitoring and reporting.

64. The College has a Strategic Risk Register which is Audit Committee. Risk is

a standing item on the agenda for the SMT, all B @ nittees and the Board. There are
also risk registers which are compiled an ie &

h operating area of the College.
Systems of Internal Control
Control Environment
65. No material weaknessgs i acco and internal control systems were identified
st en
nd

ts audit which would adversely affect the ability to
rt financial and other relevant data so as to result in a
cial statements.

66. : ever identified from our system controls testing where controls could

g that the checks performed to ensure that all changes made to supplier
ing data in the Sun finance system are bona fide is undertaken by someone who
cannot make changes to supplier standing data on Sun;

° making sure that staff do not have the ability to both raise and authorise a purchase
request on the P2P purchase order authorisation system;

° considering what controls could be put in place to ensure that transactions processed
by the administrator of the P2P and Sun systems are appropriate;

° reviewing the BACS transaction limits and requiring two electronic BACS signatories;

° considering changing SAGE payroll users authorisation limits to strengthen controls;
and

° implementing procedures to ensure that all journals are reviewed and evidence of this

review is recorded.
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Systems of Internal Control (Continued)

Internal Audit

67. Audit Scotland’s Code of Audit Practice directs us to maintain effective co-ordination with
internal audit and place the maximum possible reliance on their work. Scott Moncrieff
provided internal audit services to the College in 2015/16.

68. We have reviewed the scope and extent of work performed by internal audit during
and considered the impact of their findings and conclusions on our work, where
We have also considered the adequacy of the provision and are content that tj{i€
service is of good quality.

69. The annual internal audit report for the year ended 31 July 2016 f@und that, b
ides reasonable
management
ney and deliver

assurance regarding the effective and efficient achievement of object
of key risks, and proper arrangements are in place to promete value for
best value.

Fraud and irregularity, standards and b prevention and
detection of corruption

70. During 2015/16 we had regard to ISA 2 heAuditor’s Responsibility to Consider Fraud in
the Audit of Financial Statements.

71. The College has appropriate place regarding the prevention and detection of
fraud, including Standing Ordgf's and efating Guidelines and Code of Conduct, Financial
Regulations and an An u licy and Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy.

72. No frauds were id
financial statem

e period from 1 August 2015 up to the date of signing the

73. The Collegé"hag)i the following procedures / policies in relation to standards of
conduct tioh and detection of corruption:

Dfders and Operating Guidelines and Code of Conduct;
er of Board Members’ Interests;

raud Policy;

° Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy; and

Whistleblowing Policy.

he arrangements for maintaining standards of conduct and the prevention and detection of
corruption are considered to be appropriate.
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Performance

Introduction

75. The terms of appointment from Audit Scotland include a requirement for a proportion of
our audit time to be spent on performance audit work. Performance audit work covers a
variety of areas, both financial and non-financial, including both Audit Scotland centrally
directed studies and locally determined studies based on agreement between each
organisation and their auditors.

76. One specific piece of audit follow-up work was identified by Audit Scotland for,

completed and returned. Audit Scotland also requested auditors
data set to inform sector-wide reporting.

Education Scotland Review
77. We are required by Audit Scotland’s Code of Audit Practice

other scrutiny bodies. We therefore place reliance on @
statutory inspectorates in relation to corporate o i

78.
d other stakeholders. This judgement

) nhancement, the College is led well, has
siany identified minor weaknesses, and is likely to

means that, in relation to quality 2
sufficiently robust arrangeme

79. Arrangements for
through the opegati e SMT and the Board and its various committees. This includes

80. The Coll ing Orders and Operating Guidelines and Code of Conduct, including its
on records the performance management aspects of the Board and each
ere appropriate, their responsibility to take action to address issues in

. Discussion with managers and our review of meeting papers and minutes

se responsibilities appear to be undertaken in an appropriate manner

81% The'College has a Corporate Plan 2014-18 and an annual 2015/16 Operational Plan.

ey performance indicators are set out in the Performance Report in the College’s annual
report.

83. The College has a Regional Outcome Agreement which is aimed at responding to the
national objectives and priorities for post-16 education, and works with Local Authorities,
Community Planning Partnerships, Skills Development Scotland and employers to ensure its
education provision meets the needs of learners and the community. The College continues
to work in partnership with organisations to achieve economies of scale and better
efficiency.
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84. In October 2016 the College undertook a self-evaluation against the targets set out in the
2015/16 Regional Outcome Agreement and this found that most targets had been met.

85. The College’s arrangements for performance management as outlined above are considered

to be appropriate. *

&
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Outlook
2016/17 and beyond

86. The funding position will remain challenging going forward. Commercial work has been a
important source of extra income. However the downturn in the oil and gas sector, w,
affecting commercial income, and the impact of national pay bargaining proposals are
significant concern and robust budget setting and monitoring arrangements will b e
in helping to maintain sustainability.

87. The College’s total funding allocations for the 2016/17 academic y
Teaching and Fee Waiver is £20.142 million, an increase of £0.375
with the equivalent academic output (16/17 and 15/16: 83,984 Cre
allocation for 2016/17 from the SFC has increased by £0.225 million
(2015/16: £1.056 million).

015/16 and
lege’s capital
illion

allowed again in 2016/17, resulting in a further deficit in statements if the money

88. It is expected that the use of depreciation allocations as % ere a cash allocation will be
is spent.

ONS Reclassification
89. Arrangements between colleges and t e revised funding mechanisms are
likely to develop further as lessons are ledthed the initial period of change.

&
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Appendix | - Audited Bodies’ Responsibilities

Extracts from the May 2016 Audit Scotland Code of Audit Practice

17. The audited bodies have the primary responsibility for ensuring the proper financial stewardship
of public funds, compliance with relevant legislation and establishing effective arrangements for
governance, propriety and regularity that enable them to successfully deliver their objectives.

Corporate governance
18. Each body, through its chief executive or accountable officer, is responsible for est;
arrangements to ensure the proper conduct of its affairs including the legalit
transactions, and for monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of these a g
bodies should involve those charged with governance (including audit comfi ivalent) in
monitoring these arrangements.

Financial statements and related reports

19. Audited bodies must prepare an annual report and accounts ping financial statements and
other related reports. They have responsibility for:

* preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view ofith ne

expenditure and income, in accordance with the applica ia 2
relevant legislation
* maintaining accounting records and working ve been prepared to an acceptable
professional standard and that support their finanei and related reports disclosures

* ensuring the regularity of transactions, by puttin ystems of internal control to ensure that

cial position and their
ing framework and

* maintaining proper accounting record

* preparing and publishing, along wit irfimancialstatements, an annual governance statement,
management commentary (or emuneration report that are consistent with the
disclosures made in the financi tem . Management commentary should be fair, balanced and
understandable and also cle s th&”’longer-term financial sustainability of the body.

20. Further, it is the res
charged with governa
financial performa
financial reporting
concisely.

management of an audited body, with the oversight of those
mmunicate relevant information to users about the entity and its

roviding adequate disclosures in accordance with the applicable

k. The relevant information should be communicated clearly and

diegidre responsible for developing and implementing effective systems of internal
inancial, operational and compliance controls. These systems should support the
f their objectives and safeguard and secure value for money from the public funds at

ndards of conduct for prevention and detection of fraud and error
. Audited bodies are responsible for establishing arrangements for the prevention and detection of
fraud, error and irregularities, bribery and corruption and also to ensure that their affairs are
managed in accordance with proper standards of conduct by putting proper arrangements in place.

23



HENDERSON LOGGIE

Chartered Accountants

Forth Valley College
DRAFT Annual Audit Report 2015/16 to the Board of Management and

The Auditor General for Scotland

Financial position

23. Audited bodies are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that their
financial position is soundly based having regard to:

* such financial monitoring and reporting arrangements as may be specified

» compliance with any statutory financial requirements and achievement of financial targets
* balances and reserves, including strategies about levels and their future use
* how they plan to deal with uncertainty in the medium and longer term
* the impact of planned future policies and foreseeable developments on their financial position.
Best Value
26. The Scottish Public Finance Manual sets out that accountable officers appointed by ip

Accountable Officer for the Scottish Administration have a specific responsibility to e @

arrangements have been made to secure best value.

&
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Appendix Il = Follow Up of 2014/15 Annual Audit Report Reco' nmu na “tions
P N 4

Agree esponsible Progress
Recommendation Comments Y/N Officer/Time 2015/16

For Action
ur

Para
Ref.

Financial Position

Forth Valley College Foundation

36 R1 The College should maintain an ongoing (=<l The Board of Manage Alison Stewart, This has been
review of its involvement with the Foundation to p Director of Finance | considered and
ensure that this remains independent and that the efFou the Foundation
Foundation does not need to be consolidated in Will need to be remains at
the College financial statements in future. reviewed year on arms-length

year

e Audit Committee to
dence is maintained.

Grade

High Issue subjecting the organisation to materj dw should be dealt with as a high priority

(=l | Issue subjecting the organisation to sign fcant risk 3 which should be addressed by management.

Low Less significant matters, which w; efficiency, or do not require urgent attention but which should be followed up within a reasonable

timescale.
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34 Melville Street
Edinburgh

EH3 7THA

Dear Sirs
Forth Valley College

In relation to the financial statements for the period ended 31 July 2016 we confirm th

Yours faithfully

Signed on behalf of the Board of Management of Forth Vi

Chair of the Board of Manag &

Executive




To be printed on College letterhead.

(Date)

Henderson Loggie
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor

34 Melville Street
Edinburgh

EH3 7THA

Dear Sirs,

Forth Valley College (‘the College’)

During the course of your audit of our financial statements for“the period ending 31 July 2016, the
following representations were made to you by management and Board members.

1 We acknowledge as Board members our responsibilities under the Further and Higher Education
(Scotland) Act 1992 for preparing financial statements, 1a @ccordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework (UK GAAP and theyStatement oft Recommended Practice (SORP) on
Accounting for Further and Higher Edueation), that\givefa true and fair view and for making
accurate representations to you as auditors.

2 We confirm that all accounting recofds have,been made available to you for the purpose of your
audit, in accordance with your terms, of engagement, and that all the transactions undertaken by
the College have been properly. reflected and recorded in the accounting records. All other records
and related information;ineluding minutes of all management and Board meetings, have been
made available to you. We_have ‘given you unrestricted access to persons within the College in
order to obtain auditgevidence, and have provided any additional information that you have
requested for the pufposes.of youraudit.

3 We confirm thatithe financial statements for the period ended 31 July 2016 have been approved by
the Board afd are free from material misstatements.

4 We gonfirm thatgsignificant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including
those.measured at fair value, are reasonable.

5 Wenconfirm that all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be
considered when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to you as auditor and
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework (UK
GAAP and the SORP on Accounting for Further and Higher Education).
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14

We confirm that there have been no events since the balance sheet date which require disclosing
or which would materially affect the amounts in the accounts, other than those already disclosed
or included in the accounts. Should further material events occur, which may necessitate revision
of the figures included in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, we will advise
you accordingly. We are not aware of any future plans which might impact the carrying values
disclosed in the accounts which we have not discussed with you.

We confirm that all transactions involving public and private sector organisations in which, a
member of the Board of Management has an interest are conducted at arm's length and in
accordance with the College's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures. ANVeZare
not aware of any related parties or transactions that fall out with these arrangements.

We confirm that all related party relationships and transactions have been acedunted, for and
disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework (UK GAAP and the
SORP on Accounting for Further and Higher Education).

We confirm that the College has had, at no time during the year, any.arrangement, transaction or
agreement to provide credit facilities (including loans, quasi-loanster credit/transactions) for
Board members, nor to guarantee or provide security for syeh matters, exeept'as disclosed in the
financial statements.

We confirm that the College has not contracted for any capital expenditure other than as disclosed
in the financial statements.

We confirm that we are not aware of any possible 0r a¢tual instance of non-compliance with those
laws and regulations which provide a<egal framewerk avithin which the College conducts its
business and which are central to the College's ability to conduct its business, namely the Further
and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992, health ‘and safety, HR, tax legislation; and any other
relevant laws and regulations, excépt as“explaimed to you and as disclosed in the financial
statements.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of controls to prevent and
detect fraud. We confirméthat we“have disclosed to you the results of our risk assessment of the
risk of fraud in the business.

We confirm that there have Bgen no actual or suspected instances of fraud involving management
or employeesawho,haveya significant role in internal control or that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.*We also confirm that we are not aware of any allegations of fraud by
former employees, regulators or others.

We (have considered the College’s future operations and financial position. Where relevant, we
have'also considered the effect of events outwith one year which may impact the going concern
assessment. On this basis, we believe the College is a going concern and will continue to be for a
periodief at least 12 months from the date of this letter.



15 The effects of unadjusted misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in aggregate, to the
financial statements as a whole. A list of the non-trivial unadjusted misstatements has been
provided in the Annual audit report for 2015/16 to the Board of Management and the Auditor General
for Scotland.

16 We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as auditors
and confirm that:
e 5o far as each Board member is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which you as
auditors are unaware; and
e each Board member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a member €
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that you are awar
information.

17 We confirm that the College has good title to all its assets and all assets
been advised to you.

18 We confirm that the Forth Valley College Foundation is an arms-I
the control of Forth Valley College, which does not require consolid
College accounts.

We confirm that the above representations are made on the basisfo iries of other Board members,
management and staff with relevant knowledge and expertise \
documentation) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can prope
that to the best of our knowledge and belief they accuratel @‘
Board members during the course of your audit.

e representations made to you by the

Yours faithfully,

Signed on behalf of the Board of Manageme @ ey College on (Date) by:

@ ;

Chair of the Boar«

pal and Chief Executive




, \ 8. Code of Good Governance (August 2016)

Forth For Approval

Valley
CO”e)ée 8 December 2016

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

1. Purpose

To seek approval from members to adopt the revised Code of Good Governance published in
August 2016 and to appoint the Board Secretary and a Deputy Board Secretary.
2. Recommendation

That members approve the adoption of the revised Code of Good Governar
appointments of Board Secretary and Deputy Board Secretary as outlined in this p

3. Background

The original Code of Good Governance was adopted by the Boar March 22015 and was
updated in August 2016. A copy of the revised code is appended to this p

4. Code of Good Governance (August 2016) — key changes

Where changes or additions to the code have been m ct on the FVC as a regional
college these have been highlighted in the revi appended to this paper. In summary the
key areas where the most significant cha
e Accountability and Delegation (C.
e Remuneration Committee (C.19 to
e Board Secretary (D.13 to D.1€
e Staff Governance (C.25 to,C

10) — additional requirements
section

aces Employee Relations
5. Board Secretary and Dep C ry

Section D.13 of the Co

The board as a whol int a board secretary who is responsible to it and reports directly
to the chair i cretary capacity. The board secretary may be a member of the senior
managemen heir board secretary capacity, but they cannot hold any other senior
manag psition at the same time. The appointment and removal of the board

secretary is a on of the board as a whole.
res colleges to publish a Statement of Compliance with Good Governance in the
Annual Report.

Each board must state its adoption of the Code in the corporate governance statement contained
in its annual financial statement. The chair, on behalf of the board, is expected to report as to
how the principles have been applied by the board. Where, for whatever reason, a board’s
practice is not consistent with any particular principle of the Code, it should make this known to
SFC or, if it is an assigned college, the regional strategic body. This should be done immediately
they become aware of an inconsistency and, without exception, in advance of publishing the
information. An explanation for that inconsistency must be clearly stated in its corporate
governance statement. Boards will be expected to offer a clear rationale for exceptions in the
context of their college’s operational model and to identify mitigations.
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Currently the Associate Principal and Executive Director of Finance has overall responsibility for
Governance and is supported by the Corporate Governance and Planning Officer. This
arrangement works well for the College. In order to comply with the Code the College would be
required to recruit a Board Secretary.

There is only one area within the Board Secretary role where holding a senior management team
position as well as Board Secretary could impact on good governance. The BoardsSeCretaryais
appointed by the Board and reports directly to the Chair, if they also report to the Principal in
terms of their senior management team role this could lead to a potential‘conflict of interest in
terms of reporting to the Board.

It is proposed that the Associate Principal and Executive Director of Finance is formally
appointed as the Board Secretary and Corporate Governante and PlanningiOfficer is formally
appointed as Deputy Board Secretary in line with the current arrangements. Both will report
directly to the Chair in terms of the Board Secretary rolef” Bythaving two people reporting
directly to the Chair this will mitigate against any conflict of interest preventing information
being properly disclosed to the Board.

While this goes against the requirement of theleode,it’is still possible for the Board to take this
decision and explain the reason for non-campliance in“the annual financial statements and to
SFC.

The financial statements for 31 July 2016 have been prepared on the basis of the above
proposal. Within the Governance Repat it ishighlighted there is non-compliance with the Code
and the reason for this. Thishas been reviewed by the Auditors and in the Audit Report they
have stated they have no issues to report in relation to Governance.

This is common practice in‘@number of organisations both within the public and private sector.
Indeed this is the practice within SFC where the Chief Operating Officer is also the Secretary to
the council. It eah'be argued that by having a dual role that this actually strengthens governance
and provides/greater@assurance to the Board rather than weakens it.

It is also not considered to be good value for money to employ a part time Board Secretary when
the College already has members of staff with the required skills to perform this role and have
Been doing,so'for a number of years.

6. “Equalities

There is no equalities impact as the approval is for the adoption of code of good practice.

7. Risk

Please indicate on the matrix below the risk score. Risk is scored against Impact and Likelihood
as Very Low through to Very High.
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Likelihood | Impact
Very High
High X
Medium
Low X
Very Low

Please describe any risks associated with this paper and associated mitigating acti

There is a risk the Board are not fully informed due to a conflict
Secretary reporting to both the Chair and the Principal. The appoi
reporting to the Chair minimises this risk.

oard
o) ividuals

Risk Owner — Board of Management Action Owner - ir of Boar anagement

8. Other Implications -

Communications — Yes Non-compliance withgthe co t be reported to SFC.
Health and Safety —No
Paper Author - Alison Stewart on @ Hall SMT Owner — N/A

)




Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges
1. Background
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e Governance and the Code
e Statement of Compliance with Good Governance

4.  Principles

Section A: Leadership and Strategy
e Conduct in Public Life

e Vision and Strategy
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1. Background

The original Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges was published in December
2014. In Summer 2016, the Good Governance Steering Group undertook a review and the
Code was updated. The Cabinet Secretary’'s Good Governance Task Group
recommendations were also taken into account during the review of the Code.

Colleges Scotland will act as custodian for any future reviews and in keeping with the way that
the Code was created, the broad range of stakeholders who developed the Code will be
engaged fully with any revisions.

2. Foreword

Colleges in Scotland thrive in the heart of their communities, serving the interests of those
communities, students, employers, governments and their agencies @nd other Stakeholders.
They have an essential and valuable role in Scottish society. In 2014/15, they earolled almost
300,000 students and a study by EMSI (Economic Modelling Specialists International) showed
that the economic impact of Scotland’s colleges to the business community dn Scotland is
almost £15 billion each year.

Colleges and regional strategic bodies receive substantial publicfunding and also operate in
an increasingly commercial and enterprising way. We value the significant contribution college
board members make to governing our colleges andgregional strategic bodies, and to their
stewardship of taxpayer's money, ensuring its efficient and effective use.

Boards are expected to innovate, pursuejnew epportunities and take measured risks in
delivering what is best for their stakeholders:{lIn recent times, they have gone through major
transformational change, embracing regienalisation and post-16 education reforms.

Against this background, it is right and proper|that the highest standards of governance and
propriety are expected of our boards andhthese individuals who serve them. This Code of
Good Governance codifies ‘thespringiples of good governance for learners and learning that
already exist in our colleges andyprometes accountability and continuous improvement in how
colleges and regional stratégic badies, are governed.

The Code is based on‘key principles and has been written in a way that is mandatory and
anticipates compliangée. Alhcolleges that receive funding from the Scottish Funding Council
(SFC) or from afregionalstrategic body must comply with the Code as a term and condition of
grant. Exceptions should be rare and must be explained publicly.

In addition, to demonstrating good governance, colleges and regional strategic bodies must
alsogensurencompliance with their statutory and other obligations. The Board Secretary role
is wital imjproviding guidance to the board on its legal and other obligations.

Colleges have an important individual and collective role to play in promoting economic, social
and cultural well-being. We expect this Code to provide the essential underpinning to help
discharge that role to the highest standards possible.

Hugh Hall, Chair of the Good Governance Steering Group
August 2016



3. Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges
Governance and the Code
Corporate governance:

e is the way in which organisations are directed and controlled within a legislative
framework

¢ defines the distribution of rights and responsibilities among the different stakeholders and
participants in the organisation

¢ determines the rules and procedures for making decisions on corporate affairs including
the process through which the organisation’s objectives are set

e provides the means of achieving those objectives and monitoring performances

Scotland’s colleges refers to colleges either funded by SFC or by a regionahstrategic body for
the provision of education. Such colleges can be incorporated or hon-incorporated. The
overarching purpose of good governance for Scotland’s colleges is to:

¢ lead the college, region or regional strategic body and set its strategigydirection and
values

e ensure effective management and financial controls to support the student experience
within a framework of public accountability and transparéncy

¢ deliver high quality learning and outcomes.

The Code of Good Governance for Scotland’siCollegeshasdeen developed and is owned by
the college sector. Colleges are required go comply'with it as a condition of grant from either
SFC or their regional strategic body. It establishes standards of good governance practice for
all boards and provides the essential foundationsyfor compliance within the legislative
framework.

Boards must not only follow thefletter, but /also the spirit of the Code to ensure good
governance. Boards mustjthink“deeply,“theroughly and on a continuing basis about their
overall tasks and the implications ofithese for the roles of their individual members. Key to
this is the leadership of the chairjthe support given to and by the principal, and the frankness
and openness of mind with which issues are discussed and tackled by all board members.

Statement of Compliance with"Good Governance

Each board must state its adoption of the Code in the corporate governance statement
contained jnfits annualdinancial statement. The chair, on behalf of the board, is expected to
report as(to how the principles have been applied by the board. Where, for whatever reason,
a board’s\practice is not consistent with any particular principle of the Code, it should make
thisfknawn taaSFC or, if it is an assigned college, the regional strategic body. This should be
dene immediately they become aware of an inconsistency and, without exception, in advance
of publishing the information. An explanation for that inconsistency must be clearly stated in
its corporate governance statement. Boards will be expected to offer a clear rationale for
exceptions in the context of their college’s operational model and to identify mitigations.

Individual board members have duty to act on serious concerns about the governance of their
body. Information on who board members can approach is included in The Guide for Board
Members in the College Sector.



http://www.collegedevelopmentnetwork.ac.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/College-Board-Member-Guide-2015.pdf
http://www.collegedevelopmentnetwork.ac.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/College-Board-Member-Guide-2015.pdf

4.

Principles

Section A: Leadership and Strategy

Conduct in Public Life

Al

A.2

A3

Every college and regional strategic body must be governed by an effective board that
is collectively responsible for setting, demonstrating and upholding the values and
ethos of the organisation.

Every board member must ensure that they are familiar with and their actions comply
with the provisions of their board’s Code of Conduct.

The Nine Principles of Public Life in Scotland, which incorporate the seven'Nolan
principles, must be the basis for board decisions and behaviour. These key principles,
which apply individually and collectively are:

Duty/Public Service
Selflessness

Integrity

Objectivity

Accountability and Stewardship
Openness

Honesty

Leadership

Respect

Vision and Strategy

A4

A.5

A.6

A7

The board is responsible for detefmining their institution’s vision, strategic direction,
educational character, values and ethos{ Regional strategic bodies must also
determine the regionalstrategy for colleges assigned to them. The board of an
assigned college must have regard to the strategy determined by the regional strategic
body. Board members have,a collective leadership role in fostering an environment
that enables the body teyfulfiits mission and meet Scottish Government priorities, for
the benefit of stddents andhthe community it serves.

The boardémust'develop and articulate a clear vision for the region or college. This
should beta formally agreed statement of its aims and desired outcomes which should
be useédas‘the basis for its overall strategy and planning processes.

Theboard provides overall strategic leadership of the region or college. The board is
responsible for formulating and agreeing strategy by identifying strategic priorities and
providing direction within a structured planning framework.

The board must ensure that a comprehensive performance measurement system is in
place which identifies key performance indicators. It must ensure that it scrutinises
performance measures and reports these on their website in a manner that is both
timely and accessible to stakeholders. This will allow the board to determine whether
or not the vision and mission of the region or the college are being fulfilled and that the
interests of stakeholders are being met.
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A.8

A9

The board (except in the case of assigned college boards) is responsible for
overseeing the negotiation of its outcome agreement with SFC, to meet the needs of
the college or region and make best use of available funding, consistent with national
strategy. The board must ensure effective engagement with all relevant stakeholders
in the development of its outcome agreement and monitor performance in achieving
the agreed outcomes.

The roles and responsibilities of the boards of assigned colleges should be undertaken
in the context of the roles and responsibilities of their regional strategic body.
Assigned college boards must contribute constructively to the development of the
outcome agreement led in its region by the regional strategic body and support thg
regional strategic body to monitor performance in achieving the agreed outcomes.

Corporate Social Responsibility

A.10

A1l

A.12

A.13

A.14

The board must demonstrate high levels of corporate social responsibility By,ensuyring
it behaves ethically and contributes to economic development while seekiag to
improve the quality of life of the local community, society at large and its workforce.

The board must exercise its functions with a view to imiproving econaemie, cultural and
social wellbeing in the locality of the college or region. tmust have regard to social
and economic needs and social inclusion.

The board must provide leadership in equality andydiversity.

The board must seek to reflect in its membershipsthe make-up of the community
through offering maximum opportunityyof membershipto a range of potential members
and removing potential barriers to membership,,in partnership with its regional
strategic body, as appropriate.

The board must appoint one of the non-executive members to be the senior
independent member to previde a‘seunding board for the chair and to serve as an
intermediary for the pringipaliother board members and the board secretary when
necessary (see Annexor the'definition of ‘non-executive’). The senior independent
member should als@ibe available where contact through the normal channels of chair,
principal or secretary hasyfailed to resolve an issue or for which such contact is
inappropriate. Further infoFmation on the role of the senior independent member can
be found indgh@Guide for Board Members in the College Sector.



http://www.collegedevelopmentnetwork.ac.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/College-Board-Member-Guide-2015.pdf
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Section B: Quality of the Student Experience

Student Engagement

B.1

B.2

B.3

B.4

B.5

B.6

B.7

The board must have close regard to the voice of its students and the quality of the
student experience should be central to all board decisions.

The board must lead by example in relation to openness, by ensuring that there is
meaningful on-going engagement and dialogue with students, the students’
association and as appropriate staff and trade unions in relation to the quality of the
student experience. Consultation is essential where significant changes are being
proposed.

The board must consider the outcome of student surveys and other studept
engagements, and monitor action plans that could impact on the quality of the student
experience.

The college board must have regard to the Framework for the Development of Strong
and Effective College Students’ Associations in Scotland. 1t mustput in place robust
partnership procedures (e.g. partnership agreement) t@,work togethémto achieve
change and which are supported by regular and open cemmunications.

The college board must encourage a strong and autonomous students’ association
and ensure that the students’ association is adeguately resourced.

The college board must ensure that the'students¥assaciation operates in a fair and
democratic manner and fulfils its respensibilities.

The college board must review the wittenieonstitution of its students’ association at
least every five years.

Relevant and High Quality Learning

B.8

The board must seek té'secure‘€eherent provision for students, having regard to other
provision in the regiemor college’s locality. The board must be aware of external local,
national and internationalbodies and their impact on the quality of the student
experience, including community planning partners, employers, skills development and
enterprise agéneies‘and employer bodies. The board must seek to foster good
relationships and‘ensure that the body works in partnership with external bodies to
enhance the student experience, including employability and the relevance of learning
to influstry needs.

Quality. Manitoring and Oversight

B9

The'eard must ensure appropriate mechanisms are in place for the effective
oversight of the quality and inclusivity of the learning experience in the college or
region. The board must ensure that the college works in partnership with sector
guality agencies and other appropriate bodies to support and promote quality
enhancement and high quality services for students.


http://www.saframework.co.uk/
http://www.saframework.co.uk/
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Section C: Accountability

Accountability and Delegation

Cl

Cc.2

C3

C4

C5

C.6

C.7

C.8

The board is primarily accountable to its main funder, either SFC or its regional
strategic body. Through the chain of funding, the body is ultimately responsible to the
Scottish Ministers who are accountable to the Scottish Parliament.

The board must ensure delivery of its outcome agreement or in the case of an
assigned college, its agreed contribution to the region’s outcome agreement.

The board must ensure it fulfils its statutory duties and other obligations on it, an@ that
the terms and conditions of its grant are being met.

Scottish Ministers have powers to remove by order any or all board_members of an
incorporated college (except the principal) or a regional board feF'serious onrepeated
breaches of a term and condition of grant.

The board also has a wider accountability to a range of stakeholders inclyding
students (both current and prospective), its staff, the wider public, empleyers and the
community it serves, for the provision high quality educatien that improves people’s life
chances and social and economic well-being.

Incorporated colleges and regional boards mustimaintain, and publicly disclose a
current register of interests for all board members. lBoard members should declare
any conflicts of interest in the business afithe meétingjprior to the commencement of
each meeting of the board and its committees and,withdraw from meetings as
appropriate.

The board must ensure that its décision=making processes are transparent, properly
informed, rigorous and timelygand, that appropriate and effective systems of financial
and operational contral, quality, management of staff, risk assessment and
management are established, monitored, continuously improved and appropriately
impact assessed. Thisincludes:

a) the prompt preductign, dissemination and online publication of board/committee
agendas, minutes andipapers to the public

b) every bearthmeeting and every committee meeting having a well-structured
agenda circulatedtimeously in advance

c) theretention of all key documentation which help justify the decisions made by the
board anduitS’committees.

Thehoardsmay delegate responsibilities to committees for the effective conduct of
board business. As a minimum the committees required are Audit, Remuneration,
Finanee and Nominations/Appointments. Delegation of responsibilities from and
matters reserved to the board and its committees must be set out in a scheme of
delegation including the functions delegated by the board to the chair, committees, the
principal and the board secretary (and any other members of staff). Incorporated
college boards and regional boards have no powers to delegate functions to an
individual board member (except the chair who has no authority to act outwith their
delegated powers).
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C9

C.10

The board must ensure every board committee has a specified member of the
management team to provide objective, specialist advice to support it to discharge its
remit, including by explaining in an accessible way the matters under discussion and
the possible implications of different options.

The board must consider and have in place procedures to ensure effective working
relationships and constructive dialogue amongst the board as a whole and ensure
there are effective reporting and two way communications between committees and
the board. The board must ensure that discussions and decisions of every committee
are accurately recorded and reported to the board, no later than the next meeting of
the board.

Risk Management

c.l

C.12

The board of a college or a regional body is responsible for the overall management of
risk and opportunity. It must set the risk appetite of the body an@ ensure theke is@an
appropriate balance between risk and opportunity and that this is communicated via
the principal to the body’s management team.

The board must ensure that sound risk management and internal control systems are
in place and maintained. It must ensure there is a formalen-going process for
identifying, reporting, evaluating and managing the bady’s significant risks and review
the effectiveness of risk management, business contifuity plaaning and internal control
systems.

Audit Committee

C.13

C.14

C.15

C.16

C1x

C.18

The Audit Committee must support the heard‘@nd the principal by reviewing the
comprehensiveness, reliability anddntegritydof assurances including the body’s
governance, risk management and interaal control framework.

The scope of the Audit Comamittee*siwerk must be defined in its terms of reference and
encompass all of the assurance needs of the board and the principal. The Audit
Committee must have particularengagement with internal and external audit, and
must work with managementiand auditors to resolve any issues in relation to financial
reporting.

The Audit @ommitteeimust promptly pursue recommendations arising from audit
reports and must'monitor their implementation.

Thefmembership of the Audit Committee cannot include the board chair or the
principal. The role of the college executive is to attend meetings at the invitation of the
committeedchair and to provide information for particular agenda items.

The Audit Committee terms of reference must provide for the committee to sit privately
without any non-members present for all or part of a meeting if they so decide. The
Audit Committee members should meet with the internal and external auditors without
the executive team present at least annually.

At least one member of the Audit Committee should have recent relevant financial or
audit experience.
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Remuneration Committee

C.19

C.20

C.z21

It essential that members of the Remuneration Committee understand their role and
responsibilities. Members must undertake the online training module for
Remuneration Committees provided by College Development Network within one
month of appointment.

The board must have a formal procedure in place for setting the remuneration of the
principal by a designated committee of non-executive members. The board may wish
to supplement this by taking evidence from a range of sources. In particular, staff and
students should have a role in gathering and submitting evidence in relation to the
college principal to the relevant committee.

The board chair cannot be the chair of the Remuneration Committee (but they can be
a member of it).

Financial and Institutional Sustainability

C.22

C.23

C.24

The board is responsible for ensuring the financial and institutional sustainability of the
body. The board must ensure compliance with its Fin@ncial Memoraadum (either with
SFC or the regional strategic body, depending on which's,funding it), including in
relation to incorporated colleges and regional boardsgrelevant aspects of the Scottish
Public Finance Manual.

The board must ensure that:

o funds are used as economically, efficiently andheiffectively as possible
¢ effective monitoring arrangements arejin place
¢ college staff report relevant finamcial,matters 1o it.

For colleges that are charitable organisations, board members are also charity
trustees. The board of a college thatisg@ charity must ensure its members are aware of
their responsibilities under charity legislation and for complying with relevant provisions
as set out by the Office"ofthe Seottish Charity Regulator. See OSCR Guidance and
Good Practice for Gharity Trustees.

Staff Governance

C.25

C.26

ci27

C.28

The college board as the employer, is responsible for promoting positive employee
relations,and for ensuring effective partnership between recognised trade unions and
mapagement:

Bhe boarddmust have a system of corporate accountability in place for the fair and
effeetive management of all staff, to ensure all legal obligations are met and all policies
and agreements are implemented and identify areas that require improvement and to
develop action plans to address them.

The board must comply with the nationally agreed college sector Staff Governance
Standard.

The college board must comply with collective agreements placed on it through
national collective bargaining for colleges.


http://www.oscr.org.uk/charities/guidance/guidance-and-good-practice-for-charity-trustees
http://www.oscr.org.uk/charities/guidance/guidance-and-good-practice-for-charity-trustees
http://www.collegedevelopmentnetwork.ac.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/Staff-Governance-Standard.pdf
http://www.collegedevelopmentnetwork.ac.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/Staff-Governance-Standard.pdf
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Section D: Effectiveness

The Board Chair

D.1

D.2

The chair is responsible for leadership of the board and ensuring its effectiveness in all
aspects of its role. The chair is responsible for setting the board’s agenda and
ensuring that adequate time is available for discussion of all agenda items, particularly
strategic issues. The chair must promote a culture of openness and debate by:

e encouraging the effective contribution of all board members

o fostering constructive challenge and support to the principal, executive team ahnd
fellow board members
effective team-working

e positive relations between board members.

The chair must engage with the principal and the board secretaty in a manneérwhich is
both constructive and effective.

The board and its committees must have the appropriate balance ef skills, experience,
independence and knowledge of the body to enable them to discharge their respective
duties and responsibilities effectively.

Board Members

D.3

D.4

D.5

Each board member is collectively respensible and’aceountable for all board
decisions. Board members must make degisionS in the best interests of the college
and/or region as a whole rather than Selectively orin‘the interests of a particular group.

Staff and student board membersarefull b@ard members and bring essential and
unique, skills, knowledge and experienceito the board. Staff and student board
members must not be excludéd from board business unless there is a clear conflict of
interest, in common with alf'lbeard meémbers.

Where the college is a charity, alllboard members, as charity trustees, including staff
and student boardgnembers;have legal duties and responsibilities under the Charities
Act 2005. This imeludes registering any personal interests that could be seen as
conflicting with thetinterests of the body. The ‘objective test’ for judging if there is a
conflict of iftereshyis:

“... whethera member of the public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would
reasonablysegard the interest as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your
decision making in your role as a member of a public body”.

Reincipaliand Chief Executive

D.6

D.7

The college board must appoint the principal as chief executive of the college,
securing approval for the appointment and terms and conditions of the appointment
from the regional strategic body if necessary.

The college board must ensure there is an open and transparent recruitment process

for the appointment. Students and staff must have an opportunity to contribute to the
recruitment process.

10
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D.8 The college board must delegate to the principal, as chief executive, authority for the
academic, corporate, financial, estate and human resource management of the
college, and must ensure the establishment of such management functions are
undertaken by and under the authority of the principal.

D.9 The college board must ensure a clear process is in place to set and agree personal
performance measures for the principal. This process should seek the views of
students and staff. The chair, on behalf of the board, should monitor, review and
record the principal’s performance, at least annually, against the agreed performance
measures.

D.10 The principal, as a board member, shares responsibility for good governance with the
chair and all other members of the board, supported by the board secretary. _The
principal also enables good governance through supporting effective communication
and interaction between the body and the rest of the college including staff and
students.

D.11 The board provides strategic direction for the region and/or college, and the chair
provides leadership to the board. The principal provides leadership to thefstaff of the
body.

D.12 The board must provide a constructive challenge to the prineipal and executive team
and hold them to account.

Board Secretary

D.13 The board as a whole must appoint aboardisecretary'who is responsible to it and
reports directly to the chair in their boardisecretary capacity. The board secretary may
be a member of the senior management team in’their board secretary capacity, but
they cannot hold any other seniof management team position at the same time. The
appointment and removal of the Board secretary is a decision of the board as a whole.

D.14 All board members mustdraveiaccess to the board secretary who has an important
governance role in advising the'board, the committees and individual board members
and supporting goodigevernanee. The distinctive board secretary role includes:

¢ facilitating good governance and advising board members on:

- the proper exercise of their powers, including in relation to relevant legislation

- the board’s compliance with its Financial Memorandum, the Good Governance
Code, itssStanding Orders and Scheme of Delegation

5\ their Behaviour and conduct in relation to the board’s Code of Conduct.

¢ “providing clear advice to the chair and the board/committees on any concerns the
board secretary may have that board members have not been given:

- sufficient information

- information in an appropriate form

- sufficient time to monitor, scrutinise or make informed and rigorous decisions in
an open and transparent way.

e attending and providing support to every board meeting and every meeting of every
board committee. Where the board secretary is unable to attend, while the board
secretary retains overall responsibility, proper arrangements must be made to cover
the role with a person who is fully able to discharge the role effectively.

11
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D.15

D.16

¢ having an unambiguous right to speak at board and committee meetings to convey
any concerns they may have about governance. This extends to someone
substituting for the board secretary.

e reporting any unresolved concerns about the governance of the body to the relevant
funding body (i.e. SFC or the regional strategic body).

The board must ensure the board secretary:

e has suitable skills, knowledge and behaviours to carry out their role effectively

e receives appropriate induction, and if new to the role, is mentored by a more
experienced board secretary for at least their first year

e has adequate time and resources available to undertake their role effegtively.

The board must ensure arrangements are in place to deal with @board secretary’s
potential or real conflicts of interest.

Board Member Appointment, Induction and Training

D.17

D.18

D.19

D.20

D.21

For boards with responsibility for board appointments, thelboard must ensure a formal
and open procedure is in place for recruiting and selg€ting new non-executive board
members. Boards must have regard to all relevant Ministerial Guidance on board
appointments.

The board is responsible for ensuring appropriate arrangements are in place for the
conduct of student elections and nominations, andi€lections of staff members to the
board.

The chair must ensure that new board members receive a formal induction on joining

the board, tailored in accordafice with their individual and collective needs. The board
secretary should support the chair iaith@ provision of relevant induction for new board
members.

The board must enSurgyall beafdl members undertake appropriate training and
development in gespect fitheir governance role. The board secretary should support
the chair in the pravision of relevant training and development opportunities for board
members, avhichishould be tailored to meet board members skills and needs. The
board secretary must keep records of the development activity of board members,
including the,chair.

The board must ensure that new committee members receive a committee induction
and havegheir specific training needs assessed and met.

Board Evaluation

D.22

D.23

Extension of the term of office of board appointments requires evidence and the board
must ensure appropriate mechanisms are in place to support this.

The board must keep its effectiveness under annual review and have in place a robust
self-evaluation process. There should also be an externally facilitated evaluation of its
effectiveness at least every three years. The board must send its self-evaluation
(including an externally facilitated evaluation) and board development plan (including
progress on previous year’s plan) to its funding body and publish them online.
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D.24 The board must agree a process for evaluating the effectiveness of the board chair
and the committee chairs. The evaluation of the board chair should normally be led by
the vice-chair/senior independent member.

D.25 The board must ensure all board members are subject to appraisal of their
performance, conducted at least annually, normally by the chair of the board.

D.26 The performance of regional college chairs will also be evaluated by the Scottish
Government, as regional college chairs are appointed by the Scottish Ministers and
are personally accountable to them.

D.27 The performance of assigned, incorporated college chairs will also be evaluatedik
regional strategic body, as they are appointed by the regional strategic body and
personally accountable to them.

Section E: Relationships and Collaboration

Partnership Working

E.1 The board must work in partnership to secure the cohe
fundable further and higher education in their localiti

provision of high quality

E.2 The board must ensure effective consultation, |
follow the principles of effective collaborative
working towards commonly agreed out es

al planning and must
al respect, trust and

E.3 The board must ensure effective partn ip'werking with local and national bodies
including businesses, public and thirchse organisations to develop commonly

agreed priorities following the pri % ctive collaborative working.
d supportieffective partnership working and

regions to address local needs and meet national

E.4 The board must encourag
collaboration within a r
priorities and specialis

)
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Annex 1

References and Definitions
e “college” means a college funded by either SFC or a regional strategic body.

¢ “incorporated college” means a college with a board of management under part 1 of the
Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992.

o “assigned college” means a college assigned to a regional strategic body.

e ‘“regional board” means a regional strategic body that has no other functions. There.is
one regional board — Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board.

o “board” means the governing body of the college or to the regionalgstrategic body.
¢ “body” means the organisation in question, i.e. a college or regianal strategic body.

o “principal” include where appropriate in the context, theschief officer@reguivalent
person of a regional strategic body.

¢ ‘non-executive’ means a member who is not the chair and wha does not otherwise hold
a specific position on the board i.e. is not a student _or_staffymember; and in the case of a
college board, is not the principal; and in the casg' of aregional board is not the chair of
an assigned college.

¢ In the context of the regional strategic bodyin the,Highlands and Islands, the board
means either the Court of the University,of the,Highlands and Islands (UHI) or the UHI
Further Education Regional Board (FERB):
- The FERB has fully delegated authority from the UHI Court for FE — objectives,
outcome agreement, curriculum‘@and finance.
- The FERB consists @fithe eollege chairs, two independents, plus nominees
- The college principals'meet asia FE Executive Board.

¢ New College Lanarkshireisithe designated regional college and regional strategic body
with South Lanarkshire College as an assigned college.

¢ Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board; this is the only part of Scotland with a regional
strategic bodyawhich has been established as an organisation with only this role.
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[ ' 9. “Making Fundraising Work” — Fundraising Strategy

Forth For Approval

Valley
CO”e)ée 8 December 2016

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

1. Purpose

To seek member’s approval on Forth Valley College’s fundraising strategy “Making Fundraising
Work” and accompanying action plan as attached to this report.

2. Recommendation
That members approve the draft fundraising strategy and action plan.

3. Background

May 2016.

An important key task of the post was to develop a fu
provide a clear framework for delivering our fundraising
(attached as Appendix one) is the College’s first fund
2019. It sets out our:

e objectives

e priorities

e performance measures a

e future ambitions

activity we are proposing ke over the period August 2016 to August 2017. The action
plan will be regularly revie to s progress against expected outcomes and to ensure the
activity is relevant, eff an lexibility to meet new opportunities as they arise.

To support the strategy an action(plan een developed which outlines the main areas of
a

presented to the Senior Management Team and the Strategic
ho have had an opportunity to input into its development.

The Strategy has
Development

4. Key Consider

The strategy would be owned and delivered across the college and will support the wider Forth

Strategic Plan and mission of “Making Learning Work”. The successful
ent of fundraising activity will require a co-ordinated approach, focusing on key
jorities to ensure resources are utilised in the most effective and efficient manner. This will
e that over the longer-term a good return on investment will be achieved.

The initial phase of our fundraising activity (from August 2016 — August 2017) will have a
stronger emphasis on cultivating relationships, raising the College’s profile with potential key
supporters, testing approaches and developing propositions that are fit for purpose.

Successful fundraising activity will require the support of staff at all levels including the Senior
Management Team and the Board.




[ \ 9. “Making Fundraising Work” — Fundraising Strategy

Forth For Approval

Valley

CO”ege 8 December 2016

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

5. Financial Implications
The main financial implication for the college is the opportunity to grow its supporter base
through a planned programme of fundraising with the potential over a longer-term to make a
significant financial contribution to the college. |
I
]
|
This target will be subject to ongoing monitoring and review as the fundfaising environment can
be unpredictable with many factors affecting the return on investment. To assist®with the
forecasting and planning process a funding tracker (attached as Appendix 2) has been developed
for 2016-17 which highlights our position on funding approved, pending, in development and
not approved.

6. Equalities
There are no identifiable equalities issues related to the early stages of developing the
fundraising strategy.
Assessment in Place? — Yes [ No X
If No, please explain why — see above

7. Risk

Please indicate on the matkixebelow the risk score. Risk is scored against Impact and Likelihood
as Very Low through to Very'High.

Likelihood “[hlmpact
Very High
High X X
Medium
Low
Very Low

Potential'Risk

The main risk is not achieving the target set within the timeframe.

Mitigation of Risks

The strategy includes a risk analysis which highlights the key risks associated with fundraising
and notes the action that will be taken to mitigate these. This is supported by the action plan
and funding tracker which will be regularly reviewed to monitor progress towards achieving

targets and thus linking to the overall budget position of the College.

Risk Owner — Colette Filippi Action Owner — Pauline Barnaby




[ 9. “Making Fundraising Work” — Fundraising Strategy
Forth For Approval

Valley

CO”ege 8 December 2016
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

8. Other Implications -
Please indicate whether there are implications for the areas below.

Communications — Yes No [l Health and Safety — Yes [ No

As our fundraising activity develops there will be a need to ensure we are promoting 3
consistent message on specific campaigns, projects and initiatives which will in
closely with the College’s Communications and Marketing Team and other depz
will ensure a co-ordinated approach is taken to developing fundraisi te
content.

Supporter stewardship will be an integral part of this to maintain and lop goad relationships
ensuring they are thanked appropriately.

Paper Author - Pauline Barnaby SMTO % tte Filippi
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Introduction

As one of Scotland’s leading providers of education and training — with over 14,000
students and campuses in Alloa, Falkirk and Stirling, Forth Valley College is perfectly
positioned to grow its supporter base through commencing a planned programme of
fundraising that will add value and contribute to the College’s strategic objectives.

In the continuing context of a challenging economic environment and the reduction of
public funding, the importance of fundraising and philanthropic giving to further and
higher education is growing. Many institutions within Scotland and across the UK hav
realised the transformative role fundraising can play and the benefits it can bringste
students, staff and partners in the public and private sector. g

“Making Fundraising Work” marks the start of our fundraising journey - provid
clear framework for activity, setting out our priorities for the period A
August 2019 and introducing how we will measure its success.
of the strategy we will develop a coordinated approach acr

delivery of the strategy to ensure we build our capacity, ma
realise our potential in fundraising.

The strategy will directly contribute to our mission
detailed in the Forth Valley College Strategic Plan 20
to adapt to changing circumstances and align with f
the development of the College’s new Strategic Plan
Work” has been developed to reflect the F
considers the interdependencies of ege
programme of fundraising can makegn active

8. It will be flexible enough

@ ectives emerging through
D C

eyCollege business model — it

Making
» Learnin
Wor

asuperb
environment
for
learning
4 S Cultivating

Delivering " & vibrant leaming
a whole system organisation where
approach. learners develop skills,
Simply effective, achieve qualifications
efficientand valued by industry
e Aspirational, ‘f‘:’aﬂ]‘ng'ﬁs
accountable, > o
empowering, respectful
equitable, innovative,
inclusive, aging,
quality enhancing,
customer facing,
sustainable, continuity
and (ODSISYEH()’

Enhancing Instilling an
our position as energy and passion
the business and for our people,
community celebrating success
partner > and innovation
of choice
Leading
asa business
that is a champion
for governance,
financial control
and balanced
risk taking

N‘ce

b YR
ellvering aWorld C\aSSS
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Fundraising Approach

Developing and implementing a fundraising strategy presents a fantastic opportunity
for Forth Valley College to not only raise its profile to a wider audience but also benefit
from additional resources to support our mission, vision and values of “Making
Learning Work”.

“Making Fundraising Work” will provide a framework for our fundraising activity
supporting our strategic objectives through

e Shaping the Future
Provides additional flexible income to the College;
o supporting projects and activities that existing budgets cannaot.finance

e Delivering a World Class Service
Enables the College to build upon our strengths,
o enhancing the student experience,
o adding value to our academic programmes;
o contributing to a superb learning environment within, which'students can
excel

e Driving Momentum
Builds networks of supporters who contribute, to the®long-term vision of the
College - this may be beyond their finan€ialyeontribution, for example acting as
ambassadors, providing links with industry.@andanentoring current students.

Through delivering the strategy weyaregpropesing a College-wide approach to
fundraising — working across departmental diseiplines, involving support and teaching
staff. It also highlights how imporiantithe role of the senior management team and the
wider leadership group are, and how they will actively contribute to our ambitions of
growing and retaining supporters.

In its truest form fundraising cam be defined as:

“the process of gathering veltntary contributions of money or other resources, by
requesting donations/grants from individuals, businesses, charitable foundations, or
governmental ageneies”.

Defining what we\consider to be “fundraising” is important as this will be reflected in
our performance/reporting and measures of success. For the purposes of the
Strategy, only“outputs achieved and income generated as a result of the above
process willl be considered as fundraising. It will also be clearly additional to any
allocatiengfrom the Scottish Funding Council and our commercial activity and will be
based on the contribution the funding can bring to the college.

As fundraising is a new area of activity for Forth Valley College it is important to set out
clear short, medium and long-term goals which outline what we are aiming to achieve.

Short Term - 2016-2017

During its first year of implementation, the strategy will have a stronger focus on
developing relationships, engaging with potential supporters, raising our profile and
establishing a track record - though it will also have flexibility to take advantage of
fundraising opportunities. The initial period will also be an opportunity to test out
approaches with emerging sources.
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Medium Term - 2017-2018

Over the medium to longer term the strategy should be should be aiming to develop a
more robust supporter pipeline, exploring and successfully attracting funding from
diverse sources. Systems will be established to coordinate fundraising across the
College.

Long Term - 2019 onwards

The longer-term aim will be to have an established development and fundraising
function which actively contributes to the strategic objectives of Forth Valley Colleger
via a strong, diverse and growing supporter base — providing a good level of return on
investment.

Key Aim and Objectives

In order to achieve our short, medium and longer-term goals we will focus on four key
objectives which will support the Fundraising Strategy’s overall‘aim:

“to maximise fundraising opportunities that supp@kt our mission, vision and
values; adding value to College activity and thus centributing to our future
sustainability”.

These objectives have been developed to reflect ghe College’s principles of fostering
innovation, partnership and collaborativeyappreaches to learning whilst also ensuring
we remain focused and realistic in terms ofouriesources and the early stage we are
at with our fundraising.

Four Key Objectives of “Makin@ Fundraising Work”

Cultivate, grow and retain a“diverse supporter base through a co-ordinated
programme of engagement:

Enable the deliverynof key, projects and initiatives through exploring and securing
funding support from awvariety of fundraising streams.

Lead agargeted fumndraising programme focused on the new Falkirk Campus —
maximising the Social, technological, economic and environmental opportunities that
thisswill generate.

Embed fundraising principles across the college disciplines supported by Senior
Management - integrating with other key strategies (internal and external).
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Mapping Objectives to Strategic Themes

Enable the
delivery of key
projects and
initiatives
through
exploring and
securing
funding
support from a
variety of
fundraising
streams

Cultivate, grow
and retain a
diverse
supporter base
through a
coordinated
programme of
fundraising
activity

FvC
Strategic
Themes

Creating a
superb
environment
for learning

Cultivating a
vibrant
learning
organisation

Instilling an
energy and
passion for
our people,
celebrating
success and
innovation

Leading as a
business
champion for
governance,
financial
control and
balanced risk
taking.

Enhancing ou
position as the
business and
community
partner ¢
choice

Delivering a
hole system
approach.

Lead a targeted
fundraising
programme
focused on the
new Falkirk
Campus —
maximising the
social,
technological,
economic and
environmental
opportunities

Embed
fundraising
principles
across College
disciplines
supported by
Senior
Management
integrating with
other key
strategies both
internal and
external
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Implementation of Objectives

Our four objectives for “Making Fundraising Work” set out a clear framework for
delivering fundraising activity and achieving our goals. They take account of the ever-
changing fundraising environment and are sufficiently flexible to adapt to change,
taking advantage of opportunities when they arise.

Strategic Objective 1

Cultivate, develop and retain a diverse supporter base through a co-ordinated
programme of fundraising activity

How?

e We will raise our profile with potential supporters

e  We will build our reputation within the fundraising environment

e We will engage with potential/existing supporters through existing and new events
e We will create a central point within FVC for, fundraisingi=gestablishing the

fundraising function

e We will communicate with potential supporters —faximising the potential of social
media (new website, Facebook, Twitter)

e We will work with Communications and Matketing on the development of the
Alumni network — exploring opportunities for engagement in fundraising

o We will develop an appropriate programme of stewardship for our supporters

Strategic Objective 2

Enable the delivery of keygprojects and initiatives through exploring and securing
funding support from a vari€ty. of fundraising streams

How?

o  We will work'with all departments to identify and prioritise FVC projects/initiatives
that ag@'mostyviable to fundraise against

e We will align college priorities with funding opportunities

o Weypwillxdevelop project applications that are of the highest quality reflecting the
mission, vision and values of FVC

o We will actively engage with staff to provide information on fundraising
oppeartunities and support project development

o “We will raise awareness and promote funding opportunities across the college

e We will provide appropriate support to staff for the development of projects
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Strategic Objective 3
Lead a targeted fundraising programme focused on the new Falkirk Campus —
maximising the social, technological, economic and environmental opportunities

How?

o We will identify, cultivate and prioritise potential supporters — clearly defining the
role for Senior Management

o We will develop and define clear propositions for potential supporters
We will raise the external profile of the new Campus to a wider audience

o We will organise specific events and utilise existing events to engage
potential supporters

message for the new Campus that is fit for purpose
e  We will identify and maximise opportunities for developing one-
e funding

Strategic Objective 4

Embed fundraising principles across the College integrat ith” internal and
external strategies

How?

o We will raise staff awareness of the Donor, i le (as below)

¢ We will develop an ethical fundraising po

e  We will include fundraising as part e induction process

e We will involve Senior Manag nt“and ership Group in key fundraising
campaigns — clearly defining their r

e We will ensure fundraising o) od practice is fully implemented within
FVC

o We will actively contri ltations on changes to fundraising policy,
legislation

e  We will work with ag in Communications and Marketing, Finance and
Governance to ocesses are in place to support the fundraising function

fundraising success with staff, students, Senior

IDENTIFICATION

The Donor S —
Cultivation Cycle inform, interes,

involve

SOLICITATION |
mvest
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What Will Success Look Like?

The Fundraising and Development function is a hew activity for Forth Valley College and will
need time to establish itself and engage with potential supporters. This is reflected in our
approach to measuring success to ensure we are setting realistic and achievable goals
which are also balanced with our ambitions for growth. Through delivering the Strategy and
engaging in well-planned and co-ordinated fund raising activities which support our vision,
mission and value; it is expected we will achieve the following outcomes.

Fundraising Outcomes

Year 2016 — 2017

e Forth Valley College fundraising profile, track record and geputation increased at
local, regional and national level

e Awareness-raised and new supporters engaged in the Falkirkieéampus development

e Systems developed to support coordinated fundraising across ForthmValley College

e Fundraising campaign initiated for new Falkirk Campus

e Additional income secured to deliver project§finitiatives in line with budget
expectations

¢ Alumni network database developed

Year 2017 - 2018

e Successful fundraising campaignsdemmew Ealkirk campus delivered

e Additional income secured [0 deliver projects/initiatives in line with budget
expectations

o 25% growth in supp@rtes base achieved

e Alumni network engaged,in fundraising activity

Year 2018 — 2019

¢ Fundraising fungtionfirmly established as integral part of Forth Valley College

e Forth Valley Callege has a robust and diverse supporter base including Lottery,
independentigrant making trusts, corporate, individuals and alumni

o Fundraising principles firmly embedded across FVC

¢ JAdditienal’ income secured to deliver projects/initiatives in line with budget
expectations and for the new Falkirk campus
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“Making Fundraising Work” - Action Plan 2016/17

This action plan has been developed to provide an overview of the activity we are proposing
to take forward over the period August 2016 - July 2017 in support of the four key objectives
as identified in our fundraising strategy :

1. Cultivate, develop and retain a diverse supporter base through a co-ordinated
programme of fundraising activity

2. Enable the delivery of key projects and initiatives thourgh exploring and secuFing
funding support from a variety of fundraising streams

3. Lead a targeted fundraising programme focused on the new Falkitk campus =
maximising the social, technological, economic and environmental“opportunities

4. Embed fundraising principles across the College — integrating with/internal and
external strategies

Action Plan:

Mu.pporter base

Strategic Objective 1- Cultivate, develop and re

Activity Action \ ' e Outcome By When
Raise profile of FVC Attend key interna xreased awareness August 2017
and promote events eg graduation, “)of FVC fundraising
fundraising to potential | annual dinne across Forth Valley.
supporters — including | show Key contacts made.
alumni Emerging sources such
as alumni engaged
Raise profile of FVC n ernal Increased awareness August 2017
and promote e egBusiness of FVC fundraising
fundraising conf ces, dinners, across Forth Valley.
opportunities to
external audien A number of contacts
made for cultivation
Plan and e Organise a minimum of | Key contacts Ongoing
cultivatiopactivitgwith | 2 focused events established and throughout
poteatial orters prospects identified. 2016/17
Events delivered October 2016
April 2017
velop relationships Undertake programme = Grant making August 2017
with key funding of meetings, briefings organisations aware of
anisations — and onsite visits. FVC strategic
ncluding Lottery objectives and
distributors, timescale for potential
independent grant projects
making trusts
Work with FVC staff to = 8 competitive grant Ongoing
develop quality applications submitted = 2016/17

proposals
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Develop fundraising Work with New audience December 2016
information and content | Communications and engaged and
on FVC social media Marketing to develop awareness raised

sites content
Baseline stats for web | Ongoing
pages established from | throughout
which future growth 2016/17
can be measured.
Senior Management Attend SMT meetings Clear funding December 20&
Team fully engaged in  and work with individual propositions developed = and ongoi
fundraising SMT members to and communicated to  throug
define role in engaging | supporters 2016/17

supporters P o
4

Strategic Objective 2 - Enable the delivery of key projects/initiatives

Activity Action y When
Identify FVC projects, Arrange meetings with Ongoing
programmes and HoDs, HoS to identify throughout
priority themes which potential projects and 2016/17
are most viable to opportunities.
fundraise against
plan produced

Attend curriculum r fundraising April 2017

review meeti opportunities 17/18

In ut i Key strategic themes

eglc PIan identified — funding Ongoing 2016/
opportunities prioritised | 2017

High quality project support FVC to = 8 competitive grant Ongoing
proposals developed eveI proposals that | applications submitted = 2016/17
for submission et strategic

objectives
Increase Staff Information/briefing Knowledge of funding Ongoing
awareness, of ke sessions held on opportunities increased | 2016/17
fu p ies funding opportunities, and capacity

attend departmental developed. Quality of

meetings, draft articles | external applications

for e-focus increased.

Partnership Ongoing

opportunities identified | 2016/17
— cross departmental
or external
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Strategic Objective 3: Lead a targeted fundraising programme focused on the new

Falkirk campus
Activity

Raise awareness of
new Campus to wider
audience

Develop and
communicate
fundraising message
for supporters

Commence cultivation
programme for
potential supporters

Develop appropriate
promotional
fundraising material for
new Campus

Strategic Objective 4

Activity
Establish f
process/procedu
fundraisi

Action

Promote new campus
at external events — for
example, business
awards, networking
events, dinners

Work with SMT and
Project Office to define
propositions and
timescales for
implementation

Organise at least 2
cultivation events for
new Campus in line
with Communications
Plan

Organise program
meetings, briefi
onsite visits

be

Action
Ethical fundraising
procedure drafted

Grant and fundraising
compliance updates
provided at HoD and
HoS meetings

Indicative Outcome

Key contacts identified
and cultivation process
started

Propositions developed
and tested with
potential support

acts identi
and followed up.

tivity
.

of support
ith an
| value over

Material created and
shared with potential
supporters

Indicative Outcome
FVC is compliant with
fundraising governance
and fundraising policy
is consistently applied

SMT understand
implications for
fundraising and our
obligations as an
organisation

Staff aware of their
obligations

By When

Ongoing
2016/17

~

ngoing
2016/17

August 2017

December 2016

ndraising principles across Forth Valley College

By When
October 2016

Ongoing
2016/17

Ongoing
2016/17
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Progress of fundraising
strategy reviewed

Quarterly updates
drafted and presented
to SMT

Bi-Annual updates
presented to SDC

SMT and SDC f
inform
and ach
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The Fundraising Environment - Challenges and Opportunities

In developing our fundraising approach it is important we consider the College’s position in relation to the externa
highlights some of the key issues and our planned actions.

PESTLE Analysis

mnent.

he analysis below

Political

FVC Response

Changes to local government —impact of
local elections in May 2017.

Uncertainty over a further referendum on
Scottish independence.

Impact of Brexit — potential to limit
opportunities to access funding, develop
partnership projects.

UK & Scottish Government direct the
policy and financial direction of National
Lottery Distributors which could impact
on the College’s eligibility to access
Lottery funding.

Economic

Austerity measures on-going — pressure
on public sector budgets. Reduction in
statutory funding & availability of seed
funding.

Increased competition for external
funding. High demand on Lottery

programmes and independent grant
making sector.

secure sponsorship
Potential supporters
level of disposable inc
more effort to secure do

Monitor the impact of any potential change.

Monitor the impact of any potential change.

G

oposed changes to Lottery distributors and their future

Ensure FVC interests are represented
Europa, Colleges Development Netwo

ant bodies, eg Scottish Government, Scotland
s Scotland.

Input into any relevant co at on
funding programmes.

FVC Respon
Demon seed funding can be used to maximise resources — adding value to existing
initiative er aggood return on investment.

ns¥ge quality of our fundraising is high and raise our profile with relevant funding bodies.

Develop our relationships with business sector — highlighting the positive impact FVC has on the

community both people and business. Prioritise key areas for support, for example New Campus.

Engage with supporters — communicating clear message about how their support can make a
difference at all levels.
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Social /Cultural

Fundraising receiving high level of
negative press due to fundraising
practices such as direct mail, cold calling

Funding fatigue — potential supporters
being continually asked to support
charitable organisations and develop low
level of empathy with cause.

Increased demand and expectation of our
social/welfare responsibility

Continuing gap in inequality between
geographies and sectors of the
population, for example rural
communities, people with low levels of
income.

Cultural diversification — changes to the
local demographics in terms of cultural
beliefs, values.

Technological

Continued growth and speed of change in
use of social media for fundraising and
engaging with supporters

Ability to keep up with technological
change

FVC Response

Communicate clearly with potential/existing supporters on our fun@é
adherence to regulations and good practice, for example Insti

clashing with other local high profile campaigns.
College.

Work with key people in FVC to
vulnerable individuals, gr

eously — will help to avoid
-ordinated approach across the

nities.

PS

orwith FVC Equalities team

Communications and Marketing Team to ensure social media is being used
fundraising
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Legislative FVC Response

Current review of Fundraising — may lead | Monitor changes and input into any consultations as appropriate.
to changes in legislation, regulation and
the bodies who are responsible for
monitoring registered charities, e.g. OSCR

Data protection regulation — this will be Develop appropriate processes for our fundraisi
reviewed in terms of how information on industry/professional standards and also comply
supporters is shared, stored.

Environmental FVC Response

High expectation of external funders on Communicate with funders at an early $
projects— for example the range of and returns for supporters

benefits capital investment will bring for
the community — jobs, volunteering,

Climate change — making our assets more | Access relevant sourcegief in tribute to our strategic approach to energy efficiency
efficient and sustainable. making it an integral ele 0 ding bids (if appropriate)

SWOT Analysis

Strengths

Strategic Plan with established vision and
mission — “Making Learning Work”

will provide a clear framework to develop funding applications — with projects
tegic Plan and other relevant strategies.

Strategic Plan will be reviewed for 2019- be built-into fundraising strategy to ensure it can align with future
2022 ities/priorities.

Diversity of activity — delivered a
local authority areas

th of activity to promote to supporters — opportunities to access funding/grow supporters on
thematic and geographical basis

An award winning College —f#€p i0 r
innovation in delivery@eg con ard,
STEM Assured status

Utilise and build on this reputation to grow our supporter base

16




Ability to work with and target specific
groups —responsive to changing needs

Experience of partnership working at
strategic and operational level

Staff expertise, knowledge in a diverse
range of areas

Social media — engaged with growing level
of followers

Weaknesses

External perceptions - the College’s
budget and scale (staff size) can be
viewed by some potential supporters as
“not community based”.

Low level of available seed/initial
investment funding — required to attract
match funding

Resources/capacity — danger of
spreading fundraising resources too thin
External be
specific

fundraising can project

FVC new to fundraising — will take time
build profile/track record

Opportunities

High profile projects g - the

new Falkirk Campus

elop

€

Can demonstrate positive impact to people’s lives — clear evidence o ﬁ

Established track record and reputation with other iS (locally,

internationally) - opportunities for future joint projects

nationally and
Ability to deliver high quality projects and meet f

raising a

Maximise potential to communicate our fundraisin SS

FVC Response

Explore and develop partnership op
dialogue with funders so they

to deliver community benefit projects. Continue
our strategic priorities and how impact positively on

individuals and their aspigation

Demonstrate how seed in n attract additional investment — maximising resources.

Align f to ic objectives — undertake effective cost/benefits analysis of fundraising
activity . ind@to build and grow capacity of staff to engage with fundraising.

stainability is part of the fundraising development process. Develop a diverse
ase to include projects, donations, unrestricted gifts

to raise profile, celebrate our successes, communicate about the work of the College, engage
supporters, promote our fundraising activity

FVC Response
Opportunities to engage with potential supporters and raise profile of FVC with new audience.
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Development plans for Forth Valley | Opportunities to engage with supporters, commence program f i engagement with
College Alumni network fundraising

External opportunities through strategic | Potential for funding opportunities and partnership working

developments eg Stirling City plan, TIF,

Grangemouth 2020 Vision

Fundraising function can introduce new | Contribute to financial sustainability of FVC — deliVer good s@turn on investment

funding streams to FVC

Ability to innovate, pilot new approaches, | Supports Creative Learning agenda, c -departm working, engages with staff at all levels —

stimulate ideas including SMT and the Board.

Staff development — CPD Engagement with fundraising — opport 8Welop new skills, grow capacity, motivation
Delivery of International Strategy Presents opportunities tognga idler geographic supporter base

Threats FVC Response

roposals — have awareness of local environment and other key
undertaken.

Competitive funding environment — strong | Develop quality fug
local/regional competition fundraising initiati

Continued pressure on budgets Continug to lore 8 2velop diverse fundraising streams.

Competing  priorities  (internal  and | Align fun ing PRirities with FVC Strategic objectives.

external)

Capacity— pressure on resources to | De capecity across college staff — encourage staff ownership of fundraising strategy

develop projects and deliver fundraisin
ambitions.

High expectation in relation to agffievin
fundraising targets

SMART targets for FVC fundraising activity. Realistic and balanced between expected outcomes
and ambitions.

Potential for disruption thrgligh strial | Monitor progress of negotiations and review fundraising action plan as appropriate
action
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Risk Analysis

Risk Description Risk Effect Mitigation Level & Type of Risk
Unplanned approach to delivering Cross competition between | Planned approach will be undertaken as part ofithe || Low
fundraising — competing priorities and | departments.  Potential supporters | development processs Identify roles and
timescales unclear about our priorities. Same | responsibilities of staff. Scheduleggin’® regular

funder receives multiple funding | updates on progress| for Heads\of Department, | Reputation

requests from the FVC. Dilution of | Heads of Service, Senior Management. Integrate Financial

staff expertise.

fundraising into the business planning process.

Balance between large scale and
small to medium scale fundraising
not achieved.

Staff resources are not used
effectively — return on investment not
achieved. Costs of fundraising are
outweighing the benefits.

Fundraising “aetivity will be closely aligned to
Strategic Rlan; )Operational Plan and PRD.
Priorities agreed with, SMT. Cost/benefits analysis
undertaken'to,ensure‘good value.

Failure to achieve agreed fundraising
targets for 2016-2018.

Loss of potential to make a financial
contribution to FVC. Potential
reduction in capacity to deliver{key
projects/initiatives.  Lower level “of
staff engagement/ownership.

Robust review process in place for Fundraising
Strategy. Regular reporting on progress to SMT,
guarterly updates to the Board linked with quarterly
financial'reports.

Continued reduction to public sector
budgets and changeable economic
climate

Continued high level of competition
for limited fundraising gresources.
Reduced level/interest, from “private
sector to develop, Corporate Social
Responsibility /philanthropieigiving.

Ensure fundraising is high quality, targeted,
prioritised. Develop fundraising streams that have
potential to offer good return on investment.
Promote clear fundraising message and develop
good relationships with potential support

Low to Medium

Financial

Low to Medium

Reputation

Financial

Lack of project planning

Potential  fgr™ “eress “€ompetition
between priorities. Missed
opportunitiesfor partnership and joint
workifg. “Resourees not maximised.
Funding bodies receive mixed and
inconsistent / message about FVC
priorities

Regular meetings will be held with staff (Heads of
Department, Heads of Service etc) to identify
opportunities and plan timescales. Operational plan
for fundraising will support fundraising.

Low to Medium

Financial

Reputation
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Institute of Fundraising — Proud to be a Fundraiser Toolkit

1. The Seven Pillars of Great Fundraising

The Institute of Fundraising is the professional membership body for UK fundraising and aimsgte support fundraisers through leadership,
representation, standards- setting, training and policy development. Forth Valley Collegé attends relevant meetings of the Institute of
Fundraising at Scottish and UK level to ensure we adhere to the Fundraising Code of Good Practicé and implement best practice where
appropriate.

This report has already highlighted the challenges for fundraising in relation to the egonomic envifenment and the high level of competition for
resources. To address some of these challenges the Institute of Fundraising developed the “Proud to be a Fundraiser Toolkit”. This not only
aims to support fundraisers to raise as much income as possible over the medium an@'longer term but also encourages staff at all levels within
an organisation to support fundraising through the “Seven Pillars of Great Fundraising”.

The objectives of our Fundraising Strategy support these pillars and over the®hext'3-years we will be working to integrate these into our
fundraising activity:

“Seven Pillars‘of Great Fundraising”

1. keadership
Fundraising shouldfbe ledfrom‘the top and led by example
2. Unity
The whole organisation should be unitedbehind“awell-defined single proposition that connects with your donors
3. Investment
Raising money requires resources= inyesting in fundraising will help to build a committed donor base
4. Donors

Donors can help you to achieve your mission. Qrganisations should seek opportunities to engage with and strengthen mutually
beneficial relationships with donors.
5. Communication
At the heart of effective communieation are stories that drive action. Keep the case for giving concise, accessible, reassuring and
unchallengeable

6. Inspiration & Motivation
Ensuring donors are inspired is central to successful fundraising.
7. Telling the World

Organisations must be proud and passionate about their message so they can present this to external audiences
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, ! 10. Procurement Strategy 2016-2018

Forth For Approval

Valley
CO”e)ée 8 December 2016

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

1. Purpose
To seek approval from members on the new College Procurement Strategy for 2016-2018.
2. Recommendation
That members approve the content of the new College Procurement Strategy.
3. Background
The Procurement Reform (Scotland) Act 2014 (‘Act’) has introduced

bodies with over £5m procurement expenditure to publish its pr
website by 31° December 2016.

This new procurement strategy will replace and build upon th isting strategy which has been
in place since 2013.

The strategy document was considered and end 0) approval by the Finance
Committee on 29 November 2016.

4. Key Considerations

The Act has set out guidance outlinin e included in the procurement strategy as a
minimum:

- How the strategy aligns to t o ional Outcome Agreement and College Strategic
Plan
- How the College inte oe e that its regulated procurements will deliver value for
money
te to ure that its regulated procurements will be carried out in
compliance with'its,duty totreat economic operators equally and without discrimination

- Ho tends to ensure that its regulated procurements will be carried out in

y e sustainable procurement duty

on the College’s policy on the use of Community Benefits

llege will consult and engage with those affected by our procurements

- tement on the College’s policy on the payment of a living wage to people involved in
providing any services under a regulated contract procured by the College

- Statement on the College’s policy on promoting compliance of the Health and Safety at
Work Act (1974) by contractors and sub-contractors

- A Statement on the College’s policy on the procurement of fairly and ethically traded goods
and services

- A Statement on the College’s policy in relation to provision of food to improve health,
wellbeing and education within the College and to promote the highest standards of welfare

- How the College intends to ensure, as far as reasonably practical, that payments to
contractors and the supply chain are made no later than 30 days after an invoice is
presented
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The strategy also sets out an Action Plan with five procurement objectives which align to the
Regional Outcome Agreement, Strategic Plan and the Scottish Government’s Procurement and
Commercial Improvement Programme (PCIP) themes. Further, the Action Plan contains a
number of KPI's which will enable us to measure the performance of the College’s procuremen
activity on an annual basis, which will then be reported at the end of the College’s Financi
via an Annual Report which must also be published on the College website in accorda

the Act.
The Strategy states the College will establish an operational gro sta ied in
procurement, to ensure wider consultation as required by the legislation. It is propo at this

will be led by Paul Johnstone and comprise of representatives from\ departments across the
college who have the most involvement with procurement. |Initial

include a Head of Teaching Department, Claire Shiels (Head, of Estates aeme Robertson
(Head of IT).

Following the approval of the Strategy, the Colleges Procure
updated.

5. Financial Implications

Please detail the financial implications is —Not Applicable

6. Equalities
Assessment in Place? — Y & O

Please summarise a itiv tive impacts (noting mitigating actions) — This Strategy
should provide posi ualities impacts by seeking to ensure equality is a key consideration in
our procurement.acti and seeking to ensure that suppliers and contractors to the College

play a positivi @ upporting the College’s policies in relation to equality.
7. Risk

n the matrix below the risk score. Risk is scored against Impact and Likelihood
rough to Very High.

€q

Likelihood | Impact

Very Low
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Please describe any risks associated with this paper and associated mitigating actions —
Strategy not being approved prior to the 31* December 2016 meaning the College would be in
breach of the Procurement Reform (Scotland) Act 2014. Mitigate by having the Strategy

approved.
Risk Owner — Alison Stewart Action Owner — Paul Johnsto
8. Other Implications — O
Please indicate whether there are implications for the areas below.
Communications —Yes X No [ Health and Safety — Yes No

Please provide a summary of these implications — The Strate
College website by 31% December and should also be ¢
College stakeholders

equires to be published on the
icated to relevant staff and

Paper Author - Paul Johnstone T Owner — Alison Stewart
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College Procurement Strategy 2016 - 2018

Foreword

This Strategy has been designed to ensure legislative compliance with), the
Procurement Reform (Scotland) Act 2014 and other relevant legislationgandijis
aligned with the College’s and the Scottish Funding Council’s key strategic outcomes
as detailed in our Regional Outcome Agreement and Strategic Rlan:

The key elements of the new legislation:

require us to publish a procurement strategy and action plan

require us to maintain a public contracts registerion our external website
increase the scope of our regulated procurements

require us to publish an annual procurement report

require us to meet the sustainable procurementduty

This Strategy sets us challenging but realistic,_goals for the development of our
procurement activities over the next twe, years whieh will be subject to regular and
transparent review.

The successful implementation of fthis Strategy can only be achieved by everyone
involved in the procurement of goods, services and works on behalf of the College
working in partnership with ouriProcurement Department and collaboratively with our
partners across the wider gducation and public sector.

Working together wefcanisignificantly contribute to the future sustainability of the
College through thetkeinvestment of resulting savings and efficiencies from our
procurement activities t@,enhance our students learning experiences and outcomes
and meet our Mission Statement ‘Making Learning Work’ and the supporting Vision
and Value _Statements.

Alfsen Stewart
Associate Principal and Executive Director Finance
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1 Formation and approval of our Procurement Strategy

The formation of this Strategy has been guided throughout by the College’s
Procurement Department and Associate Principal and Executive Director Finance,
and is the culmination of consultation and engagement with an appropriate and
relevant range of staff across the College as well as external stakeholders.

This Strategy has also been informed by the Scottish Procurement’s statutory
guidance under the Procurement Reform (Scotland) Act 2014 with the supporimef
APUC, the procurement centre of expertise for all of Scotland’s colleges and
universities.

The Strategy was approved by the College’s Board of Management on the g™
December 2016 and subsequently published on our website.

The Procurement Department and Associate Principal and, Executive Director
Finance in consultation with APUC as appropriate, will as a minimum, review this
Strategy annually in compliance with the ProcurementiReform (Scotland) Act 2014,
thus maintaining the alignment of our procurement activityawith our broader priorities
and allow the College where necessary to revise the[Strategy. and its related Action
Plan.

The Finance Committee will approve, “review, and 'monitor the progress of the
procurement strategy, reporting into a‘Cellege’s board'of management or equivalent,
where required.

In addition, the college will establish an operational group of staff involved in
procurement, to ensure wider c@isultation as required by the legislation.

2 Context

This Procurement Strategy “provides the framework within which the procurement
activities of the Gellegencan develop and help support our strategic objectives and
outcomes. It can alsobe understood as a procurement improvements journey based
on a clear_understanding of where the College is currently, in terms of our
procurement practieé and where we want and need to be, and how we should get
there.

As above, the College is now legally required to have and maintain a procurement
strategy as part of the requirements of the Procurement Reform (Scotland) Act 2014,
whichyprovides a national legislative framework for sustainable public procurement
that supports Scotland’s economic growth through improved procurement practice.

The Act focuses on a small number of general duties on contracting authorities
regarding their procurement activities and some specific measures aimed at
promoting good, transparent and consistent practice in procurement processes
detailed in section 6 below.



The College’s annual spend profile is displayed below with a total non-pay spend of
£6,373,493 of which £1,339,853 is non-core or non-influenceable spend (2014-15).

M Regulated A
H Non Regulated
= Non-j ea

FVC Total Spend 14/15

spend (below threshold).

This Strategy recognises that our pro t practice is based on the Scottish
Model of Procurement which sees_pr t as an integral part of policy
development and service deliver i sentially about achieving the best
balance of cost, quality and sus

A key element of this S about moving the balance of procurement effort
away from the buying or eri hase and towards a greater emphasis on the
planning and post co of procurement. Included in this is an increasingly
greater engagemen internal and external stakeholders.

3 Procur @ ission

The Procurement mission for Forth Valley College is:

est in class, co-ordinated and efficient procurement function
focused on achieving sustainable best value for all College

T aligns to the College’s Business Model which is formed by our Mission
atement ‘Making Learning Work’, which is supported by the following Vision and
Value statements:



Creating
a superb
environment
for

3
00
¢°) learning
-8 .
§
Q

* & vibrant learning
organisation where
fearners develop skill:

and progress
seamlessly

Aspirational,
accountable,
empoweting, respectful,

ngaging,
quality enhancing,
customer facing,
sustainable, continuity
and consistency

Enhancing " Instilling an
our position as energy and passion
the business and 0 ple,
community
partner . and innovation
of choice
Leading
as abusiness
that is a champion
for governance,
financial control
and balanced
risk taking
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The Procurement Department aims t S rement activities are carried
out in the best interests of the College upport the College’s Strategic Priorities
and Objectives.

To achieve this, Procurement wi @
e We understand an sp to internal and external stakeholders’ business
needs and challenges and stantly changing market conditions;
: ) o
ollege;

e collaborative arrangements where they represent
C ;
lish and maintain supplier relationships to enhance the

[ ]
ide whilst obtaining best value for money and value added
ser
o e to improve processes to facilitate a streamlined approach for

ent of goods, services and works across the College, that drive

and reduce transactional costs through continuous improvement of
t rocurement process;
We will take a lead role on strategic procurement initiatives

o e will always remain open and act in a transparent and proportionate
manner in all of our procurement activities

e We will embed best practice Sustainable Procurement considerations in our
procurement activities; and

e We will conduct all regulated procurements in line with the College’s
Procurement Policy and Procedures



e We will have due regard to whether Procurement Policy and Procedures will
further the aims of the General Equality Duty, through consideration of Public
Sector Equality Duty in our procurement activities

4 Procurement Policy

Our Procurement Policy and Procedures set out the operational framework of how
we conduct procurement of goods, services and works across the College, and_ate
based on the EU Treaty Principles of equal treatment, non-discriminatory, mutual
recognition, transparency, proportionality.

Furthermore, these policies and procedures are largely based upon {the Scettish
Government’s Procurement Journey. This will facilitate our reg@lated procurements
being conducted in accordance with best practice in a legally gcompliant manner that
is consistent with the rest of the Scottish public sector in achieving value for money
for our stakeholders.

The policy is therefore intended to:

e Ensure that procedures are in accordance, with “standards of public
accountability;

e Ensure that procedures are in accérdance with the Supplier's Charter;

e Ensure that the College is compliant tQyitsfobligations under the Public
Procurement (Scotland) Act 2015 thetRrocurement Reform (Scotland) Act
2014 and Procurement (Scotland),Regulations 2016; and

e Promote equality, diversity and sustainability through procurement matters.

5 Strategic Procuremént Gbjectives

Our strategic procurementebjectives form the core of our Procurement Strategy.

These procurementobjectives are designed to link to each of the following:
e College!Strategic Priorities and Objectives (Mission/Vision/Value Statements
noted aboeve)
e Scottish Fuading Council (SFC) Strategic Aims, as detailed in the College’s
Regional Outcome Agreement
® Ihe'Seottish Model of Procurement

College Regional Outcome Agreement

The Regional Outcome Agreement for the Forth Valley region contains the following
SFC Priority Outcomes:

Efficient and Sustainable

Right learning in the right place
High quality learning

A developed workforce
Equalities



The Scottish Model of Procurement

The Scottish Model of Procurement is based upon achieving the best balance
between cost, quality and sustainability (i.e. not simply focusing on cost and quality).
This model is supported by a Value for Money Triangle, which consists of the
following four objectives:

Delivering savings and benefits

Maximising efficiency and collaboration
Improving supplier access to public contracts
Embedding sustainability in all we do

Scottish Procur nt

Cost

Delivering
savings and
benefits

Sustainability
i X
Scottish Model of Procurement et



Forth Valley College — Strategic Procurement Objectives — 2016-18

The Strategic Procurement Objectives (PO) for the period of this Procurement
Strategy (2016-2018) are set out below:

PO1 - To maximise collaborative procurement opportunities in the delivery of
value for money and efficiency

PO2 - To further develop a College wide approach to procurement which, is co-
ordinated, efficient and effective in the achievement of value for money; and
which supports the delivery of high quality learning

PO3 - To develop sound and useful procurement managément information in
order to measure and improve procurement and supplier perfermance in
support of the College Strategic Priorities and Objectives

PO4 - To embed relevant and appropriate procurement strategies to manage or
reduce risk to the College

PO5 - To embed sound economic, social and, envirohnmental procurement
policies, and to comply with relevant Scottish, “OK and EU legislation in
performance of the Sustainable ProGuremeniDuty

The Procurement Action Plan in Section,8 'shows how each of these link to the
College Strategic Plan, Regional Qutcome Agreement and Scottish Model of
Procurement.

Furthermore, the ProcurementyActioniRlan shows how these actions are measured
and reported through ourinvolvement in the Scottish Government’s Procurement
and Commercial Improvement,Programme (PCIP) and through the publication of an
Annual Procurement Report (seefsection 7).



6

Ensuring compliance with general duties and specific measures of the

Procurement Reform (Scotland) Act 2014

As required by the Act the College must comply with a small number of general
duties and some specific measures which will be embedded in our Procurement
Policy and Procedures or in our Action Plan (section 8) but for clarity and to ensure
full compliance with the Act are stated below:

General Duties/Specific

What we will do

Measures under the Act
Contribute to the
carrying out of our
function and the
achievement of our

purposes

Deliver Value

The College will analyse our non-pay expenditure to

identify:
EU regulated procurements

Goods and Services greater than £164,176
Works worth more than £4,104,394); and

Procurement Reform Act regulated procurements
Goods and Services greatérthan £50,000
Works worth more than £2 million

The College, will ensure that all commodity strategies
and project specifiegprocurement strategies align to the
College’s ‘strategic aims*and objectives and in turn the
College’s RegionahOutcome Agreement. This will be
achieved™Wythrough  appropriate  and  effective
consultation.

The, College will consider where appropriate the
effective use of contract and supplier management to
menitor and further improve the regulated procurement
contract outcomes.

“Value as
defined fby t ottish
Model rocurement, is

e of cost,

cost and
about the best

quality

The College through its Procurement Policy and
Procedures will seek to consistently apply the principle
of Value for Money, albeit the balance of cost, quality
and sustainability will vary for each procurement
depending on the particular commodity, category and
market.

The College will consider the whole-life cost of what is
being procured and when applying the above principle
of value for money, ensure that it does so in a clear,
transparent and proportionate manner; in line with the
Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union of
equal treatment, non-discrimination, transparency,
proportionality and mutual recognition and in complying
with the general duties of the Act as well as the
sustainable procurement duty (see below)




Treating relevant
economic operators
equally and without
discrimination

The College will conduct all its regulated procurements
in compliance with the principles of the Treaty on the
Functioning of the European Union (equal treatment,
non-discrimination, transparency, proportionality
and mutual recognition) and will consider early
engagement with the supply market where relevant
prior to the publication of a contract notice.

All regulated procurements will be posted on porials
such as Public Contracts Scotland (PCS) and Public
Contracts Scotland-Tender(PCS-T) and shall strive to
ensure the use of separate lots, where appropriate, With
straightforward output based specifications and ‘¢clear
evaluation criteria to ensure the “procurement is
accessible to as many bidders as/possible.

Acting in a transparent
and proportionate

manner

The College will ensure it engages with itsdocal supply
market and though the College’s Procurement Policy
will mandate the use of clearand precise language in
its specifications.

The College shall gnsure contracts are awarded using
appropriate Quality,.risk and sustainability factors as
well as cost accerding,toddeclared score weightings
specific to eaeh caontract.

The College'will actively take steps to make it easier for
smallenand lgcal businesses to bid for contracts
tArough:
=0 the use of Public Contracts Scotland and Quick
Quotes,
& information contained on the Procurement page
of the College website,
- the provision of training and/or provide
information on third party training opportunities
(such as the Supplier Development Programme)
- attending local supplier/buyer engagement
events (such as Meet the Buyer)

The College will give consideration to the
environmental, social and economic issues relating to
all regulated procurements and how benefits can be
accrued, on a contract-by-contract basis by taking
proportionate actions to involve SMEs, third sector
bodies and supported businesses in our procurement
activities and in so doing benefit not only the College
but the wider Forth Valley region.

The College will endeavour to make use of available
tools and systems such as the Scottish Public
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Procurement Prioritisation Tool, the Sustainability Test,
Life Cycle Impact Mapping, the Scottish Flexible
Framework as well as APUC’s Code of Conduct,
Sustain and Electronics Watch where relevant and
proportionate to the scope of the procurement.

Policy on the use of
community benefits

The College will consider for each of its procurements
over £4m how it can improve the economic, social of
environmental wellbeing of the Forth Valley regien
through the inclusion of community benefit clauses
aligned with the College’s own strategic outcomes, as
well as a number of the Scottish Government's"National
Outcomes namely outcomes 2, 3, 4 and 7:

- We realise our full economi€ potentiabwith4more
and better employment [Opportunitiesfor our
people;

- We are better educated, mare, skilled and more
successful, renowned for ourresearch and
innovation,

- Ouryoung people are"y successful learners,
confident individuals, effective contributors and
responsiblegitizens and

- We have ftackledf the significant inequalities in
Scottish'society.

Examplesgef the scope of community benefits clauses
may jinclude), amongst others as appropriate, the
delivery, of fraining opportunities or subcontracting
opportunities” within the Forth Valley region, relevant
andiproportionate to the particular procurement.

The' College will strive to engage with internal
stakeholders including students where relevant as well
engage with the local and wider supplier community to
ensure suppliers understand the use of community
benefits and how to respond where they are included.

Where possible and proportionate, such clauses may
also be included in procurements below £4m

ing with those
affected by its
curements

The College will take note of available good
practice/principles of engagement including those
detailed in the National Standards for Community
Engagement as well as ensuring procurement staff
have or will be developed to have the relevant
communication and engagement skills.

The College will consider each procurement, the
community affected by the resultant contract and
ensure any affected organisations/persons are

11




consulted (e.g. impact on service for students, persons
or groups with relevant protected characteristics where
reasonable adjustments may be considered as part of a
specification, or a local contract that could be combined
with other similar institution’s needs). Such
consultation will always be on a scale and approach
relevant to the procurement in question.

All of the above will be embedded in the College's
procurement practice.

The Living Wage

As an organisation who is a Living Wage employer, the
College recognises the value of a well-mgtivated \and
dedicated workforce both in its own organisation and in
those of its suppliers. In compliance withgthe Act the
College will consider, befere undertaking a
procurement, whether it is relevant@and preportionate to
include a question on faik work practices along with
other relevant criteria, whilsthensuring the appropriate
balance between quality andycost of the contract,
paying regard to the_statutory/guidance including the
application the living wage.

Promoting compliance
with the Health and
Safety at Work Act 1974

¥

The College ‘s, committed to contracting only with
suppliers that,comply with all appropriate and relevant
legislationgincluding'Health and Safety legislation.

Where appropriate, and on a contract by contract basis,
tAe institution will assess the legislation applicable to a
procurement and take steps to ensure bidders comply
with such legislation. Where proportionate, the College
als@'seek to assess the compliance of subcontractors.

The procureme

fairly and ethij %

traded go
service

As an organisation which holds Fairtrade status, the
College actively supports the sourcing of goods that are
fairly and ethically traded.

Where directly relevant it shall make use of appropriate
standards and labels in its procurements to take
account of fair and ethical trading considerations as
well as considering equivalent offerings from suppliers
that can demonstrate they can meet the specified
criteria without necessarily having the specific
certification

The provision of food
and improving the
health, wellbeing and
education of
communities in the

The College will find practical ways to supply healthy,
fresh, seasonal, and sustainably grown food which
represents value for money whilst improving the health,
wellbeing and education of our teaching and learning
communities, coupled with promoting the highest
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College’s area, and the standards of animal welfare.
promotion of the highest
standards of animal The College will work to put in place affordable
welfare contracts, which meet the nutritional requirements for
all users of our catering services and will use available
good practice and guidance such as that made
available by The University Catering Organisation
(TUCO) and any other relevant bodies.

The College utilises APUC and TUCO Framework
Agreements for the vast majority of our foodiand
catering requirements, and the products an@ services
under these Frameworks must comply withall relevant
legislation and standards.

Payment terms The College recognises the importance of paying
suppliers promptly once a service*has been performed
or goods delivered and that, late payment is particularly
detrimental to SMEs, thirdgseetor bodies and supported
businesses.

The College willd'comply“with the Late Payment
legislation and will séview on a contract by contract
basis whéether‘suchiebligations should be enforced and
monitored turther'down its supply chain

7 Annual Procuremenit’' Repert

7.1  Statutory Requirement

In accordancewith reguirement of the Procurement Reform (Scotland) Act 2014 the
College will publish an Annual Procurement Report as soon as practicable after
College’sffinancialgyear end and will describe as required by the Act how it has
discharged its @bligations under the Act and how it has exercised discretion and
judgementyass permitted by the public procurement rules to secure strategic
abjectives in compliance with the Act.

Thiskeport will also provide a commentary on the progress of this Strategy and its
Action‘Plan.

7.2 Contents of our Annual Procurement Report

The Annual Procurement Report in compliance with the Act will contain as a
minimum:

o A summary of the regulated procurements that have been completed during
the year covered by the Report

13




o A review of whether these procurements complied with this Strategy

o The extent that any regulated procurements did not comply, a statement of
how the College intends to ensure that future regulated procurements do
comply

o A summary of any community benefit requirements imposed as part of a

regulated procurement that were fulfiled during the year of the Report
including for example; apprenticeships completed, curriculum support
activities, business support activities, support to communities and resource
efficiencies achieved in terms of materials, waste or water.

o A summary of any steps taken to facilitate the involvement of supported
businesses in regulated procurements during the year covered by the Repert

o A summary of the regulated procurements the College expects tofcommence
in the next two financial years

o Such other information as the Scottish Ministers may 0y order specify and

where applicable that demonstrate compliance with[other legislation that
places specific requirements on the College with respeet to its procurement
activities and the College will also consider including:

o What it has learned from its consultation and engagement with
stakeholders and those affected by its gofocurements, and what it is
doing to respond to these views, includingthow procurement has
furthered the College’s work with regaid toithe General Equality Duty

o What it is doing to improve its perfagmance and impact, drawing on
relevant information — forjexample spend analysis — and what
improvements have been‘achieved sinee its last report; and

o How it is working with other‘bodies,— for example procurement centres
of expertise — to maximiseteffectiveness and efficiency.

The College will seek to publislpitssannual procurement report in an inclusive way
that takes into account equality andaeeessibility issues and allows stakeholders to
form a clear view of the College’s performance.

8 Procuremen®ActioniRlan

8.1 Introduction

The Action Rlamconsists of a number of specific actions and commitments in relation
to each Of the strategic objectives and their desired outcomes these are also cross
referenced to the relevant section of the Procurement and Commercial Improvement
ProgrammexRCIP).

Pragress against this Action Plan (see below) will be regularly monitored by the
College’s Procurement Advisory Group.

AS part of the formal annual review of this Strategy, as indicated in section 1 above,
this Action Plan will be reviewed and updated as required, to maintain alignment of
the College’s procurement activity with its broader priorities.

14



Forth Valley College — Procurement Action Plan

SFC Priority Outcome | e Efficient and Sustainable

FVC Strategic Plan e Leading as a business that is champion for governance, financial control and balanced risk taking
Value Statement e Delivering a whole system approach. Simply effective, efficient and consistent

Scottish Model of e Maximising efficiency and collaboration

Procurement e Delivering Savings and Benefits

Objective:

Procurement Objective Target/Outcome Main Actions Benchmark Data/ KPI/Measure farget PCIP Ref
1 Sources Date
To maximise ¢ Review expenditure analysis on an | e Scottish Procurement

collaborative annual basis to identify non-pay Information Hub/FVC

procurement expenditure not covered by expenditure analysis

opportunities in the regulated contract
delivery of value for
money and efficiency

e APUC Annual Benefits
To maximise the use Statement ® ptake of

of collaborative July 2017 e Dashboard
Framework then e Assessment
Agreements and « Develop forward contracting plan annually Q2.1
Contracts and identify opportunities to utilise ~ thereafter e Assessment
(CAT A, B and C1) collaborative opportunities tracts annually Q3.3

e CoEs an f collaborative

e Identify any sectoral or regional racts used)

opportunities to collaborate

e Further embed collaborative o
procurement into policies and
procedures (aligned to
Procurement Journey)

o Work with relevant Collegestaff t
maximise use of Framewo
Agreements where possible

information on FVC
harePoint site

15



SFC Priority Outcome

e Efficient and Sustainable

e High Quality Learning

e Right Learning in the right place

FVC Strategic Plan
Value Statement

e Leading as a business that is champion for governance, financial control and balanced risk taking
e Delivering a whole system approach. Simply effective, efficient and consistent

Scottish Model of
Procurement
Obijective:

e Maximising efficiency and collaboration
e Delivering Savings and Benefits

Procurement

Objective 2

To further develop a
College wide approach
to procurement which
Is co-ordinated,
efficient and effective
in the achievement of
value for money, and
which supports the
delivery of high quality
learning

Target/Outcome

To increase the number of
regulated contracts for
College wide use for
commonly purchased
goods, services and works

Main Actions

Review expenditure analysis to
identify categories of goods,
services and works which are
not currently covered by a
College wide contract

Engage with relevant
departments/staff to
understand common
requirements and develop
appropriate procurement
strategy (including route to
market)

Implement College wide
contracts, including appropriate
contract management
approach

To maximise efficiency of
processes relating to the
requisition and invoicing of
goods, services and works

Ensure procurement policy and
procedures maximise efficiency
relevant to value/risk o
purchase

Maximise use of

Benchmark Data/
Sources

Scottish Procurement
Information Hub/FVC
expenditure analysis

Stakeholder Focus
Groups/Surveys
CoEs and other Pub

KPI/Measure Target
Date

Increase the
proportion of

contracts in FVC
Contracts Register

PCIP Ref

e Dashboard
e Assessment
Q3.3

VC procurement policy
ad procedures

Reduce total
number of

Quarter 1
2017 then

e Dashboard

To improve the awareness
of procurement policies
and procedures among
relevant College staff
suppliers through various

, Purchase Orders annually Assessment
PZP purchasilrég s(;/stem and Invoices thereafter Q2.3
[ )
rocurement Cards processed per e Assessment
e P2P purchasing
system/Finance system
¢ Finance Reports
¢ HR induction plan
e Moodle Report Total number of Quarter 1
FVC staff to 2017 then e Assessment

complete Moodle | Ongoing
course

Number of training

Q14
e Assessment
Q15

16




Introduce periodical review

meetings/training opportunities
with departments to provide

relevant updates

Records of
meetings/training
sessions held and
relevant information
discussed.

Improve the awareness of
procurement information
available for College staff

Periodical department
meetings

Procurement SharePoint

page

Relevant staff/stakeholder

survey/feedback

E-Focus bulletins

Improve the awareness of
procurement information
available for suppliers

FVC website

Supplier survey/feedback

as appropriate

Supplier engagement
events

To ensure that our
procurement policies and
procedures continue to
deliver the requirements of
the College in an efficient
and effective manner

Introduce new approaches to
gathering feedback from
College staff about the service
provided by Procurement and
suggestions for improvement

Continue to review and
improve our policies and

procedures based on feedback

received

Stakehol ocus
Grou ur
Procure ha
Page

int

sessions delivered
to FVC staff on
Procurement
topics

Outputs of sta
and supplier
suryeys/feedback

Ongoing

Periodic

Assessment
Q3.1
Assessment
Q3.2
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SFC Priority Outcome

e Efficient and Sustainable

FVC Strategic Plan
Value Statement

e Leading as a business that is champion for governance, financial control and balanced risk taking
e Delivering a whole system approach. Simply effective, efficient and consistent

Scottish Model of
Procurement
Objective:

e Maximising efficiency and collaboration
e Delivering Savings and Benefits

Procurement
Objective 3

To develop sound and
useful procurement
management
information in order to
measure and improve
procurement and
supplier performance
in support of College
Strategic Priorities
and Objectives

To continue to record
savings and efficiencies
achieved through
procurement activity

Main Actions

Record local savings and
efficiencies using agreed
sector methodology

Review APUC Annual Benefits
Statement for savings and
efficiencies achieved through
Frameworks

Benchmark Data/
Sources

FVC procurement savings
report/Hunter database

e APUC Annual Benefits
Statement

To report the benefits
delivered by the
Procurement function in
support of College
objectives

Preparation of periodic reports
that address the aims and
objectives of the College, and
the requirements of
Procurement Reform
(Scotland) Act 2014

Prepare Annual Report on
performance against
Procurement Strategy

KPIl/Measure

achievement of
strategic objectives
in line with the
requirements of the
Procurement
Reform (Scotland)
Act

Target

Annual — as
soon as
possible
after FY end

PCIP Ref

Assessment Q2.3
Assessment Q2.4

Assessment Q1.2
Assessment Q2.4

To seek to continually
improve supplier
performance through the
management of
performance on contracts

Seek feedback fro
staff/departments

ier feedback on
e and opportunities
further improvements

e Stakeholder Focus

Groups/Surveys
e Contract KPI's/SLA’s
e Supplier
feedback/performance

improvement reports

Level of staff
satisfaction/positive
feedback on
supplier
performance from
Focus Groups and
Surveys

Periodic

Assessment Q3.1
Assessment Q3.2
Assessment Q3.3
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SFC Priority Outcome

e Efficient and Sustainable

FVC Strategic Plan
Value Statement

e Leading as a business that is champion for governance, financial control and balanced risk taking

Scottish Model of
Procurement
Objective:

e Delivering Savings and Benefits
e Maximising efficiency and collaboration

e Embedding Sustainability in all we do

Procurement
Objective 4

To embed relevant and
appropriate
procurement
strategies to manage
or reduce risk to the
College.

Target/Outcome

To understand risks
relating to key
suppliers/contracts and
implement relevant
management approach

Main Actions

Embed risk as a key
consideration when developing
contract/commodity strategy

Through detailed spend
analysis, identify
supplier/contract risk levels and
determine appropriate tactical
and strategic approaches to
supply markets and contract
management

Establish a procurement risk
register to collate and manage
all identified procurement risks

Communicate appropriate risks
to Senior Management Team

for inclusion in College Risk
Register

To reduce the College’s
exposure to any forms of
risk relating to
procurement activity

Embed risk managemen

¢ FVC Commodity

e FVC dit

processes into Policy an
Procedures, includings
- Schemes of D
Conflict of |

Benchmark Data/

Sources

Procurement Strateg
conjunction with rel
FVC staff

Analysis

VC procurement policy
and procedures

e Procurement SharePoint

page (intranet)

e Periodical departmental

meetings

e Moodle induction

KPIl/Measure

Total number of
FVC staff to
complete Moodle
course

Number of training
sessions delivered
to FVC staff on
Procurement
topics

get
Date

Quarter
017 th

PCIP Ref

Dashboard
Assessment Q1.5

Ongoing

Assessment Q1.6
Assessment Q3.1
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SFC Priority Outcome | e Efficient and Sustainable

¢ High Quality Learning

e A developed workforce

e Equalities
FVC Strategic Plan e Cultivating a vibrant learning organisation where learners develop skills, achieve qualifications valued by industry a ess seamlessly
Value Statement e Instilling an energy and passion for our people, celebrating success and innovation

e Enhancing our position as the business and community partner of choice

Scottish Model of e Embedding Sustainability in all we do
Procurement e Improving supplier access to public contracts
Objective:

Procurement Target/Outcome Main Actions Benchmark Data/ KPI/Measure [arget PCIP Ref
Objective 5 Sources Date

To embed sound To maximise the Embed sustainability
economic, social and economic, social and considerations into relevant e Scottish Government Annual — as | Dashboard
environmental environmental outcomes commodity procurement Public Procurement soon after Assessment Q1.2
procurement policies from our procurement strategies through the use of Prioritisation Tool FYendas | Assessment Q2.2
and to comply with activity the Sustainability Test possible Assessment Q2.4
relevant Scottish, UK I(Dlncludmg Sl:s[';al?able
: . rocurement Duty
e consderaons : _
. Sustainable

Sustainable ¢ Identify and maximise Procurement
Procurement Duty. Community Benefit Duty

opportunities from contracts considerations

where appropriate

Dashboard
e Place at least one contract wit Assessment Q2.4
a Supported Business FVvC acts Register
ebsite) e Award a Annually
e Seek to maximise opport contract to a
for SME’s and local Supported
businesses, particul VC procurement policy Business

below regulatedip
opportunities

and procedures
e PCS/PCS-T

To support the o e Sustainability Committee | ¢ Annual Report

achievement of the actions/Sustainable showing the Annual —as | Assessment Q1.2
College’s overall Procurement KPI's achievement of | soon as
Sustainability targets and strategic possible
objectives conomic, social e Summary of outcomes objectives in after FY end
mental outcomes contained in Award line with the
rocurement activity Recommendation Report requirements
e Annual Report of the
intain Level 2 of Flexible Procurement
ramework as a minimum e Flexible Framework Reform Ongoing
Assessment/Action Plan (Scotland) Act
e Communicate Sustainable
Procurement objectives to e Procurement SharePoint | ® Maintain Level
2 of Flexible
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College stakeholders

page

Framework

Assessment 4

Increase supplier
engagement in relation to
FVC’s sustainable
procurement objectives

Improve information available
to suppliers on how to do
business with the College, and
sustainability objectives

Attend supplier engagement
events in the Forth Valley area,
such as Meet the Buyer

FVC website

Supplier survey/feedback
as appropriate

APUC SUSTAIN tool

Supplier engagement
events

Outputs of
supplier
surveys

Periodic O :

o)
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[ : 11. Falkirk Council - Representation within the

Forth Community Planning Leadership Structure

VaIIey - For Approval
COl Iege 8 December 2016

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

1.

Purpose

To discuss the request from Falkirk Community planning Partnership and nominate a Board
representative to the new CPP Strategic Board.

Recommendation

That members consider the request and attached documentation from Falkirke€Colincil “and
nominate a Board member to represent the College.

Background

The College are active members of the Falkirk Community Planning Partnership and have been
keen advocates for the recent review of governance arrangemment to ensureidélivery of the new
Strategic Outcomes and Local Delivery (SOLD) plan. The attached documentation identifies a
new more compact Strategic Board which meets six gtimesQper annum and will have
representation at the elected member and non executive/board member level, where practical.
This will preplace the existing Leadership Board. The neWpBoardywill have representation from 9
organisations including a member from the lacal Business Panel. The role of the Board will be to
ensure the statutory requirements of the CPP"and delivery on strategic priorities.

There will be a new Executive Group comprising,ChiefyExecutives from key partner organisations
and will support the Strategic Board through'the pro-active scrutiny, challenge and monitoring of
Delivery Groups and Locality Planning. The College Principal will be the College representative on
this group.

This item was considered@tthe Strategic Development Committee meeting on 1 December
2016. Members recommendedithat “this be brought to the full Board of Management for
consideration and to seek n@mination of a Board member.

Key Considerations

The College is.a proactive member of the three CPP’s across the region. We are represented on
the Stirling Leadership Board by Anne Mearns as Vice Chair to the Board and Ken Thomson,
Principal. In Clackmannan, Andrew Lawson represents the College on the Clackmannan Alliance
andifor thelast three years, the Principal has been a member of the Falkirk Leadership Board.
Following an audit by Scottish Government, Falkirk have reviewed their governance structure in
order to'hold partners accountable for actions agreed and to support the new SOLD document
whieh resulted in the proposed structure for a Strategic Board and an Executive Board. The
Principal will be a member of the Executive Board.

The college is seen as a very effective and indeed lead partner in Community Planning and we
have an invitation for a board member to attend the Strategic Board. The Board will meet six
times a year. It is recognised that key to a successful partnership will be the communication
between the nominated FVC Board member of the Strategic Board and the Principal on the
Executive .




Community Planning Leadership Structure

VaIIey - For Approval
CO”ege 8 December 2016

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

, 11. Falkirk Council - Representation within the
Forth

The remit for the group will be —

e Fulfilment of statutory requirements of the Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act
2015, and the elements of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 2003 which remain i
force;
e Approve the Strategic Outcomes & Local Delivery Plan
e Achievement of strategic priorities and local outcomes o Scrutiny and challenge
progress of attainment of strategic priorities and local outcomes o :
challenge of locality planning
e Approval of CPP strategies & plans

e Approval of Locality Plans
e Securing continuous improvement in local partnership workin

e Appropriate alignment of partnership resources with strat riorities and local
outcomes
e Scrutinise, challenge and support agencies, delivery to achieve agreed outcomes

and priorities

Anne Mearns represents the Board on the Stirling is role for Falkirk is seen as a
positive profile role for the College and Boardimem

er n travel expenses for the nominated Board

5. Financial Implications

There are no financial costs to this re
member which would be paid for

6. Equalities

Assessment in Place?

If No, please explai is is an external commitment from the College with no direct

impact on st e
Please positive/negative impacts (noting mitigating actions) — Board member
invol ent PP Strategic Board will ensure a strong voice for Forth Valley College.

\30




r ; 11. Falkirk Council - Representation within the
Forth Community Planning Leadership Structure

Valley w For Approval
CO”ege 8 December 2016

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

7. Risk

Please indicate on the matrix below the risk score. Risk is scored against Impact and Likelihood
as Very Low through to Very High.

Likelihood Impact
Very High
High
Medium O

Low * *
Very Low
Please describe any risks associated with this paper and associated igati ctions — Low

risk to engagement with the Falkirk CPP given we already
engagement across various levels of the CPP. If we are unabl
member for the Strategic CPP Board, the two accompanyi
and “where possible”. The default will be for the Principa
senior manager at Executive Group level.

e a high pr nd professional
o identify a nominated Board
do state “where practical”
d and we will review the

Risk Owner — Dr Ken Thomson on ner — Dr Ken Thomson

8. Other Implications -

Please indicate whether there are imf; % or the areas below.
Communications —No { Health and Safety —No
Please provide a sum ft implications — N/A

Paper Author — Dr K oms SMT Owner — Dr Ken Thomson
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Valley ' =
College

Making Learning Work

9 November 2016 Tel:
Email:

Councillor Craig Martin
Leader of the Council
Falkirk Council
Municipal Buildings
Falkirk

FK1 5RS

Dear &D\/T/

Re: Representation within the Com

Thank you for your letter dated 21% Octob
to be represented on the Strategic G 3

I will be taking a paper to
Management on 1% Decem
nominated members.

| shall be in touch wit ft: meeting.

Yours sincer
7

Dr Ken Thomson, Principal.

01324 403203

ken.thomson@forthvalley.ac.uk *

adership Structure

nd the invitation for Forth Valley College
w Executive Group.

Development Committee of the Board of
approval for the proposal and to identify our

Forth Valley College of Further & Higher Education

Falkirk Campus - Tel: +44 (0)1324 403000
Grangemouth Road, Falkirk, FK2 9AD

Tel: 0845 634 4444

Alloa Campus - Tel: +44 (0)1259 215121
Devon Road, Alloa, FK10 1PX

www.forthvalley.ac.uk Fax: +44(0)1324 403222

Stirling Campus - Tel: +44 (0)1786 406080
Drip Road, Stirling, FK8 15E

Registered Charity Number: $C021191



Home Address:

27 North Main Street, Carronshore FK2 8HW
Telephone: 01324 558304
email: craig martin@falkirk.gov.uk

Enquiries to: Andrew Wilson Forth O C Fl?ll(lll"kb(;()lllnc;l
Direct Dial: 01324 506046 Valley® omharrie na fi-tagiaise brice
Date: 21 October 2016

2 4 OCT 2016

Ken Thomson

Principal B ‘
Forth%fa]ley College REQF‘V&D PH!N(_EPAE.
Grangemouth Road I
FALKIRK

FK2 9AD | O

Dear Mr Thomson

Subject: REPRESENTATION WITHIN THE COMMUNET'Y P EADERSHIP

STRUCTURE

I am writing to you following my recent letter outlining the change inmplemented to the Community
Planning Partnership’s Leadership Structure. As a key Co 1 g partner I am inviting your
organisation to be represented on the Strategic Group a xecutive Group. Could I ask that you

please provide nominees to the Policy and Co P g Manager as follows:

andrc:w.wﬂson@falkﬁrk.gov.uk

As outlined in my recent letter organisations

resented as follows:

e Strategic Group at Elected or Member level, where possible; and

e Executive Group at Chi

Thank you for your assistanceginthis

Yours sincerely
Councillor Craig Martin

O CIL CRAIG MARTIN
FALKIRK COUNCIL
C THE FALKIRK COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP
ef: AEEBA0916AW — Leadership Structure Nominees
Leader of the Council

Labour - Carse, Kinnaird and Tryst Ward

Municipal Buildings, Falkirk FK1 5RS.
Telephone: 01324 506278
Fax: 01324 501288

www.falkirk.gov.uk



" Home Address:

27 North Main Street, Carronshore FK2 8HW
Telephone: 01324 558304
email: craig martin@falkirk. gov.uk

Falkirk Council
Enquities to: Andrew Wilson Combhairle na h-Eaglmse Brice

Direct Dial: 01324 506046
Date: 21 October 2016

w0
Ken Thomson, D%!?%@

Principal ‘ *
Forth Valley College 2 4 ocT 2016

Grangemouth Road

FALKIRK DY oy O

REECE S0 Ky
FK2 9AD @Eq*-”ﬁ-’-" A ?MNC'

Dear Mr Thomson

o developing our priotities been
e outcome of that review and
o our delivery structure include:

As you will be aware the Community Planning partnership has 1
reviewing our delivery structure. I am therefore writing t
1ts implications for our agencies and organisationsgThes

° A new more compact Strategic Board w ee es per annum with representation at
Flected Member and non executive/ Boar level, where practical. This will replace the
existing Leadership Board. The ne ; lude representation from 9 organisations,
including for the first time a membeé cal Business Panel. This Strategic Board has a key
role in ensuring that the Com: g Partnership (CPP) fulfils its statutory tequitements,
and that if delivers on it riorities and local outcomes

° Having an annual Comm
the third sector and
is to consider the
contributing partner
added value
and

rom local communities. The main purpose of this wider event
achievements of the CPP during the yeat, as well as that of its

ual conference will also be showcase event, so that the success and
Planning across the Falkitk Council area, can be visibly demonstrated,;

ecutive Group comprising Chief Executives or the most senior officers from
nusations. Its key role is to support the Strategic Board in undertaking its role and

tio'on these changes. The appendix also highlights which organisations are proposed to be
ted on each group within the new structure. I shall be writing separately to relevant partner
ations seeking their nominations as members of the new strategic board and executive group

Councillor Craig Martin
Leader of the Council
Labour - Carse, Kinnaird and Tryst Ward

Municipal Buildings, Falkirk FK1 5RS.
Telephone: 01324 506278
Fax: 01324 501288

www.falkirk.gov.uk



I would like to thank all partners for their engagement in this review process and look forward to moving
forward to deliver the priotities and local outcomes we have now agreed for our communities. I will write
separately to each organisation asking for appropriate representation on the new structure.

Again thank you for your continued support to our partnership.

=~

COUNCILLOR CRAIG MARTIN
LEADER, FALKIRK COUNCIL
CHAIR OF THE FALKIRK COMMUNITY PLANNING ERSHIP

Out Ref: AEEBA0916AW — New Leadership S@

N
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[ ‘ 12. Student Association Activity
Forth September to December 2016

VaIIey - For Discussion
CO”ege 8 December 2016

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

1. Purpose

To update members on Student Association activity between September 2016 and December
2016.

2. Recommendation
Contents of this report be noted by Senior Management

3. Revised Operational Plan

4. Key Highlights

Student Engagement

te of engaging with students, with excellent
feedback from Freshers and class re e training. We have also been working hard to
boost our social media presen it s. The SA has attended a number of classes to
inform students of their i and of opportunities such as Open Badges, Mental Health
First Aid Training and volu ing ortunities within the Association.

The year so far has been very succe

Mental Health First

me of interest from both staff and students wishing to take part in
nere are over 110 allocated trainees, with a further 97 hoping to attend

There has been'a
the SMHFA tra
trainin

Student Coun

We just completed another round of Student Council meetings, and will be collating
estions and feedback, and looking for responses on any issues over the next month. This year
invited management from the catering department along to answer any questions directly,
due to previously high numbers of queries/issues surrounding the area.
At these sessions we have put forward our strategic plan for approval (pending approval at the
time of writing).
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5. Financial Implications

There is no financial implication, as long as the Student Association stays within Budget. This will
be monitored monthly to ensure there is no overspend.

6. Equalities
Assessment in Place? — Yes [ No 1 Non-Applicable
7. Risk

Please indicate on the matrix below the risk score. Risk is scored against Impact and Likelihood
as Very Low through to Very High.

Likelihood | Impact
Very High
High
Medium X X
Low
Very Low

Please describe any risks associated with this er associated mitigating actions:

Communications — O Health and Safety — Yes [1 No X

Paper Authoch n SMT Owner — Andrew Lawson

Risk Owner — Alan Buchan on Owner — Alan Buchan

8. Other Implications — NA




Forth Valley Student Association

Student Association Update

Freshers’ Events

Monday 19" September @ Stirling:Capital FM Roadshow
Tuesday 20" September @ Falkirk: Beach Party
Wednesday 21° September @ Stirling: Beach Party
Wednesday 21 September @ Stirling Thistles: Student Shopping Night O

Thursday 22M September @ Alloa: Beach Party
Thursday 22" September @ Vue Cinema Stirling: Free film showing

This year’s Freshers’ was a great success and the biggest we have ever held in terms of
events and engagement with students. Our social media activity ha ed massively
and we were able to tie in with Capital FM to promote the Student Shopping Night at Stirling
Thistle Centre.

£448.48 was raised for Maggies during the Freshers

Volunteers

We have around 10 volunteers signed_up ork with us this year, this is the most
and
going fa

ith 174 reps trained over 8 sessions, we received very

volunteers we have ever had as the S2 ing we hope will allow for us to develop

a strong network of engaged studehts ard.

Class Rep Training

et
positive feedback. We wi nning further sessions in February for the January start
ave missed the sessions will be able to attend these or carry

Student ContactReports

ollating data on our contact with students and their enquiries. We use this

ify key areas where students come to us for information, support and guidance
ich departments we are having the most contact with within the College. This also
allows us to track how many students utilise the services provided by Student Association.



Mental Health First Aid Training

We have had a high volume of students requesting to be trained in Mental Health First Aid:

e 232 people signed up in total (13 staff & 219 students)

e 16 people completed the training (3 students & 13 staff)
e 119 students have been allocated a training date.

e 97 students have still to be allocated a training date.

Healthy Body Healthy Mind Committee

The Health, Wellbeing & Sport Officer is looking for volunteers to get involved with) the
Healthy Body Healthy Mind Committee. The committee is open to gtaff and students who
are interested in mental or physical health.

Student Council Meetings

Student Council Meetings have been held on the 17™, 18%andy21°" of November. Each of
these meetings was accompanied by a two hour workshop,delivered by Ken Thomson. The
workshop aimed to gather student feedback and input‘omhowath@ College will look in 2022.

Class Reps were invited along to the Student Cauncil Meeting at their campus and were also
given a plus one option; they were able bringyalong,another student from their class who is
not a class rep. On early reflection this wasmaypositive Step to boost participation at meetings
and we will continue this for future meetings.

We have taken our StrategigPlan‘decumentto Student Council and will forward this to SMT
at the next available opportunity pending approval by the student body.

Resignation of VP for Education and Learner Engagement

As of immediategéffect;, thexabove VP has resigned. We are currently assessing our best way
forward in terms of identifying how best to replace this officer. We will provide a further
update onfthis onceywé have identified a way forward.

November/December planned activity 2016
Volunteer & Career Event
The Volunteer & Career event is coming up on the following dates;

& 29" November- Alloa 10am-2pm in the LRC Area
30" November- Falkirk 10am-2pm in the Main Hall
e 1% December- Stirling 10am-2pm in Main Reception

There will be information from employers, voluntary organisations and universities, and the
Falkirk event will host the CDN/RBS Enterprise Roadshow promoting information on setting



up businesses and other entrepreneurial skills. CON were keen to engage with staff and
students on the enterprise aspect.

16 Days of Action

We will be working alongside the equalities department to deliver events around the 16
Days Of Action within the college. Alongside the events we will be promoting awareness via

social media.

e 25" November-Stirling 11am Balloon release outside main entrance

e 2" December-Alloa 10am-2pm stall (thumb print tree campaign)

e 9" December- Falkirk 10am-2pm stall (hands are not for hurting campaign)

The activities are all based around a positive message against domestic violence to d will

be highly visible to students.

Safety Kits

hich will be distributed to
ide range of issues which

The VP for Health Wellbeing and Sport has put together safe
students ahead of the festive period, these will contain informa
could affect our students in this period, and also contai

\/
‘s
s drink spiking protection) and

hand warmers.

Christmas Gift Appeal

the Children’s Ward at Forth Valley Royal
ackaged gifts which would be suitable for a child

The SA will be arranging a Christmas gif
Hospital. We are looking for donationssof
aged between 0 to 16 years old. Thigwill ru

Planning Away Day

redistributing some priorities. We hope to carry out some
this to strengthen our working practice.
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1. Purpose

To present to the Board of Management the twelfth Principal’s report on activity
undertaken since the last scheduled Board meeting in September 2016.

2. Recommendation
The Board should note and comment on the activity undertaken by the Pgi
September 2016.

3. Key Highlights

3.1 I’'m delighted to report that on Tuesday 29th November after long discussions with the SFC
and Scottish Government, the Depute First Minister add Cabinet for Education
signed off on the £83 million project for the new Falkirk Campus. By the time of the Board
meeting the project will have gone to OJEU and o der. We start on site next
September with a completion and decant by October 2( ill be a fantastic legacy for
us all; still a lot to do but the project is “go”. Th | ople within the college who

have had essential parts to play in thegFull B se and the on-going design from
Heads of Department to Heads of Servi n all staff on the numerous working
groups looking at storage, staff wor 0 and ICT, however | would like to
single out three key people on the proje orman as Associate Principal for Estates,

nd Claire Shiels who was been seconded to
the project full time from her role as Head of Estates. Without the team work, resilience,
patience and expertise all e bri
possible. We now | f rd to
contractors.

ompleting the design stage and appointing the

3.2 n ceremonies that had more students graduating than ever

e speeches at Falkirk Town Hall from Steve Dunlop, CEO Scottish

We had two very

Science. Both ceremonies had excellent feedback from students,
and from the local press. The Stirling Castle graduation was extra special

33 have been successful in a number of awards over the last three months. At the
evelopment Network Awards we were Highly Commended for Health and Well
and the work of the Student Association in partnership with Student Support. We
were commended for our Essential Skills project in Construction and Commended for our
urriculum Strategy as a regional College. At the SQA Start Awards, the partnership between
Historic Scotland d and the College in traditional skills was commended and at the Scottish
Training Federation we won the award for Success in Partnership with the work we are
doing with FES and the FM Centre of Excellence in Alloa.
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3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

On Monday 5 December the Alloa Campus will host the first meeting of the Student Support
Review led by the Minister for Further and Higher Education and Science, Shirley Anne
Somerville. The meeting will be chaired by Jayne-Anne Gadhia, CEO of Virgin Money. | will
have the opportunity to meet with the Minister and the Chair and a tour of the Campus
where they will meet with students and apprentices.

Disappointingly, and through the national bargaining process, UNISON have rejected the
recent pay offer of 1.5% with additional payment depending on salary. The next_steps wilhbe
discussed at the Employers Association on Monday 5 December.

Fiona Brown, Associate Principal for Learning and Teaching has béen workingion _behalf of
Colleges Scotland with a group of Principals to develop the new framewatk for College
Review. Education Scotland, in partnership with the Scottish Funding Council (SFC), are
currently finalising new arrangements for the external review ofyquality in Scotland’s
colleges. The new arrangements will replace the previous programme of quadrennial
external review and annual engagement visits by Education Scotland and represent a
significant change in approach. External review will now ‘céntre on a validated self-
evaluation process, with Education Scotland and_SFC ‘agreeing with individual colleges a
bespoke annual programme of external scrutiny, working within the college’s own internal
quality enhancement processes. The afinual outcome Will be a graded college evaluation
report and quality improvement plafipsubmitted eachfOctober and formally validated by
Education Scotland and SFC before publicatioh, each December. The new approach also
brings a streamlined approach to repesting, With closer links between college self-evaluation
reports and the Regional Outcome Agreement. 2016-2017 has been designated as a
transition year as the arrangements are finalised and, whilst the first year’s reports will be
published in December 201%;'it has'heenfagreed that grades will not be published in this first
year. As noted above)fFionanis a member of the sector’s Steering group for the new
arrangements and has beeh, actively working with HMI Karen Corbett, our new college HMI,
to shape the arrafgements fef’Forth Valley College. A series of information events for
managers is udder wayhand further information will be presented to the Board of
Management.at a‘future meeting.

Networking

Infcollaboration with the Student Association | held three very successful strategic planning
warkshops to support the College’s Strategic Plan 2017 to 2022 as part of the annual
StudentsCouncil meeting with SMT. We worked with over 80 class representatives to discuss
andirecord what it would be like for a student in 2022 at Forth Valley College.

Fiona Brown, Colette Filippi, Associate Principal for Business Development and | attended
the Stirling City Deal Parliamentary Reception. This was, as Bruce Crawford MSP put it, the
best attended reception ever held at the Parliament. As a City Commissioner, the College
was well received both for the students serving front of house and also with a prominent
place in the video highlighting the five projects. There was a real excitement at the
receptions with the announcement the previous week of the £250 million funding from
Westminster. The College will continue to play a lead part in this development particularly
around the digital sector proposals.
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4.3 | am developing two international strategic partnerships with colleges on the Isle of Man and
in Northern Ireland for future staff and student exchanges. The Isle of Man University
College approached the college through the Isle of Man Government with an ambition to
learn from Forth Valley Colleges’ success. We may well become a mentoring College. The
second partnership with South East Regional College (SERC) in Belfast will build on_eur
Creative Learning Strategy and incorporation of our IT as they have recently been winners of
the Jisc Beacon Award for their Project Based Learning. There will be follow up meetings and
visits in the new year.

4.4 | attended, with a number of staff from the Business Development Bepastment, the annual
Falkirk Business Panel Conference where over two hundred eémployers fromgthie area
listened to key note speeches from John McNally, the INEOS CEOj Malcolm Raughhead, CEO
for VisitScotland and Steve Dunlop CEO for |Scottish Canals.

4.5 | attended one Board meeting of Historic Environment Scotland in Dumfries and chaired the
HES Board’s Staff Governance Committee and the EngineShed\Strategic Board.

4.6 As a Board member and Trustee of Jisc, | attended the Deeember Board in London.

4.7 | have met twice with the Student Association and held strategic planning workshops at the
Student Council meetings on the three campuses.a'was delighted to have full representation
of the Student Association at the recent CDN, awards with Debbie from last year’s SA to
receive the highly commended award foriHealth,and Wellbeing for their work on mental
health first aid.

4.8 | attended a workshop for thefClackmannan City Deal which would be linked to the Stirling
City Deal proposal. As noted before@£250 million has been identified through the UK
Government for the project.

5. Presentations

5.1 | presented_to a greup of perspective Head teachers as part of the Education Fellowship
Programmie on strategie planning and visioning and the work at Forth Valley College.

5.2 | was“presenteddwith the Provost Civic Award for Academic Excellence at a biennial event
held at Stigling Council

5.3 I presented graduation certificates to our apprentices at the NHS Forth Valley hospital at
Larbert and listened to key note presentations from Jane Grant, CEO and Alex Linkston, Chair
of the Board.

5.4 | was a panel member at the recent Association of Colleges Conference in Birmingham on
Transformational Change in Colleges and sponsored by lJisc.

5.5 | am speaking at the Holyrood Conference at the Royal College of Surgeons on Promoting
vocational qualifications, encouraging participation and building partnerships.

5.6 | was really pleased, again, to hold my annual discussion with Business HND students on

strategic planning and the importance of a clear vision.
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5.7 | signed a memorandum of agreement with Sibur, an oil and gas company from Russia who
were working with the college on a two week programme. Attending the signing were the
Provost of Stirling and the Russian Consul General.

6. Key Meetings

| undertook the following key meetings in the period 22 September to 8 December 2016:

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.9

6.10

6.11

I met with Michael Matheson MSP to discuss the development of the Falkirlestate'and to
bring him up to date with the work of the College and was ablegtophighlight the new
Discovery document which will be handed out at the Board.

I met with Martin Valenti, SEPA and Director for Climate Change around the organisation of
the City Deal Parliamentary event. He is a fellow Commissioner.

I met with Stuart Carruth, CEO of Stirling Council to be updated on the City Deal and the
current work on community planning.

Colette and | met with Alistair Campbell OBE and4/6uglas Fargdar to discuss their proposals
for development within Falkirk

Jacqui MacArthur, Head of Access and‘Progressionandgl met with Barry Fisher, CEO, Duke of
Edinburgh Award to discuss opportunities for theicollege and licencing arrangements.

| was really pleased to be invited to a private’dinner with Professor Gerry McCormac and
fellow guests, Mike Russell MSP, James Noughtie, Chancellor of the University and Graham
Houston, Chair of SQA and past leadeémefsStirling Council.

Chris Horne, Curriculum Manager for Sport and | met with Cathy Gallagher, the new Director
of Sport at'Stirling University to look at opportunities for collaboration and to build on strong
strategic relationships with the University.

[lmet“with Professor David Gaimster from the Huntarian Institute, Glasgow University who
tookyme around the new kelvin hall/Glasgow University development and a look at their
Learning Space model.

| met with Dominic Munro, the new Director of Fair Work, Employability and Skills to discuss
the Employability funding and the role of Local Employability Partnerships.
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7.1

8.1

8.2

10.

11.

Colleges Scotland

In the three months since the last Board meeting | have attended one meeting of the College
Principals Group; one meeting of the Colleges Scotland Finance and Funding Committee, on
meeting of the SFC Innovation Group and the CS Leading and Learning Group for s
manager CPD. | also attended one meeting of the SFC/SDS Joint Skills Committee.

e

ge will

Community Planning Partnership

Since the last Board meeting | have attended one meeting of
Planning Leadership Board where a new Board structure was
continue to be a lead partner in the new structure.

| have attended one meeting of the Stirling Community Planning Le

Financial Implications
None

Equalities

Assessment in Place? — Yes [1 No X

If No, please explain why - This
College policy or practice invo

rview report only, there are no changes to

Please summarise an iti egative impacts (noting mitigating actions) — N/A

Risk

Please indicate the rix below the risk score. Risk is scored against Impact and
Likelihoo L hrough to Very High.

Likelihood | Impact

ry Hig

Very Low

Please describe any risks associated with this paper and associated mitigating actions —
None

Risk Owner — Ken Thomson Action Owner — Ken Thomson
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12. Other Implications -

Please indicate whether there are implications for the areas below.

Communications — Yes [ No X Health and Safety — Yes [ No X %
Please provide a summary of these implications — N/A Q

Paper Author — Ken Thomson SMT Owner — Ken Thomson

\
)
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1. Purpose
For members to note the draft Outcome Agreement Self Evaluation report for 2015-16.

2. Recommendation
That members note our Outcome Agreement Self Evaluation report for Session 2015-16 @
report has been reviewed by a sub-group of this committee, comprising of Anne 3
Campbell and Alan Buchan, before submission to SFC.

3. Background
The College is expected to complete an Outcome Agreement Self Evaluation report each year as
the end of the Outcome Agreement cycle. This year the O If evaluat een combined
with the institution-led review of quality report.

4. Key Considerations

SFC have asked for comment on the following withi elf Evaluation:

e The delivery of the commitment to D in th in senior phase pathways.

e The delivery of widening access and sion targets

e Improved progression in access- ion.

e Industry-linked provision with.a ployer needs.

e Improved support to incre co of courses and progression to university.

e Progress with curric d opment to align to regional economic need.

SFC have also asked st t be added to the report to confirm that College Boards

ngage with SFC and ES over the coming year as new quality
is is included within page 7 of the report.

5. Financial Img @

Please detail the financial implications of this item — None.

essment in Place? - Yes [ No

If No, please explain why — As part of the Outcome Agreement process we set and monitor
targets in relation to protected characteristics.

Please summarise any positive/negative impacts (noting mitigating actions) — Not Applicable
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7. Risk

Please indicate on the matrix below the risk score. Risk is scored against Impact and Likelihood
as Very Low through to Very High.

Likelihood Impact
Very High
High
Medium O

Low

Very Low X X

Please describe any risks associated with this paper and associated igatingactions — None
identified.

Risk Owner - Action Owner —

8. Other Implications -

Please indicate whether there are implications for, the area low.

Communications—Yes [1 No X Health Safety — Yes [ No X
Please provide a summary of these imp 5 —
Paper Author — David Alli io&wn SMT Owner — David Allison/Fiona Brown

)




[\:/%'iltg ( Forth Valley College

College 2015-16 Outcome Agreement
Self Evaluation

Summary

In Session 2015-16 Forth Valley College met its student activity target, and our studentyachievement
rates remain high. During the Session the College won a UK-wide Times Education FE Award for
Best Learning and Teaching Initiative in recognition of our creative learning community. Our creative
approach to learning also secured us top awards in the ‘Learning and Teaching’ and ‘Essential Skills’
categories at the Scottish College Development Network Awards in'2015. Creative Learning also
featured prominently in our latest Education Scotland review which took‘placesarlier this year, and
was identified as an example of sector-leading best practice.“\This was in addition to 19 areas of
positive practice, highlighted through the Review. Our StudenfAssociation also won the top prize in
the ‘Enterprise’ category at Scotland’s National Union of Students Awards this year. They earned
this award for their tremendous work on developing ageredit union service to students across all
campuses.

Efficient Regional Structures

As a single college region there is a singlé"boardas governing body with the existing Chair of the
Board of Management appointed as Regignal Chair. Through the Principal, Associate Principals and
Vice Chair of the College’s Board of Management, the College plays a key role in Falkirk, Stirling and
Clackmannanshire Community‘Planning Partnerships, and leads the local employability partnerships
in Stirling and Clackmannanshire.

Meeting the Needs of Learners

In Session 2015-16fthe College met its student activity target, delivering 86,272 Credits against a
target of 86,214 Credits.

The Collegefis committed to delivering on Scottish Government priorities such as Developing the
Young Workfarce, and can evidence that 50% of Credits are delivered to 16-19 year olds, with 72% of
all Credits'delivered to 16-24 year olds. This is further evidenced through full-time enrolments where
52%of, all Credits are delivered to 16-19 year olds, and 74% delivered to 16-24 year olds. Please
note, thatithese Outcome Agreement targets were set in WSUMs without knowledge of how WSUMs
wouldiconvert to Credits, so any benefits of making comparisons using Credits is limited.

ThedCollege has in place an established regional curriculum strategy. We continue to map local
provision to key industries and learner needs across all campuses. This approach has enabled the
development of an efficient hub and spoke system of learning provision across our campuses, with
Science/Engineering centred in Falkirk, Hospitality and Creative Industries centred in Stirling and
Alloa being the hub for Business. As evidence of this for Session 2014-15 the Department of
Business moved its base along with a significant volume of its provision to our Alloa campus, and for
Session 2015-16 HE construction provision was moved to our Falkirk campus.

1



The number of learners benefitting from our school/college partnership from learners within the senior
phase (S4 and beyond) has increased and in delivering 4,895 Credits we were in line with our target
of 5,000 Credits to this cohort.

Our partnership links with Higher Education continue to evolve, and have developed from traditional
articulation models to a model of integration where learners in Engineering, Life Sciences, Heritage
Conservation, Digital Media and Computing can seamlessly progress through College activity on to
the relevant level within Stirling, Strathclyde and Heriot-Watt universities.

In Session 2015-16, in partnership with the University of Stirling, we have continued to growthe
number of students on our integrated degree programmes, with Digital Media and Applied £6mputing
programmes entering their second year. Unlike traditional articulation arrangements, these are wholly
integrated tertiary programmes, jointly designed, developed and delivered by the University, College
and industrial partners. Learners are able to exit with an HNC, HND, ordinary /degreeyor ‘henours
degree, in all cases equipped with technical skills and industrial experienee. Furthermore, shared
delivery arrangements between the University and College produced more effectivefutilisation of
learning resources. These courses are funded through the SFC associated student initiative for
partnership between colleges and universities.

Improved Support to Increase Completion of Courses and Progression to University

In our 2015-17 Outcome Agreement we had targets for successful, achievement for 2015-16 as
shown against actuals below:

FE HE
Target Actual Target Actual
FT 71% 70% 73% 75%
PT 90% 191% 89% 88%

In all cases other than FT_FE "and PT HE, our OA target has been exceeded. Whilst it is
disappointing to have narrowly missed these targets by less than 1%, for FT FE, the actual achieved
is consistent with the previous two'years and still evidences an upward trend over the last five years.
Across all modes andilevels early withdrawal remained steady or decreased in 2015-16, however
across the board there was an increase in further student withdrawals. Each year we rigorously
analyse studentsretention and achievement at course level through our self-evaluation processes and
teams routinely plap actions to enhance support, remove curricular barriers to achievement and
increase_completion of courses. We are currently undertaking a detailed analysis of retention for
academic ‘year 2015-16, to investigate whether there are underlying thematic causal factors that
require,actioniat College level.

As regards progression to university and articulation, during 2015-16 the College’s Student Services
team refined and further developed their Toolkit for Higher Education, providing a very well-planned
range of services to ensure that all students considering progression to university are effectively
supported through the UCAS application process, are made fully aware of existing articulation routes
and have ready access to ‘Study Skills Academy’ workshops to prepare them for university study.
Students on the four integrated degree programmes that we offer in partnership with the University of
Stirling also benefit from additional planned transition activities throughout their second year,
including visits to and classes held at the University.



In terms of progression to further study, for full-timé students successfully completing their Forth
Valley College course in June 2015, 71% moved on to further study (from a 94% return rate). 78% of
full-time FE students progressed to further study, a 5% increase on the previous year; and 57% of
full-time HE students progressed, a 7% increase on the previous year. In terms of articulation with no
loss of time, the data available at the time of writing indicates that a total of 91 students who had
completed Forth Valley College HN programmes in June 2015 entered a degree course with
Advanced Standing in session 2015-16. This includes a total of 49 Associate Students progressing to
year 3 (year 2 in the case of Strathclyde) of their degree programmes. This represents 17% of the
successful HN leavers from the College in June 2015.

This number is currently short of the target we have in the 2015-16 Outcome Agreementf®However
data from the National Articulation Database, which also includes returning students who “have
previously completed an HN with FVC and have perhaps taken time out before returning tojarticulate,
is not yet available for this time period and will be included in due course.

We were aware that in 2015-16 there appeared to be an increase in students disclosing mental health
issues than in previous years. During 2015-16, the Student Services/team, workKihg closely with the
Student Association, established a working group that focused on meeting and filling any gaps in
support for students who required or wished to access services, in relation‘topmental health. The team
has devised a range of support tools and measures that students and staff are now able to access.
The College now has a Mental Health Protocol which has beén designed to support and inform staff
on how to effectively signpost students in distress, and how and where to access and where to
support. The College’s online student portal also nowshosts ‘asighposting tile which students can
access 24hrs a day, offering a range of links {0, supportservices, which have been categorised to
make them easy to find and to minimise distresswhen seeKing support. Furthermore, the Student
Association piloted in-house delivery of the ‘Seottish, Mental Health First Aid course to over 90
students in 2015-16, with excellent feedbacksThe College believes that these interventions will make
a positive difference to students requiring/this form of'support.

Developing the Young Workforce

The College’s Outcome ,Agreement for 2015-17 (April 2015) includes a Developing the Young
Workforce (DYW) implementation®plan. In the intervening period, there have been significant
developments at nationaljsector and regional level that have to some extent changed the detail of the
implementation plan, however the direction of travel and the overarching strategic aims agreed with
our local autheritypartners’have remained the same.

In 2015-16 we,began the migration of the SCQF level 4 vocational courses on offer to school pupils to
SCQFdevels, toialign with the new OA measure definition for 2016-17. This strategy was not without
risk,“@s the joint strategic aims with our local authority partners include, as a priority, continued
provisiomyfor senior phase pupils at risk of low achievement and negative post-school destination.
Thistpriority is met through the jointly-delivered School-College Opportunities to Succeed (SCOTS)
courses in Falkirk and Stirling and ‘alternative curriculum’ transition provision in Alloa, both of which
depend upon suitable vocational qualifications (Skills for Work) being available to which pupils can
progress. For many of these pupils, achievement at SCQF level 5 is a significant stretch and it has
been important to balance the drive to align with the new OA measure with retaining vocational
provision that these young people can realistically achieve. Consequently, in 2015-16, we moved four
Skills for Work courses from SCQF level 4 to 5 for 2015-16, with the plan to migrate all other SCQF
level 4 courses to level 5 for 2016-17, providing there is no negative impact on these more vulnerable
pupils.
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In terms of growth in senior phase vocational pathways, in line with the new OA measure definition,
we have delivered a continued growth in enrolments and headcount, from 106 in 2013-14, to 157 in
2014-15 and 258 in 2015-16. This 258 was out of a total of 380 places on vocational courses at
SCQF level 5 and above offered for 2015-16, as set out in the April 2015 OA DYW implementation
plan. Of the 258 pupils on vocational pathways at SCQF level 5 and above, 83 were enrolled on HNC
programmes (36 in year 1 and 47 in year 2). Of those in year 2 in 2015-2016, 35 successfully
completed their HNC qualification before leaving school and, in many cases, the HNC was
instrumental in enabling them to progress to the next stage of their learning, for example by allowing
them to progress directly to year 2 of an HND or securing them entry to university.

The overall vocational offer for school pupils in 2015-16 (including SCOTS and SCQF “level 4
courses), totalled 742 places, however only 574 of these places were ultimately taken‘up. Three of
the courses offered did not recruit sufficient pupils to be viable at all and were withdrawn JHoewever
many other courses ran with lower, and in some cases significantly lower, numbers than targeted.
This is not a sustainable position for the College and throughout 2015-16fand‘beyond the /College has
further extended efforts to work with school partners to provide clear information to school staff,
parents and pupils about the benefits and relevance of senior phase'vocational pathways and their
equivalences to the more familiar school qualifications. There remain, however, considerable
challenges around alignment with school timetables and failureyof schools to treat the senior phase
vocational pathways as an integral part of the senior phaseimetable and not an ‘add on’Further,
conflicting pressures on schools to raise attainment, are driving them, to focus on the attainment of
National Qualifications at the expense of vocational qualifications.

In 2015-16 we also undertook to enhance progressively the relevance of senior phase vocational
pathways to employer and labour market heed by, replacing some Skills for Work provision with
Foundation Apprenticeship provision as it emerged. Imyour 2015-17 OA we set out plans to deliver a
Pathfinder Foundation Apprenticeship in Healtlhand 'Social Care, however late changes to the content
of this course by Skills Development Scotland rendered it very difficult to market to schools, pupils
and parents, and we were only able to'rectuit seven pupils to the course. Six of these pupils remain
on the course in 2016-17. Subsequent,to submission of our 2015-17 OA, we were also able to offer a
Foundation Apprenticeship Pathfinder injEarly Education and Childcare in Stirling, which attracted 12
pupils, 10 of whom are stillpon the course. There have, of course, been significant national
developments in Foundation Apprenticeships since April 2015 and the College has endeavoured to
continue to grow this provision,” with four Foundation Apprenticeships running in 2016-18.
Recruitment to thesé programmes still, however, remains very challenging and the College is working
closely with SDS and our sghool partners to ensure that future Foundation Apprenticeship cohorts are
fully-subscribed, otherwise the College will be unable to sustain these.

A further_ commitment in the 2015-16 OA DYW implementation plan was to engage more fully with
emplayers-in, the design and delivery of vocational pathways for school pupils. Our engagement with
employers through the developing Foundation Apprenticeship provision has played a major part in
thisyandwe have developed close and productive relationships with key regional employers in the
socialservices and healthcare, childcare and early education and financial services sector as a result.
We continue to develop links with a wider range of employers across all disciplines through review of
our full-time curriculum. In particular, we are developing closer links with engineering employers who
will provide work placements for future Engineering Foundation Apprentices. . The College has also
played a pivotal role in the development of the Forth Valley Developing the Young Workforce
Regional Group and is host employer for the newly-appointed Programme Team, who are currently
developing detailed work plans to focus on the creation of employer-education partnerships.



Finally, in December 2015, SFC offered Forth Valley College an additional £75,000 to support
Developing the Young Workforce. In the funding offer letter of 2 December 2015, Colleges were
asked to provide a formal update on the key achievements, outcomes and emerging impact of the
activities supported by this funding. This report was to be provided within this document and can be
found in Appendix 2.

Meeting the Needs of Employers

The College was proud to be the first learning institution in Scotland to achieve STEM (Sciefiee,
Engineering, Technology and Maths) Assured status, the UK-wide industry-led quality mask forlSTEM
training, awarded by the New Engineering Foundation (NEF). This prestigious standafd recognises
excellence in STEM provision within the Further Education sector, with a particular, focus_on an
interdisciplinary approach and on meeting the needs of business and industry/ The ‘College has
recently been examined for STEM re-accreditation and we were delightedito'be successfully awarded
this in xxx 2016.

In Session 2015-16, the number of Skills Development Scotland (SDS) funded Modern
Apprenticeships (MAs) starts was 256, an increase from 23§starts in Session 2014-15. We also
increased the total number of MAs supported by the College to‘@ver 1,100. We also met our target
against the number of Full Time FE students who have accgss to“a,work placement delivering 582
work placements against a target of 570. We also delivered 22,263 Credits (26% of all Credits)
through employer-related activity.

There are very strong links to industry acrogs colrsesiin all/teaching departments, with employers
having significant input to course design, and,in ‘many cases, courses designed specifically for
employers. A few examples are bespoke Managementiand Construction courses tailored for FES (a
locally headquartered Facilities Management company), an extensive rage of bespoke provision
within Engineering including delivery to companies such as Scottish Power, Shell UK and Ineos, to
name just a few.

Access, Equality and Diversity

In Session 2015-16, havifig successfully complied with all Equality Act requirements and the Scottish
Specific Duties, the Cellegepcontinues to meet the three aims of the Equality Duty through our
mainstreaming appfoach toyequality. We have published our Mainstreaming Report and our Equality
Outcome progress together with our annual employment data and equal pay statement.

Equality remains afkey element of staff development with general awareness-raising sessions
deliveredgto complement online training. Specific resources for equality are also made available for
staff,, [ Staffifrom our Learning Support Service have delivered tailored staff development on
reasonable adjustments and specific needs and barriers of students with particular additional support
needs stch as Autistic Spectrum Disorders and Mental Health. We have worked jointly with the
Student Association to raise awareness through events throughout the year to highlight specific
issues such as violence against women, LGBT History Month, and Show Racism the Red Card. We
successfully raised the profile of the 16 Days of Action Campaign through a very thorough social
media campaign that was well-received across College. All policies and learning materials are
equally audited to ensure compliance with Equality requirements.

Staff and student data are collated and analysed for any negative impacts in terms of profile,
retention, progression and attainment. Specific action is being planned for areas of under-
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representation, for example women in STEM, and action will be taken through the self-evaluation
process where there are any differences in attainment for people with protected characteristics.

Equality is integrated into learning and teaching approaches through the Learning Strategy and
associated Learning Activity Planning Tool. Partnership remains a key focus, with the Equalities team
having representation on local groups consisting of public sector and third sector partners such as the
Forth Valley LGBT Development Group, the MAHRS (Stop Hate Campaign) group and the 16 Days of
Action Campaign (raising awareness of issues of violence against women).

The College holds two key charter mark awards for Equality. We were the first College in Scotland,to
receive the BRITE Chartermark for inclusion, demonstrating our commitment to inclusiye practice
across College. We have also gained the LGBT Youth Chartermark at Foundation€ievel for\our
strategic and structural approach to equality across the whole organisation. We also received the
Silver award for our Student Services function area, again for our inclusive practice i supporting
LGBT students.

These awards examine and recognise everything from our Respect ¢campaign, gquality awareness-
raising, staff and learner development, learning support service, inclusive learning and teaching
approaches through to physical aids and adjustments in terms of accessibilityfof services, buildings
and technology.

The College’'s Equalities team provides a needs-led learning support service for learners with
additional support needs. Support is tailored to individual, cireumstances with the learners at the
centre of the process to ensure their needs are met éffectively. High standard needs assessments
are completed with learners and the College s amaccredited /needs assessment centre for Disabled
Student Allowance applications. All current and prospective learners are informed of the support
available at College and how to access it — learners, are able to disclose any additional support needs
at any time during their time in College. Ain Session2015-16, we provided support to 590 students
with additional support needs who are_ecompleting a range of programmes at various levels.

Under-representation of womemingSTEM subject areas remains an issue across the sector and within
the College. We have attempted toyaddress this through various mechanisms ranging from:

» Specific promotional activities to females at Engineering/Science events;

e Primary Engineerstin, primary schools; marketing case studies using female role models;
SCOTS programme giving school pupils a taster of all subject areas (including gendered
subject areas); STEM club for school pupils;

o Christmas Lecturesseries using female role models; female speakers to promote the industry.

In Session, 20156-16, the College was successful in its bid to the Equality Challenge Unit for the
Attracting Diversity Project. Our project is to ensure that our specialist science and engineering
provision and enhanced school/college activity in STEM subjects is actively promoted to women and
girlsywhotare currently under-represented in these subject areas. We aim to build on our STEM
Assured status and strong partnership links to tackle stereotypical vocational choices in relation to
gender. A project team has now been established within the College, and as part of the project the
team will be setting targets, hoping to gain insight and experience from other colleges involved within
the projects and seeking to benefit from the experience of staff from within the Equality Challenge
Unit. One of the activities which has already been undertaken has involved evidence-gathering
through a survey of our school link cohort to gather knowledge of the key influencers on subject
choice and the rationale for subject choice. The outcomes will help us better understand how the
College can influence future learners.
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In Session 2014-15, the College achieved the Buttle Chartermark, which demonstrated our work to
attract and support care leavers and looked-after young people. In Session 2015-16 we also
committed to the Who Cares? Scotland Corporate Parent pledge. Our Senior Management Team
undertook training earlier this year and this is now also being rolled out to other key members of staff.
We provided learning to 113 care-experienced students. We met our target of 48% of our activity
being from female students, and met our target of 3% of enrolments being from students from an
ethnic minority. In delivering 14% of activity to learners who have declared a disability we have
exceeded our target of 10%, and in delivering 11.5% of our activity to students from the most
deprived 10% postcodes in Scotland we met our target and also delivered beyond our regional rate
as 7% of the Forth Valley population reside within the 10% most deprived postcodes in Scotland.

In Session 2015-16, 878 students progressed to HE level study from FE level studydthe previous
session. This is an increase from 760 students who made this progression in Session2014=15.

The welfare of our staff and students also continues to be a top priority. _Our Student Association
recently boosted our Healthy Body, Healthy Mind rating from two stars to three stars« Earlier this
year, we were also officially accredited as a UK Living Wage Employer demonstrating our dedication
to ensuring Forth Valley College is a progressive, socially-aware place‘te work. This follows on from
our achievement of becoming the first College in Scotland to take the ScottishgBusiness Pledge back
in July 2015.

Sustainable Institution

The College recognises that the changing climate /will have far-reaching effects on Scotland’s
economy, people and environment. Consequently, the commitment to carbon reduction remains a key
strategic objective for the College as indicated'by itsiinclusion within the College’s mission statement
Making Learning Work.

Our vision is to lead by example in all our activities and to ensure that learners are aware of the
impact their actions will have, on thé envitonment. This commitment is supported by the College
Green Sustainability Statement gthat\is approved by the Board of Management and Senior
Management Team.

The College, through our, partnership with UCCCFS (Universities and Colleges Climate Commitment
for Scotland) has developedia Carbon Management Plan (CMP) which replaces the previous Climate
Change Action Planfunderthe)Carbon Trust. The College estate has altered considerably since the
CMP baseline year of 2008-2009, with the opening of our new campus in Alloa (2011) and new
campus in Stirling (2012)¢both of which received the BREEAM (Building Research Establishment
Environmental Assessment Method) Excellent rating. The College remains on target to reduce t(C0O2)
levels bya25% fromthe baseline figure of 2,873.62 tCO2 by the year 2020. The figures for Session
2015-16 evidence that we are ahead of target with our gross carbon footprint reduced to 2,262 tCO2.

Early Progress Towards 2016-17 Qutcome Agreement Targets

The College has seen healthy recruitment in Session 2016-17, recruiting close to target overall. The
key date for early retention is yet to be met, however early monitoring shows that retention is tracking
10 a similar pattern as last session. Both of these factors combined indicate, and give us confidence,
that we will achieve our activity targets for the 2016-17 Session.



New Quality Arrangements

The College Board of Management is committed to engaging with Education Scotland and the
Scottish Funding Council in the year of development of new quality arrangements, and commit to
producing an evaluation report and an enhancement plan for October 2017.

Signed by: &Q,ct:b\ Date: 34/ 0
Position: Principal
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Appendix 1 — Progress against key 2015-16 Outcome Agreement Targets

Target

Forth Valley College will deliver 86,214 Credits.

Delivery

Forth Valley College delivered 86,272 Credits in
Session 2015-16.

We will retain or increase the current high levels
of achievement across FE full time, FE part time,
HE full time and HE part time.

We have exceeded or are within one percentage
point of our targets:

Target Actual
FE Full Time 71% 70%
FE Part Time 90% 91
HE Full Time 73% :
HE Part Time

* We will deliver 55% of Credits to learners aged
16-19 and 20% of Credits to learners aged 20-24.

arners aged 16-
ers aged 20-24.

* Within our delivery to full-time learners 58% of
Credits will be delivered to learners aged 16-19
and 22% of Credits to learners aged 20-24.

our full-time Credits to
ed 16-19 and 26% of our full time
ers aged 20-24.

We will deliver 10.5% of all activity to students
from the 10% most deprived postcodes), i
Scotland.

ethnic minority.

d"11.5% of all activity to students from
ost deprived postcodes in Scotland.

3% of all enrolments were from students from an
ethnic minority.

10% of all activity will be fr
declared a disability.

14% of all activity was from students who have
declared a disability.

We will provide learnin xperienced

students.

We provided learning to 113 care-experienced
students.

its to learners with
ds enrolled on courses
n of achievement.

We will deliver
profound and co
involving for

We delivered 340 Credits to learners with
profound and complex needs enrolled on courses
involving formal recognition of achievement.

r 5,000 Credits to learners at S3 or
chool-college’ provision.

We delivered 4,895 Credits to learners at S3 or
above as part of ‘school-college’ provision.

| 285 new starts through direct
pprenticeships.

We enrolled 256 new starts through direct
contract apprenticeships, with over 1,100
apprentices supported through their training at the
College.

e will provide 570 full time learners with

substantial placements.

We provided 582 full time learners with substantial
placements.

Our Gross carbon footprint will be 2284.8 tCO2

Our Gross carbon footprint was 2262 tCO2

Note: * These targets were set in WSUMs without knowledge of how WSUMs would convert to
Credits, so any benefits of making comparisons using Credits is limited.
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Appendix 2 - Update on Use of Additional Developing the Young Workforce (DYW) Funding
from December 2015

The Forth Valley College proposals to use the additional DYW funds, agreed with Outcome
Agreement Manager Alison Meldrum are listed below, along with an update report on each.

Key achievements, outcomes and emerging impact

1.

10

A full time seconded Development Support Coordinator post from January to July 2016'to
work with our partner secondary schools to maximise recruitment to school-college
vocational programmes across all three of our partner local authorities for 2016-17. This
post was previously funded by SFC under the ‘early adopter’ funding and provedysuccessful in
increasing senior phase school pupil participation in vocational learning, through the'introduction
of HNC programmes for S5 and S6 pupils and the extension of the School-College Opportunities
to Succeed (SCOTS) course to Stirling. Recruitment to school-college vocational qualifications,
particularly those at SCQF level 5 and above, remains a challenge. While awareness is
improving, school staff, pupils and parents still often do not see these,qualifications as equal in
value to school-based National Courses. This post enabled us to amplify the message during
the recruitment cycle for 2016-17 courses.

Objectives and Outcomes:

a) To fill all available places on school-¢ollegé paftnefship programmes in 2016-2017 (will
contribute to OA targets ‘Volume of Crédits delivered ta learners at S3 and above as part of
‘school-college’ provision’ and ‘Number<of semior phase age pupils studying vocational
qualifications delivered by Collegesqgand will “be measured by recruitment statistics).
As a result we have achieved 87% of filled 'senior phase vocational pathways places offered for
2016-2017, as opposed to 68% inl2015-2016.

b) To contribute to targets tovaddress gender imbalance in OA 2016-17 and beyond, as set out in
Annex D of SFC OA Guidancey2016=17, paragraphs 13 and 14 (targets to be agreed with OA
Manager  and will~ ~be measured by  participation rates by  gender).
As regards school-college parthership courses, which this post was intended to influence, there
has been a verygminor shift in pupils selecting non-gender stereotypical courses. This year we
have six males'in traditionally female courses (Care and Salon Services), three times as many as
the previous, year, however only two female students selected traditionally male courses
(Engineering and Construction), the same as last year. We do expect this to be a longer term
target thatwill require further action to address.

Staffitime and operational costs for the coordination and delivery of a series of events
and activities in Spring/Summer 2016 to further promote STEM learning and career
opportunities to school pupils, again focussing on challenging gendered choices. This
activity has wider reach and is in support of longer term aims in relation to STEM and gender
balance. We have already been undertaking a range of initiatives to promote STEM to school
pupils and particularly to girls and our STEM Club and SCOTS course were featured at the SFC
event in 2015 around its gender action plan. This funding enabled us to extend and diversify this
activity during the remainder of 2015-2016 to include wider engagement with primary school
children; development of a ‘STEM Plus’ Club for older pupils; and a STEM conference, with
extensive employer involvement, for secondary school pupils. This successful, event was held on
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1 June at the Falkirk Campus. There were over 100 delegates, with pupils from eleven
secondary schools attending, along with teachers, college lecturers, college learners, local
businesses and council representatives. The conference consisted of an introduction by the
College principal, Ken Thomson, then two speakers, Professor Sa’ad Medhat and David
Cameron, who delivered rousing talks about the future of STEM, job possibilities in STEM and
introduced a host of exciting technological breakthroughs and potential opportunities in STEM
careers moving forward. The delegates then got the opportunity to attend three of ten
stimulating workshops delivered by the College’s teaching departments and external agencies
including Dogfi.sh Mobile, Diageo, Charles River, Historic Environment Scotland, Scottish Power:
Energy Networks, Equate Scotland, and Skills Development Scotland amongst others. Afterthe
workshops, participants gathered back in the hall and visited stands from a range ofjlocal
employers, and stakeholders including SDS, STEMNET, Diagio, Charles River, Equate Scotland,
IbiolC, WGM, Escape Recruitment, SP Energy, Alexander Dennis, SYHA, Dogfish, Mobile and
Historic Scotland. A conference dinner was also held in the evening, which was sponsored,by a
private sector partner and not through this SFC grant. These inifiatives are, not expected to
impact in the short term, however we expect that they will contribute to incremental increases in
females participation in STEM courses in the future.

Objective and Outcome:

To contribute to targets to address gender imbalance in ROA 2016-17 and beyond, as set out in
Annex D of SFC ROA Guidance 2016-17, paragraphs 18 \and 14 {targets to be agreed with OA
Manager and will be measured by participation rates'by -gender):

As a result of both the conference itself. andythe dinner, plans are emerging for a number of
follow-on activities to continue to promote ahd raise awareness of STEM, with a specific focus on
challenging gendered career choices. The Callege'is also actively seeking an alternative source
of funding to enable us to sustain the gtaffingiresource for STEM, as we see this as a longer term
prospect, rather than a quick fix.

A full-time seconded Employer Engagement Officer from January to July 2016 to secure
work placements for full time and school-college students. In some subject areas within the
College, work experiencée‘is a Welltestablished aspect of the full time curriculum, however, in
others it is less well-developed:, This role allowed us to direct attention to these areas and begin
to develop a bank.of placements for students from 2016-2017 onwards and also deliver a small
uplifted outcome in terms ofthe number of full time learners with placements in 2015-16.

Objectiverand Outcomes:

To deliven,a minimum of 20 new placement opportunities for students to take up in 2016-17
(contributesto"OA target ‘Number of full-time learners with substantial placements (more than ten
days) in“business and industry” measured by work placement activity undertaken). Also
conttibutes to the College’s capacity to deliver further Foundation Apprenticeship programmes
frem 2017-18 onwards.

The seconded Employer Engagement Officer sourced 21 additional placement opportunities for
2016-17 in the areas of Civil Engineering; Mechanical Engineering; and Administration and
Information Technology. In addition, two Civil Engineering full time NC students were able to
undertake successful work placements during April/May 2016.
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Support for curriculum management teams to further develop the active engagement of
employers in curriculum design and delivery. Engagement with employers is already a
requirement within the College’s curriculum review process, however we note that, in SFC’s
College Outcome Agreement Guidance 2016-17, paragraph 137 states: ‘For 2016-17 college
regions should provide detail of the level and scope of employer engagement within curriculum
areas and outline how this engagement impacts on student experience and employability.” The
resource enabled a modest amount of management time to be dedicated specifically to this
activity. Between January and April, each of the College’s eight Heads of Department annually
prepare a detailed Curriculum Review submission, setting out an analysis of their operating
environment and curriculum drivers and their proposed curriculum modifications and
developments to address these. As part of the environmental analysis, there is a requirement to
carry out direct engagement with employers and include the findings from this in the ‘submission.
The College recognised that this was an area of activity that, whilst effective, gould still be*further
strengthened and this element of the funding was used to allow College Imanagers tofocus
additional time on employer engagement activities.

Objective and Outcomes:

To build capacity across all curriculum areas for effective,employer engagement in curriculum
design and delivery (measured by evidence of effective_employer engagement through the
curriculum review reporting process for 2015-16 and [evidenee of impact through the self-
evaluation process for academic year 2015-16)

A range of consultation and relationshipsbuilding cactivities were undertaken, including an
employer open day; employer engagement fora; wvisits/fo0 and tours of College facilities and
employer premises. These activities were specifically intended to seek employer views on the
College’s curriculum and on their future,skills, requirements. However they have also led to
opportunities for future student visits, “‘@mployer-led seminars, workshops and ‘master
classes’;,work placements and livefproject briefs.

The development of @anjEmployer Engagement Database System. The College currently
engages with a largegnumberiof employers in a wide variety of different ways, including Modern
Apprenticeships, commercial training and procurement of goods and services, as well as work
placements and supportfer our core curriculum delivery. Currently, information about these
relationships and activities is not held centrally, but is localised and fragmented across the
organisation.” Developing a digital system which brings all of this intelligence together will enable
us to manage our relationships with employers more cohesively and therefore maximise the
opportunities that these relationships could bring to our core curriculum. Ensuring that we have
completéyand up to date information about our existing and developing employer relationships
wilhalso provide a sound base for further sustainable development in employer engagement
activities beyond the period covered by this funding.

Objectives and Outcomes:

Provision of a digital system to record all employer engagement activity (measured by evidence
of effective employer engagement through the curriculum review reporting process for 2015-16
and evidence of impact through the self-evaluation process for academic year 2015-16).

The proposed Employer Engagement Database System has now been developed, populated
with cleansed data on employer engagement held in other College systems and is now ready for
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use. ltis currently being tested by selected College managers and staff and will be brought into
full use during 2016-17. This system will enable us to capture accurate information about all of
the College’s employer-related activities, so that we can make more effective use of existing
employer relationships to further extend employer engagement in designing and delivering the
curriculum.

Development of the HNC Police Studies for senior phase pupils in Falkirk schools. Along
with Falkirk Council and two of its secondary schools, we have been consulting with®PRelice
Scotland as it develops revised arrangements for Police Officer recruitment. The HNGyPolice
Studies has been identified as a beneficial vocational qualification for young people,preparing to
apply for police recruitment. The resource supported the development of the award for/ pilot
delivery with a group of pupils from August 2016 and a group of 16 pupil§ fromiLarbert and
Graeme High schools are enrolled on the programme, having gone through 'a rigorous selection
process.

Objectives and Outcomes:

a) Sixteen pupils recruited to HNC Police Studies in August 2016y(medsured by enrolment
statistics).

Achieved

b) Articulation agreement and endorsement of route by [Police"Scotland in place by June 2017
(evidenced by articulation agreement in place).

This is currently under discussion with SQA and thre@ universities.



	0 draft BOM agenda 8 December 2016
	3 draft note of BOM 29 September
	5a DRAFT FCPB 10 NOVEMBER 2016
	5B Note of HR Committee meeting held on 22 November 2016
	5C draft audit minute 29 November 2016
	5D draft finance minute 29 November 2016
	5E Draft sdc minute 1 December 2016
	6a Annual Report BoM
	6b FVC annual report 2015-16 - Final Version for BOM meeting - 1-12-16
	7a 3rd Draft FVC Annual Audit Report 2015-16
	7b Draft Covering letter for LOR
	7c Draft letter of rep
	8a Code of Governance
	8b Code-of-Good-Governance-for-Scotlands-Colleges-August-2016
	9a Board Report FR Strategy 8 December
	9b Fundraising Strategy  Appendix One
	9c Funding tracker for Board 8 December 2016
	10aa Procurement Strategy Report 2016-18
	10ab Procurement Strategy 2016-18 Final
	11a FC Representation within the Community Planning Leadership Structure
	11b FC Representation - Appendix
	12a Student Association Activity Sept  - Dec 2016
	12b Student Association Activity Appendix
	13 Principals Report
	for info a OA Self Eval 15-16
	for info b FVC 2015-16 Outcome Agreement Self Evaluation



